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CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . This meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee will please come to
order. Good morning, Members. This morning we have bare quorum, but we've got work to do
and we'll be joined shortly. This morning we have Council Chair Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And we have Members Stacy Crivello -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: --Don Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: --and Don Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Good morning.
CHAIR WHITE: And we'll be joined shortly by Member Cochran and Victorino. This morning, again,
we have our Committee Secretary, Camille Sakamoto; and the Legislative Analysts Scott Kaneshina, Josiah Nishita and Michele Yoshimura. And on the other side of the Chamber,
we have Budget Director, Sandy Baz -MR. BAZ: Aloha.
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CHAIR WHITE: --and Deputy Corporation Counsel, Jeffrey Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. And Michael Victorino has just joined us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning and aloha, Chair.
ITEM BF-1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2014 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF
MAUI (CC 13-100 and CC 13-124)

CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we have five testifiers signed up so far this morning. And so, as we
have done in the past, we will go through five here, and then go to the districts. And so, without
objection, we'll open public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: You know, the Chair's slow enough this morning, so I need you guys to be a little
faster.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Chair, you gonna have a hard time on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're the one that's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And let's be honest about it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You're the one that's working us to death.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Hoo, no cannibalization, eh, today.
CHAIR WHITE: And hopefully no sumo suits. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Only gloves.
CHAIR WHITE: Our first testifier this morning is Gena Kraft.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. KRAFT: I like the instructions - four to six inches, that sound good?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're so tired, we didn't catch that one.
CHAIR WHITE: I...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So thank you very much. I didn't catch it, but...
CHAIR WHITE: I missed what you said...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Me, too, I'm sorry.
MS. KRAFT: Okay. I guess I'm gonna go more like two inches from the mic.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, alright.
MS. KRAFT: But little bit further?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Right there's fine.
MS. KRAFT: Okay, thank you. Mahalo for the opportunity to address this esteemed, Maui Council
community in your official capacity. The topic of real estate taxes is on the top of my mind
today. And it's extremely important to me, my association and our owners. I am Gena Kraft,
homeowner, time share homeowner and President of the Apartment Owners and Vacation
Owners Association. My family and I, for a little background, fell in love with Maui during our
first visit in 2004. Although we considered buying a house, it was a bit out of our price range,
and our home is in California. So we did the next best thing, we bought a time share. A time
share...owning a time share is really nothing more than sharing the cost and the usage of a
condo. For real estate taxation purposes, time shares are typically merged with the Hotel and
Resort category. Although, I personally advocate them being in the Residential category, feeling
it more closely aligns with them. We aren't full time on the island, so certainly we don't want to
enjoy the exemption that homeowners enjoy, but we do hold title just like a homeowner does.
My time share is considered an asset; and it's a piece of property that is in my will which my
children, after I'm long gone, will enjoy and continue to come here on a regular basis. The
similarities do not stop there with residential owners. Time share owners come regularly to the
island and enjoy local business year after year. A few of my family's favorite businesses are, the
Star Noodle; Da Kitchen; taking surfing lessons in Lahaina at the Royal Hawaiian Surf
Academy; the Lahaina Luau; Snorkel Bob's, that's where we rent all our snorkel gear; going to
the Maui Aquarium; and, last but not least, we love the arts and crafts fairs that we get to enjoy
when we're here. My family and I fully interact with the community throughout our stay. I find
it difficult, though, understanding why, then, that Maui County taxed time shares, in 2013,
70 percent more than the Hotel and Resort category and why time shares are singled out in Maui
County since 2005 with our taxes having gone up almost 100 percent, very concerning statistics.
We are citizens who are very involved in the community We care and contribute to dozens of
local causes every year.
MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
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MS. KRAFT: In 2012, we contributed over $68,000 and over 2,000 volunteer hours to local
organizations in need. Our association management team is unparalleled in the awards that they
have won and being thoughtful, caring community members. The Governor of Hawaii just
presented us with the 2013 Green Business Program Award, which has a direct impact with
saving Maui's precious resources. And it isn't that we're just sitting around having Mai Tais,
mind you, we are doing everything in our power to be a strong contributor to Maui's health and
welfare. So, as President of the Apartment and Vacation Owners Associations of the Kaanapali
Ocean Resort Villas, I ask you for two things.
MR. NISHITA: Four minutes.
MS. KRAFT: One is, please consolidate us back into the Hotel category at a minimum. And, also, if
you could help me understand why we're being singled out. If there's some maybe
misunderstanding, we can help address with you. Thank you very much. The 28,000 owners in
my resort just seek equity and parity, and Maui residents are our ohana.
CHAIR WHITE: You'll have to...
MS. KRAFT: In turn -CHAIR WHITE: You'll have to wrap it up. We need to be fair to...
MR. KRAFT: --we will treat...we treat the Maui community as such. Thank you so much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Any questions for Ms. Kraft, Members? Seeing none, you're off the
hook.
MS. KRAFT: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Our next testifier is Alan Kaufman.
MR. KAUFMAN: I'm Dr. Alan Kaufman. I'm testifying on behalf of the Cameron Center, but the
words are my own. I'm going to speak briefly about logic, conscience in the Maui County
budget. About a year and a half ago, the staff at the Cameron heard the crashing of glass. An
individual had taken a rock; broke windows at the Cameron Center; sat down on the bench; and
as the staff approached him, said, "I did it, here's the rock, arrest me. I'm cold, I'm hungry, I
need a place to go." He got it. It was very logical. How we think is based on who we are, what
we do, where we go, what we see. I know the perspective on the eighth floor of the County
building is very different from the perspective sitting at the beach at one of our fine hotels. I
know the perspective if you live in Happy Valley is very different than the perspective if you live
in Kanaio. The Salary Commission recently gave each of you, sitting on this Council, a
well-deserved and long-postponed salary increase. I don't know if I could sit in your chair and
accept a salary increase while demanding that the level of monies going to our social service
agencies remain static. I usually plan my speeches really, really well. I didn't have time to get
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that done. I have five children to get to school in the morning. They're going to three different
schools. I'm here because it is important. Maui County has been criticized for the money it
throws at social service agencies, and it tears me apart to think that people can't think clearly.
We're the only island with a Cameron Center. And I'm not speaking for Cameron Center or for
myself. I'm just saying that other islands are envious of what we do with our social service
agencies, as they should be. Because you can spend the money and have it magnified through all
the volunteer work that is done or you cannot spend the money and have more policemen to
arrest the people who are gonna break the windows or have to have higher hospital expenses for
the children who have to learn to walk or have to learn to speak because they have special needs.
I don't envy any one of you, because everybody who stands in front of you, the hands are out, we
want something from you. Speaking for a social service agency, we want enough from you to
keep doing what we can do a good job at.
MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
MR. KAUFMAN: Our alternative is simply to walk away and say, go ahead, deal with the problems of
East Hawaii, deal with the drug problems, the violence problems. You need to invest the budget
wisely. And I could not sit there where you are and deny the social service agencies an increase
in their budgets while I took more. Thank you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch, followed by Ms. Baisa, followed by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair; and thank you, Mr. Kaufman, for being here.
MR. KAUFMAN: It's Dr. Kaufman, by the way, Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Doctor, okay.
MR. KAUFMAN: --or Councilperson Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Dr. Kaufman. I know you had mentioned that you have so
much that you're doing so you're not able to watch us. I'm just giving you a heads up that we,
last night, restored all the increases to all the nonprofits that asked for and then some that didn't
ask for. We still have some questions on the Cameron Center that we're going to discuss. But
we hear you, you know. So often we're being compared to other counties, and your comparison
to the other counties is a comparison that we also have to look at, too. So I appreciate that.
Were you aware that we made those increases last night?
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MR. KAUFMAN: My remarks would have been a little kinder and gentler had I been aware of that,
Councilperson Couch. I was carrying yesterday's paper with me, and that is what I based my
remarks upon.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Dr. Kaufman.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Dr. Kaufman, for being here
this morning, and thank you for your service to Cameron Center. It's a very important nonprofit
in our community, and it's important that we keep it going. There was a substantial difference,
and there still is a substantial difference, between what we adjusted last night and what the
request was for. Can you kind of share with the Committee what the impact of getting 3 percent
more than the 45,000 you got last year will mean?
MR. KAUFMAN: I'm not going to deal with specifics. But it does mean though in generality is, it's a
very strong current and we're getting carried downstream.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What is this need for more money? Why?
MR. KAUFMAN: We're living in a structure--and when I say, "we", "living", I don't live there, though
some days it might feel like it -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm sure.
MR. KAUFMAN: --the social service agencies that call the center, "home", are trying to provide
services in a facility that is 40 years old. They're doing it in a facility that initially was very well
endowed. And, over time, deferred maintenance creeps up and it bites you in the okole. There's
a tremendous amount of work on the facility that has to happen, and the facility must be
supported. If that work does not happen and the facility does not receive the necessary support,
it can't go on. What will happen is, the center will be handed back to the County; it's on County
land. And then the County will have to pay people to run the center and cost more. You can
invest wisely or not.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And, as a board chair, can you share what the board is doing to assist?
MR. KAUFMAN: Four years ago, the board began to raise funds for the first time. We don't want to
raise funds. Because there has always been, historically, the feeling that by raising funds, we are
competing with the very agencies that we want to serve; and that's the last thing that we have
wanted to do. But we must also be pragmatic. If we come before you and say, we want money,
but we're not raising funds ourselves, I think we'd be laughed out of here. You have people who
work very, very hard. Try to raise to five children while you've got meetings every week; you
drive down--I drived [sic] down this morning to testify for you on behalf of the center--then I
drive back up the hill to do my work as a veterinarian; and then I get to drive back down this
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evening in order to attend another meeting so that I can find donations, so that we can get the
people to attend our fundraiser to make it successful so that we can carry on the goals of the
Cameron Center. The Center is a place where people come to find hope. And true miracles
happen under the roof of that building. There...and I mean miracles. When a doctor says, that
you're going to die because of a cancer and that cancer goes into remission, that's why Damien
is a saint and not simply a father. At the Cameron Center, there are children who've been told,
the parents have been told, "your child will never walk", "your child will never speak". And
those children walk and those children speak. I don't think that any of you are saints, at least not
yet; but what I do know is that by providing funding to the Center, you will make enable
miracles to continue to happen there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much Dr. Kaufman. I just thought it was important.
Because, you know, based on the publicity that's out there--I'm getting the e-mails and the calls
about, why are you raising my taxes to help the nonprofits?--so I think it's important that some
of the stories be shared so that people understand. Thank you.
MR. KAUFMAN: Well I don't really think you're raising taxes so much as the rate. You have to raise
the rate to keep a static budget. Valuations are down; we all know that. So you raise the rate,
you're not raising the tax, you're raising the rate. It seems like more money. No, you're paying
the same thing as a homeowner.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Doctor.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Dr. Kaufman, for being here. And let me read you
exactly what Ms. Baisa...I wanna read a quote from one of those who've just e-mailed me
saying, "please try find other funding to support nonprofits". "Do not burden us any further with
more government taxes." "I'm not in favor of increases on County property taxes." That's a
quote. . . . (Inaudible) . . .
MR. KAUFMAN: Absolutely. People know...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But what I wanna say to you is this.
MR. KAUFMAN: Oh, you didn't ask a question.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. No, I didn't ask my question. I just wanted to read that
first and ask you this question. Do you believe there are people like yourself, myself, Ms. Baisa,
many us in this room and around town that go out of our way to help with not only fundraising
but everything else, do you believe that we could use a lot more help in that area, that more
people could get involved if they just simply help at a dollar or two or five to help us get passed
some of these hard times?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

MR. KAUFMAN: One of the things I admired first President Bush for was, speaking about a thousand
points of light. And absolutely, we need to have the people in our community who are able to
step forward, and many of them do. They are there, they are supporting. You may not hear
about them, because they don't want it to be known. But you also should appreciate, and I'm
sure you do, Councilmember Victorino, nobody wants to pay more money. Because when
people are struggling, more money is very, very difficult. There were remarks made earlier at
this podium today, and I really want to share with that individual who is well spoken and sincere
that you do serve the community when you pay more taxes. And I know it's painful on your
pocketbook, but by paying those higher taxes -CHAIR WHITE: Please address the Chair.
MR. KAUFMAN: --you make miracles happen.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if you wouldn't mind addressing us...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Dr. Kaufman, and -MR. KAUFMAN: We're good?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you answered my question. Thank you, Chair. Thank you.
MR. KAUFMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any other questions? Seeing none, thank you very much. Our next testifier
is Peter Bagatelos.
MR. BAGATELOS: Good morning, Chair and Council members. Thank you for letting me appear
before you again and testify and for your kind attention. I'm here as an individual time share
owner at the Kaanapali Ocean Resorts in North and South. I'm also a member of the Kaanapali
Ocean Resorts North facility and here representing our many thousands, 20,000 homeowners
who also are part of your constituency and are looking for answers. And we're in opposition to
the proposed property tax increases and to the fact that time shares are in the highest tax category
by far of all categories. And basically asking you for two things. One, that you reduce or take
our rate and put it down at least at the Hotel rate where it used to be. And, if not, then...and
spread the tax burden more equitably among the different property classes. And, secondly, if
you don't do that, to please provide your rationale and reasons for why we are at such a high
rate. We would like very much to work this out with you in this forum rather than any other
forum. And so we...that's why we keep coming back with our olive branch in hand asking for
help. Supporting our position are the following. Time share owners pay by far the highest rate
of real property taxes than all the other categories; time share owners pay annual fees that cover
landscaping and repairs and maintenance at the complexes; we provide jobs for many of your
residents on the island; we are active community citizens that make charitable contributions; we
collect food that's left over and we give it to the needy; we do volunteer beautification efforts
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like cleaning the beaches, planting indigenous plants; and the mountains, we coordinate with
volunteers; and we provide many other social welfare benefits to the island. We promote green
programs. And I know Mayor Arakawa and a number of you have been at our events that which
awards have been given. Gena commented that the Governor just presented a green award to our
complex. And that award, I want to emphasize, is not for using up resources of the island, it is
for conserving the resources of the island. And that's a really important thing, I think, that we
are helping the island with our efforts. No other county in Hawaii assesses time share owners at
rates far above those charges for Hotels and other categories. And here's another important fact
that time share property values comprise about 4 percent of Maui's total property valuation; and,
yet, we're paying 11 percent of Maui's property taxes. So it's a very heavy burden. We do
object to being singled out for disparate treatment and -MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
MR. BAGATELOS: --we would like to get answers from you, as part of your constituency. And there
are other alternatives that we have outlined and found that we'd be willing to sit down and share
with you if you're interested. I also wanted to point out to you, as Gena did, who am I as a time
share owner? What is a time share owner? Well my wife and I admittedly are not full-time
residents of Maui, but we are part-time residents. We come here every year for at least a week or
more, sometimes several weeks. And our time share is owned by 52 owners who collectively
constitute one, full-time owner on this island. We are not just guests, we are owners. And, like
all of you as owners, we have an investment in Maui and a vested interested here. And when we
come here, we feel this is our part-time home. Like you, we have shared our Maui home with
our family members over many years. I've brought my mother, my brother, my sister and my
son-in-law, my daughter and my 18-month-old grandson here to play and frequent the shops.
Like you, we go to the supermarkets - Costco, Safeway and other places; we shop in the different
stores -MR. NISHITA: Four minutes.
MR. BAGATELOS: --we patronize the local restaurants; and we try, like you, to make Maui a better
place for everybody. So one commenter indicated that rates for -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if you could...
MR. BAGATELOS: -- residential homeowners have gone down by over 60 percent and that rates for
time share owners have gone up by about 300 percent. If this is the case...
CHAIR WHITE: If you . . . (inaudible) . . . concluding.
MR. BAGATELOS: I will, sir.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
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MR. BAGATELOS: If this is the case, then this needs to be corrected. And, again, we ask you to
please address our concerns and to work with us on resolving this amicably. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Bagatelos. Any questions for the testifier, Members? Seeing
none, thank you for coming today.
MR. BAGATELOS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Rosemary Robbins.
MS. ROBBINS: Good morning, everybody.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MS. ROBBINS: Another beautiful day for us to increase the pono that Stacy and the rest of the people
who were on the Charter Commission had -CHAIR WHITE: Could you -MS. ROBBINS: --offered us the opportunity...
CHAIR WHITE: --speak a little closer to the microphone?
MS. ROBBINS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can't hear.
MS. ROBBINS: How's this?
CHAIR WHITE: That's better.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Better.
MS. ROBBINS: Okay, thank you. Another beautiful day for us to increase the pono that Stacy and
other people on the Charter Commission had given us the opportunity to voice our preferences
on, and that we did half a year ago. Okay. After yesterday's testimony at this podium, a
concerned citizen who had been here made her testimony and a Member of the County Council
asked the concerned citizen two questions. One of which was that a time later in the day when
those citizens would not be able to speak; our time was in the morning and then the rest of the
day would go on for the Council members to work on what needed to be worked on. And the
Council member asked that concerned citizen what she would like him to say when he could
say--anybody here could say to the person that needed to be spoken to--and that was, what could
he ask of the person. The person that we're talking about is the Water Director who was the last
department called yesterday. By water, all things find life. But that was the last one and it was
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the shortest amount of time the person was there. The Council member did speak to the Water
Director--there were a number of us sitting here to observe that--but did not ask the question that
the concerned citizen had put on a small, purple post-it note - very concise, very specific. And
that was to please get the information on the application for the Safe Drinking Water Revolving
Fund, which is going to be presumably, proposedly, supporting so many of the how to pay for
the stuff that needs to happen in terms of water here on Maui. The Member spoke to the
Director; the Member did not ask the question that was so concisely put. So while there is a
concerned citizen at this podium this morning, I would like, on behalf of all the concerned
citizens, to please get that data in writing to the public at large, and that would include the
concerned citizen. And what that question was, as for the application to the Department of
Health, when was it filed, how was it filed, and has there been a response by the Department of
Health for that? Very succinct. It's kind of a yes or no thing.
MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
CHAIR WHITE: Does that conclude your testimony?
MS. ROBBINS: It does.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Members, any questions? Seeing none, thank you very much,
Ms. Robbins.
MS. ROBBINS: You're welcome.
CHAIR WHITE: Our next testifier is Robyne Nishida Nakao. And following her testimony, we'll
check in with the districts. And we have a couple more testifiers that have signed up since we
started.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: Good morning, Budget Finance Committee Chair, Mike White and
Committee Members. I'm Robyne Nishida Nakao, and I'm here to testify for the County of
Maui Fire and Public Safety Commission. I'm humbly asking for your reconsideration support
to restore the Department of Fire and Public Safety's 2014 Budget request for their
administration, maintenance, safety, training, health and safety fire rescue operations and fire
prevention for the following. Medical and safety supplies in the amount of 290,295, and that's
for appropriations to purchase two sets of station boots and one set of structure boots per
uniformed firefighter per the National Fire Protection Act of 1977. I just wanted to bring to your
guys' attention that 18 months ago, the County was notified by the Hawaii Fire Fighters
Association that the Fire Department was not in compliance with their Collective Bargaining
agreement. And at that time, in year 2011, the union could have issued a notification of violation
to the County of Maui. And in lieu of issuing a notification of violation, the union agreed to
allocate the County time to procure funding to purchase the personal, protective equipment for
the firefighters. So I really encourage that, you know, that this allocation of funding be
reinstated, so that our firefighters don't get injured. Because if they do, that could be a liability
to the County of Maui, and the union could have issues with that as well. The other thing that I
-12-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

also ask for you to reconsider is the Premium Pay of 669,200. And I feel that's kind of a
misnomer, Premium Pay, 'cause it's really not. Again, it's a requirement under the Collective
Bargaining agreement. One thing is that, you know, the Fire Department responds to many 911
calls, 24-7, 365 days a year from wellness checks to motor vehicle accidents to rescuing people
that are hiking, you know, that kinda thing as well as brush fires. So they respond to more than
fires, and it's difficult to anticipate how much salaries and wages will be expensed in a given
year. No one knows how many or what types of emergencies will be occurring during a certain
year. I believe it is fiscally prudent that the Premium Pay budget be restored. Fortunately, Maui
has been spared any major disasters or crises similar to the recent Boston Marathon bombings or
Texas fertilizer plant explosions where six firefighters and two EMS workers died responding to
these incidents in April.
MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: The Department of Fire and Public Safety is bound by the union's Collective
Bargaining agreement and FLSA requirements with regards to firefighters' compensation. It is
of special note that in 2003, a year where there was no significant tragedies on Maui, the Fire
Department will be going over budget on their Premium Pay budget expense as of July 30 by
approximately $30,000. Thank you for your time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: Any questions?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you, Ms. Nakao, for being here. And I
guess you didn't watch last night, either. 'Cause we restored most of that stuff.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: Some of it, not all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Most of it, I said.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: No, not most of it. We were looking at it this morning really quickly as...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well you better look at it carefully, 'cause I just went through all
the...the Premium Pay, no, we're still working on that. But all the rest, all the equipment, go
look at it, it's all back in there.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: I was looking at really quickly with Chief.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well don't look so quickly; gotta look good.
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MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: I was. I was looking at...I'm gonna defer to Chief Murray who's sitting with
me, right there. And we were highlighting...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Don't go there. Thank you, Chair.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: I'm gonna defer to Chief, right there, and we can check. But -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Nakao.
MS. NISHIDA NAKAO: --please.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We got it, you got it. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions for the testifier? Thank you very much, Ms. Nakao. And
we'll go to our district office in Hana. Dawn, do you have any testifiers?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. There's no one at the Hana Office waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. And we'll go to our Lanai District Office.
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez at Lanai, and we have no one
waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Denise. Welcome back. I didn't know who was gonna answer this
morning, so we'll check back with you later. And we'll go to the Molokai District Office. Ella?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai, and there is no one here waiting to
testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you very much. Members, the next person to testify here in the Chambers is
Jeanne Skog.
MS. SKOG: Good morning, I am Jeanne Skog with the Maui Economic Development Board. And
good morning, Chair White, Council Chair Baisa and the other Council members. First of all,
thank you very much, again, for your support over the years. It's much appreciated, it's enabled
us to do so many things. I'm here this morning to assure you that every bit of funding, every
dollar you give us makes a big difference on our ability to serve our community Before the
recession, we were at $500,000; and we realize we totally understand the need there was to cut
back, and we made the adjustments internally. But we are at a turning point in our economy. I
think we can all see the increased activity, and we're also seeing increased demands in terms of
our services. So your support, at this point, would be really, really important to what we do
going forward to respond to these demands and the sort of change in climate that's upon us. This
is a good thing that our economy is perking up, but we wanna keep responding to what's out
there. On the business development side, our collective work to position Maui for business
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innovation is paying off. You've heard from some of the testifiers who came during the public
hearings. We've, for instance, achieved a milestone in the R&T Park. There is a significant
information technology software cluster in the park. Just in 2012, alone, that's resulted in 20
hires, the majority of which have been kamaaina. So the challenge before all of us is, how to we
sustain that activity? How do we build on that activity going forward? So that's a priority for
us. And that ties into workforce and the work we're doing in that area. Investing in our students
to make sure that it's our residents who are getting those jobs and prepared for those jobs.
There's more demands on us to address that. And we wanna continue to reach every community
in our County with technical assistance and support. The funding also impacts what we can
bring in. It is a very different funding climate as you're all aware. It is more competitive than
ever, and it is requiring cash match. Unlike prior years, you used to be able to do in-kind and
cash. Now, it's cash, it is hard cash. So I can tell you we will leverage the heck out of anything
you give us, so your support will be much appreciated. It is a brighter picture, we're very
optimistic, we're excited about the opportunities that are coming to us both nationally and
internationally.
MR. NISHITA: Three minutes.
MS. SKOG: But we just need to continue the support, and an increase would be much appreciated at
this point. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Skog. Members, any questions for the testifier? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you very much, Chair. Thank you, Ms. Skog, for being here
this morning. And thank you, of course, for all the good work that you do. My own landlord's
son came to thank me the other night 'cause he was involved in the STEM program, received an
award. So he came to thank me. He says, "Auntie, thank you for the funding for MEDB". So
just wanted to pass you on. It comes close to home. But what I wanted to ask you was, you
know, we're getting a tremendous amount of reaction to what's going on here. And one of the
allegations is, why are you guys considering giving the nonprofits raises when, you know, the
rest of us have to pay more and we haven't given raises to our employees, and why don't you tell
them to cut their programs and cut their costs? Can you share with us some of the things you've
done in order to make do with what you have?
MS. SKOG: We've frozen pay, we've had to do that and we've had to choose programs. Which is
really heartbreaking, because the programs that we do take on are proven for us. We don't
continue to do things that don't produce results. So when we continue something, it's because it
is producing results. So when we have to drop something, it's really sad, because it's basically
eliminating access to people who are underserved, whether it's students or business or whatever,
we have to cut back. And it's so hard--I mean you've been in nonprofits--it's just so hard to say,
"no". So we've had to cut back and make adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So it isn't true that you have been going on normally giving raises and
expanding and not responding to cuts?
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MS. SKOG: I'm sorry, say that again?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you haven't been going merrily along spending money, hiring people
and giving raises since the cuts?
MS. SKOG: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think it's important that the public hear this, because -MS. SKOG: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --this is the kind of allegations that we're getting in e-mails. So I
wanted get it out there that people understand the nonprofits have also been trying to control
their costs. Is that true?
MS. SKOG: Absolutely. And I do wanna add one other thing to that, which is, thank God for dedicated
workforce in our nonprofits. Because we do not work 40 hours a week. I will tell you that -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know that.
MS. SKOG: --in spades. I mean I know you know that, but thank goodness for dedication. Because we
couldn't do what we have done--and I think I'm speaking for other people--if we didn't have
people dedicated to the community, willing to put out.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you. Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Ms. Skog. Any other questions for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions, but just a comment. On behalf of our island,
Molokai, we'd like to thank you. You know, I know you believe that to lift us out of our
economic woes is a better educated community And you've extended the dollars you've
received into Molokai. Lots of times, they're left out. And your participation has proven, you
know, and the esteem and the...of course, you know, my colleagues said all these kids keep
coming up. But even for them to participate in this government process on just to say, "thank
you", and giving recognition for their STEM robotics program, I'd like to say, thank you very
much.
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MS. SKOG: Oh, you're very welcome. And I'll tell you, when we heard they won, there was so much
whooping and hollering in our office. It is so satisfying to see that kind of result. I mean they
just made us so proud.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Ms. Skog, for being here. You
heard...I think you heard what Mr. Victorino read from his e-mail. We all got that e-mail about
the people saying, don't give to nonprofits...any more to nonprofits and don't raise our taxes. If
we are to continue on with the increases with the nonprofits the way the budget has been
proposed to us, then we are gonna have to raise homeowners' rates for sure. The question is, is
what you do for the community worth the rate spread amongst the homeowners at least?
MS. SKOG: Oh, tremendously. I mean one of the things that makes this community so great is the
strong nonprofit community If you look around and see how many ways the different nonprofits
contribute to the quality of life here, that makes a really big difference even in terms of business
development. People, even businesses, want to come here, 'cause it's a great community to be a
part of, whether you're looking at services for children or services for your grandparents or
maybe services for a spouse that might have special...whatever the case may be. We've tried to
come up with answers within our nonprofit community to address all those and it's made for a
tremendous quality of life here for everyone. So, you know, I can't think...I think it would be
worthwhile to ask the question of, what services have you used in your community? You know,
whether it's Hospice or MEO, whatever, you know. Somebody is being touched by something
that's happened in the nonprofit community, so there is a payback. Not to mention the payback
in terms of what the nonprofits bring in other dollars outside of the state even. It's a tremendous
number. So I think we're all doing our share in terms of, you know, trying to give back and
make it a good investment in ROI.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you for that response. And to follow up on that, are you saying
that you get more money than we give you? It's...
MS. SKOG: Oh, absolutely, yes. I think it's at least ten to one, if not more, on some other programs.
Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So it's a good return on the investment, then?
MS. SKOG: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Ms. Skog, if you were aware that the...all the other tax categories in
Maui County over the last ten years has been asked to put up approximately $855 million
compared to the homeowners being asked to put up 15 million. Would you feel that, as a
homeowner, you'd be comfortable paying a little bit more?
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MS. SKOG: Speaking for myself personally, yes, I would be. You know, because I know where it's
going to and the transparency of this process in the decision making that...the rationale that you
are using to increase, et cetera, I would be comfortable. I feel lucky that I know the discussion
that goes on and so forth, and certainly would encourage other people to be aware of how
thoughtfully you go about making these very hard decisions. But, yes, I would be comfortable
with it.
CHAIR WHITE: And I think I speak for everybody here, and not just the current Council members but
previous Council members, I think everyone here should be very proud of what Maui County
does contribute to the nonprofit sector. Because we're a visitor-based community; and I for one,
as a hotel manager, want to feel that when my guests go out into the community, they're not
gonna see what they see in many other destinations. And I want them to be welcomed, I want
them to feel like they're part of it.
MS. SKOG: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: And I think all the work that the nonprofits do, on our behalf, makes it...or it shows
the aloha of Maui to our visitors. And, at the same time, I know we all get questions about how
can you give so much money to the nonprofits. Well, the way I look at it is, I share with the
homeowners, you don't need to worry about it, 'cause you're not...what we get from the
Homeowner category doesn't even cover the nonprofits. And, yet, our business community
generates about $113 million in taxes a year. The Big Island business community provides about
30 million to their county government. And so that shows that it's not coming from the
homeowners, it's coming from the businesses. And I think all of us that are in the business are
generally supported by visitor dollars, and I think that's one of the best investments that we can
make So I don't know if you have any comments. I'm not supposed to be pontificating, I'm
supposed to be asking questions in this part, but I'll take a little liberty, as the Chair.
MS. SKOG: Well, again, I think we are a tremendous community because we have invested in
nonprofits as well as other things. I will tell you that since becoming President/CEO of MEDB
and, you know, being at the table, so to speak, on any sort of statewide forums or whatever, I
constantly hear about, wow, Maui really has its act together, Maui's always leading the way,
et cetera. And I think it's because we do things like this. We understand the role of nonprofits
and other pieces in our economy, and we invest wisely in all of 'em. So kudos to all of you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. Jeanne, just so that the public understands, also,
you have a couple of...
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino, could you move your microphone a little closer?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you cannot hear me, you're in trouble.
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CHAIR WHITE: I just want the public to be able to hear you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, they can hear me. I guarantee you they can hear me,
Mr. Chair. You and your organization have various fundraisers throughout the year, and you
have a very big one. Could you give the public an idea how much work and how much you
generally net out of all of that and what that money goes to just so they know that all the money
we give you isn't just what we giving? You, that's one of the major ways you leverage your
money beyond federal and state leveraging.
MS. SKOG: Yes. The majority of our leveraging does come from federal, state, foundations, et cetera.
But one really satisfying piece is our annual fundraiser. And especially the business community
has responded tremendously to that request. It does go to advanced STEM education: science,
tech, engineering and math education. And I think that's one of the reassurances that donors
have felt is that they know where it's going; we also tell them exactly, you know, what kind of
grants we do from it; et cetera. So, yes, we actually grant over $100,000 a year to schools,
organizations, teachers, et cetera from that. So it's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the benefactor is all the schools including one of our recent
winners from Molokai Middle School.
MS. SKOG: Absolutely, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that true?
MS. SKOG: A lot of investment in robotics from that program responding to tremendous growth in that
program -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. SKOG: --throughout our schools, also in digital media.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I guess the statement I would make to those out there, when we
help you, we help our community; and that's the bottom line in all of this. It's not just taking tax
money and wasting it, it is tax money well spent.
MS. SKOG: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
MS. SKOG: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Skog.
MS. SKOG: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, our next testifiers is Kathy Louis. And Ms. Louis is the last person to
testify...or sign up to testify. So if there are any others in the audience who would like to
provide testimony today, please sign up in the lobby or be ready to step forward when Ms. Louis
is pau. Please proceed.
MS. LOUIS: Good morning -CHAIR WHITE: Good morning.
MS. LOUIS: --Budget and Finance Chair White, Council members. I'm Kathy Louis. I'm the Personal
Care Program Director at Hale Mahaolu. And I'm here this morning to thank you for revisiting
Hale Mahaolu's Personal Care Program. We appreciate your consideration of the 103,000 that's
been budgeted from the County Council. But I just wanted to say that, you know, this would be
less than half of our current spending for this program for this fiscal year. Which means, if we
were operating on a 103,000, we would have to cut our client services by more than half. So I
would like to ask if you could revisit and reconsider our request for the 175,000 that we
originally requested. This, combined with some carryover funds from this current fiscal year, we
anticipate being close to our current level of funding. That's all I have to say. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, questions for the testifier? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair; and thank you, Ms. Louis for being here this
morning. It was rather late last night when we were trying to look at cuts and restoring cuts and
looking at 3 percent, and I think that's where the 103,000 might have come in.
MS. LOUIS: And we appreciate it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But I think I share your concern, because personal care is so important.
And it's such a deterrent to having people wind up in nursing home which cost--we heard the
other day--$14,000 a month.
MS. LOUIS: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's kind of mindboggling when you think about it. You know,
$100,000 will be used up in just a few people. So if we went with this 103,000, how many
clients would not be served?
MS. LOUIS: Well, what we would probably do is continue to serve our current clients, but we would
have to cut back their services by more than half, probably.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And the current level of service, right now, you do, I know you do it by
hours.
MS. LOUIS: It's about four hours a day per client. Some clients are less, but most of them get about
four hours a day.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So if you were to cut, you'd cut the hours?
MS. LOUIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So that meant that instead of getting these services, they get this
services. What would that look like?
MS. LOUIS: Well for example, say, a bedridden client, they might get the aide to come in up to four
times a day to change them, possibly feed them, turn them to prevent the bed sores and things
like that. So if we only had two hours a day, you know, they'd be going and maybe in the
morning and possibly late...early evening or late afternoon. But all that time in between, who's
gonna be providing the care to change them? You know, nobody wants to be sitting in their own
waste for hours, you know, at a time before somebody can come and relieve them. So this is
what we're looking at. There would be more potential for their skin to be breaking down. Sores,
once their skin breaks down and they've developed bed sores, it's very hard to heal, especially
for the elderly people. And probably they would end up, you know, nursing home from that
point if they don't get the care at home to prevent them from things like bed sores and...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Would your staffing be affected, too?
MS. LOUIS: Well, it would be less hours of work for the staff as well, sure.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, thank...
MS. LOUIS: And that's less respite for the family members who, you know, are 24-7 caregivers, so it
affects a lot of people not just the clients. But the clients are our main concern.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much. I think it's important that we understand what
stands behind these numbers, you know. We have so many grants and so many programs,
sometimes we really don't even understand the intimacies of what these programs are.
MS. LOUIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So thank you.
MS. LOUIS: Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you very much,
Ms. Louis.
MS. LOUIS: Thank you very much.
CHAIR WHITE: And we will go to the Hana District Office. Dawn, has anyone shown up to testify?
MS. LONO: There's no one waiting to testify at the Hana Office, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And, Denise, in the Lanai Office?
MS. FERNANDEZ: The Lanai Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And the Molokai Office, Ella?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, ladies. Is there anyone left here in the Chambers who would like to
testify? Seeing none, Members, I'd like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR WHITE: And, Members, we're gonna take a ten-minute break. In recess till 10:20.
. . . (gavel) . . .

RECESS:

10:07 p.m.

RECONVENE:

10:34 p.m.
REVISED EXHIBIT "1" MATRIX

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel) . . . Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order. Members,
we'll be proceeding with the pass through the Exhibit 1. And we left off...we were still in the
Department of Police, and you'll find that on Page 30.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Real quick question. Everything we had done till this point, did
we have any kinda tally or you just waiting till we get to the very end? 'Cause I remember you
saying that you're gonna have them tally up something for us, but...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my recollection, I wanted to give them the...
MR. KANESHINA: Well as far as the operating expenses go, if you turn to Page 36 of 71 at the very
top.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 71, okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But what's the difference?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, what's the...
MR. NISHITA: Mr. Chair, on Page 52 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, 52 now.
MR. NISHITA: --you can see the net total. We're running about a $1.1 million deficit, now.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's easy.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, 1.14.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that 1.14 is off of the Chair's budget or off of the Mayor's
budget? I just asking, now.
CHAIR WHITE: No, it's the change from the Chair's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: From the Chair's, okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: So essentially, that's what we ended up with after the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: After what we did last night?
CHAIR WHITE: --things that we added back in last night.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, on Page 30, I believe we...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Line 1001.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Line 1001.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct. I was trying to recall whether we did...yeah, we had consensus on 997 and
998, correct?
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, I guess -CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: --before we get started, I guess that maybe I should explain what Staff did to the
sheet overnight. The first thing you'll probably notice is, on the far left-hand side, there'll be
numbers. So it'll...that's as a suggestion from Member Couch, so we could quickly identify
specifically what line we're talking about.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: The other thing we did was, in the column next to that, Column A, you'll see,
occasionally, initials. And so the initials are the only items that we have marked down as
revisits. If there's no initials and there's just pluses and minuses, that means that we got
consensus on that particular item. But if you need further clarification just, you can let Staff
know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So just to refresh, on Line 1010 and 1011...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did not have consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: We did not have...okay, so there's no consensus on that, right?
MR. KANESHINA: I can check our hardcopy notes. But if I look at this, it says we had consensus; but
I'll get back to you guys.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I know we didn't have consensus on that, but I...
MR. KANESHINA: Okay. We can revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Starting on Line...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just to continue on with that, real quick, on how to read this. So
anything after, essentially, I believe we jumped down to 1005. Anything after that, is...
MR. KANESHINA: It's uncharted, 'cause we didn't...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uncharted -MR. KANESHINA: Yeah, correct. That's a...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --`cause we haven't talked about it, yet -MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --other than the first pass through.
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that noted anywhere, the first pass through?
MR. KANESHINA: I guess I should correct my statement. The first pass through will be indicated as I
described, everything but Police pretty much.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And... okay.
MR. KANESHINA: And everything after Police is still kinda where it was hanging -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
MR. KANESHINA: --before last night.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, starting with Line 1002...well actually, no, that will be affected by
1003 and 1004. The request from the Department of Police is for additional E/Ps. One for the
Hana Patrol and six officers for the Kihei Patrol. And the question...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With no funding?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With no funding?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

CHAIR WHITE: With no funding, but the Chair would encourage us to fmd E/Ps elsewhere rather than
just handing over new E/Ps. So if anyone has any thoughts on where those E/Ps might come
from -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --we don't need the answer now, but...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Yeah, 'cause...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Yeah, 'cause we can do that.
CHAIR WHITE: We'll just...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible) . . . What line are we on?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 30. Oh, Line 1003.
CHAIR WHITE: It's Line 1003 and -4.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And -4.
CHAIR WHITE: So we'll revisit those. But I would like suggestions as to where you feel we can
generate the E/Ps.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do they have to be funded E/Ps on the other side since these are
unfunded?
CHAIR WHITE: I'd prefer funded E/Ps, if we can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And then we have a revisit for the Reduce Premium, and then the same thing
for the next positions listed on Lines 1010 and 1011.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are you suggesting that we want them back?
CHAIR WHITE: Well one is a return, but I'm also suggesting that if we can find E/Ps elsewhere that'll
be preferable. Okay, then...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If it's alright with you, I'm fine with those reductions, if the rest of the
Members are.
CHAIR WHITE: With the Building Repairers and the Service Station Attendant?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus on the reduction?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I think...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'd like to ask Mr. Couch, why he's comfortable with that? You have a
reason?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Along with Member White, I mean we only have a limited number of
positions to pull from vacant positions. And while I'd like to do this, we...maybe we should
make it a revisit, because if we can find... `cause we have a lot of Fire positions and we have
these seven positions above and a bunch more further down. So if I had a choice, those would be
some of the first to go, but maybe not all of 'em. That's my comment. Then I'm fine with a
revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And especially the Service Station Attendant, I thought that was
the other...they wanted to make one full time instead of, you know, so I don't wanna be
eliminating something that they actually wanted to make one full time versus two half time,
right?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was the rationale I remember, I wrote down. So, okay,
please revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And the next...what was it that we jumped down to?
MR. KANESHINA: Page 31, Line 1028. Oh, excuse me, 1029.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, that was...no, I'm sorry, I was looking at the one below that that we already dealt
with. Yeah, we restored the janitorial position on Line 1035. We jumped passed the other two.
So we're on the Fiscal Analyst position. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's 1029, right?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, no. The Chair's position is still not to approve that, to leave the deletion. So if
you prefer to provide that, then I'm open to comments and finding E/Ps somewhere. But I think
all these additions, we're gonna need to start focusing on where we might be able to get these
E/Ps from if you all are interested in filling those positions. I'm kind of...I'm still feeling that
that's a reasonable deletion, because I believe we have people that can do fiscal analysis. And I
believe Mr. Goode showed that he can do a lot of it on his own. And I do a lot of my own. And
so, anyway, we'll leave that as a revisit in case you can find somebody. Oh, and I'm sorry, I
forgot to recognize the presence of Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Hi, good morning, Chair. Aloha, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Good morning. Okay. The next change...or the next item is on Line 1055. Oh, no,
this is driven...these are those funds that are driven by other decisions, correct Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: That's correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we go down to...the next is the Line 1084, which is the 15 positions for the
Pavement Preservation Program. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Number again, please?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 1084 and...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1084, Page 33.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Page 33 at the very top.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And we had discussion and information from Mr. Goode about adding...wait, giving
us the cost of adding five instead of fifteen. And the Chair's position remains that we'd like to
hold off on making these changes until we get better numbers. We have lots of equipment now,
-28-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

and we have the ability to work on the numbers and get them narrowed down to a much better
comparison. And I think we all believe that this department is doing, you know, outstanding
work. But I'd like to postpone a significant commitment until next year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But you're okay with the five?
CHAIR WHITE: No, I prefer not to add until we get better numbers. Because we're getting a lot of
work out of the crew now. And we're, you know, any time we can increase productivity of our
crews, I think it's a great thing. And so I understand the interest, but I'm just concerned that we
have accomplished a lot of what we want to accomplish by getting the attention of the paving
companies. And I believe we should move in this direction, but I'd like to be more sure-footed
as far as the analysis is concerned. If no one else -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So is this a revisit?
CHAIR WHITE: -- would like to revisit that, I will...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, definitely 'cause -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Revisit. I...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --your comments, last night, all sounded like you were in -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --big support of the five positions. I mean I was under the impression,
and I think all of us were, that you were in support of the five positions. So, yes, definitely
revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Construction Equipment Mechanic?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Construction what? What number is that?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Number?
CHAIR WHITE: Are there concerns about...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Number?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Number 1096.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1096.
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry, 1096.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit, Mr. Chair. That's the one that...that's one of the five that he
put in his proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He wanted.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Was one of the five?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that would adjust the number above to four?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We're in the Department of Transportation. Last night, Mr. Ueoka suggested
that this would be appropriate, that this could be covered by the Highway Fund, except that we
don't have enough money left in the Highway Fund to do so. And we're transferring monies in,
so we really can't do much there. And so the Chair concurs with the request for a Grant
Supervisor.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So restore?
CHAIR WHITE: Restore.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. And then the grant to Maui Economic, we restored...this doesn't
show -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It doesn't show that we...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Doesn't show the restored.
CHAIR WHITE: -- the restoration.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. And it doesn't show the adds that we want.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What's going on?
CHAIR WHITE: So, Staff, if we can note that?
-30-
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MR. KANESHINA: Note, I'm sorry, could I get clarification? Note, which particular item?
CHAIR WHITE: It's the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 1109.
CHAIR WHITE: --on 1109, we had consensus to restore the 168,748.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And then we had a revisit from Member Baisa and Cochran,
probably to increase that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To do the adds -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --for Molokai and Waihee.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Molokai, that's it. Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Do we have consensus on those two adds?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But we don't know the dollar amount.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's -CHAIR WHITE: It was 32,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --32,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 32,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah. Absolutely.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next is the Reduce Bus Transportation for Bus Procurement Fund. That
deletion was recommended because we didn't find the 855-. The Chair is recommending we add
back the 855- amount, 855,000 instead of the 1 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I really would like to have a breakdown. I tell you why. I have a
little bit of experience in buying vehicles.
CHAIR WHITE: You think?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah. I bought hundreds of 'em over my lifetime. And, you know,
these vehicles are really, really expensive. I don't know what Member--uh, Member--former
Member Johnson really needs, Director Johnson. And I don't have a breakdown of what would
happen to 855- versus a million. I think it's probably...I don't know. Maybe Mr. Baz can help
us. Sandy, you bought the most recent buses.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, from my recollection, the discussion that Member...or sorry -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know, we keep saying that.
MR. BAZ: --former Member Johnson Winer, Ms. Johnson Winer, the Transportation Director, was that
she would be purchasing a lot more of the smaller type vehicles, because -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Paratransit.
MR. BAZ: --their paratransit, because those are wearing down quicker. Yeah, some of the larger
vehicles are 500,000 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
MR. BAZ: --almost a million dollars just for one vehicle sometimes. So the smaller vehicles, they can
get around I think around 100,000 or so for per smaller type vehicles. They can get quite a bit
more vehicles. I just am sending them an e-mail, so that we can get clarification on the amount,
a variation ... (inaudible). . ., so to answer your question if you'd like.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So maybe if we just wait a minute.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair's open to that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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CHAIR WHITE: I'm just...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's just that I don't want us to be caught with half a bus.
I've...happened to me.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my challenge is that we've received no explanation of how many buses they've
got, what the ages were. And so, you know -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand.
CHAIR WHITE: --we asked that of everyone else, and we probably should ask that of the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand. I would be, you know, I would be happy if we had a
breakdown of what this is going for. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Sony.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, sorry, Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm done.
CHAIR WHITE: No, she was done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. I had been in quite a bit of dialogue in regards to
this million with Ms. Director Johnson Winer. And I guess a big thing is the TIGER Grant,
which I don't know what that breaks -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the acronym means, but got reauthorized. And I guess this would
help with matching. And if they didn't have this type of money on the County's end, then they
could lose this type of funding. I think Mr. Baz could probably explain a little better than I can.
But that's kinda the gist and why the reasoning is to have this here. And it will definitely be
utilized as we see our bus system is growing and growing and more ridership and usage on our
equipment. So I'm in support of restoring that million -CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --but we, I guess, can revisit and...get more information.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think it's responsible for us to ask -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --for the same information from them that we've asked from -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --other departments.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's fair.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair, I did get a response, not with mileage-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BAZ: --and all that, but with the vehicles, they were planning on purchasing ten paratransit
vehicles. And the ones that they bought two years ago were approximately $90,000 per bus. So,
you know, with inflation, 100,000 is about right. So that's what they are looking at with the
million dollars. Should they receive the TIGER Grant, then they would use that as matching to
purchase more and more vehicles if possible. But the minimum they would purchase is the ten
paratransit vehicles. I know a number of those vehicles that are still in use are ones that MEO
gave to the paratransit system back in 2005, and I think they were 2002 vehicles at the time.
And they're very...in bad shape as far as, you know...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, may I ask Mr. Baz a question?
CHAIR WHITE: Have I ever said you can't?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I...you never know.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Baz, if we were to buy, say, 15, if we got
the TIGER Grant, 15 or 20 of these buses, where are we keeping them?
MR. BAZ: The contractor will be responsible for housing them. So right now Roberts, you know,
houses all of them. As of July 1 st, I'm assuming MEO would house the paratransit vehicles on
their baseyard.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: You know, the Chair's only concern is, if we're getting TIGER Grants to, you know,
to subsidize the purchases, then I'm not sure it's fair just to leave...I know we have to have
money there to get the federal grants; but, you know, that's million dollars of General Fund... oh,
no, this is Highway Fund. So is the Highway Fund covering all of that? Are we able to cover
the add-back of a million or is that gonna come from General Fund?
MR. KANESHINA: No. It would have to come from Highway Fund. I mean, historically, we don't do
a General Fund transfer to the Highway. We haven't had to do that, yet. So if you add this back,
that would create a deficit in the Highway Fund of a million dollars. If you add back a million
dollars, it'll create a deficit of a million dollars; and that would mean there would have to be
some adjustments to other Highway-funded projects, CIPs or appropriations.
CHAIR WHITE: Anyway, the reason I was bringing that up is that, you know, we've, you know, with
the Fire Chief sitting here, we've held them back from purchasing a lot of vehicles. And I don't
know if you saw his note on the other vehicles, but, you know, we've got a lot of vehicles that
are old. And so I don't know how the TIGER Grant process works, but I'd like to just remind
everyone that we have other vehicle needs as well. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, just to speak in support of putting this million dollars in even if it
is General Fund money. You know, these transit vehicles really take a licking.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: They're on the road all day every day, and they go on every corner of
this island, and it's very, very difficult to keep them. And I think MEO does an excellent job of
preventive maintenance to try to keep the vehicles good; but, with the increased use, we're gonna
need replacements. And when the bus breaks down, it's a real bad story, because you got
somebody sitting on the side of the road who can't breathe or is on their way to kidney dialysis
or a child that has to go home or, you know, these are people. And so we gotta deal with vehicle
replacement. And if we delay it one year, it's really like two years, because these buses take
forever to get here. So I really hate for us to fall behind.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. No, the Chair supports the 1 million. I'm just wondering if we get the TIGER
Grants, that's gonna reduce our participation, so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Also, if we can get ahead, maybe next year we don't have to put too
much money into buying vehicles. We're playing catch-up. We have old, old, junk vehicles.
I'm telling you, 'cause I know. I lived with them and they're the same ones, and I've been here
seven years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I like that - old, junk vehicles.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we will try to take a look at the Highway Fund and see what else...what
other changes we may have to make or do we just...that's a heck of a hit to the General Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So revisit?
CHAIR WHITE: Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you. I mean, you know, if we look...and I guess we'll get to this when get
to the CIP. But there were some, in the Chair's proposals, some Highway-funded projects that
were moved to Highway Fund cash that could be moved back to bond as the Mayor proposed.
But that might be a good workaround.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We'll...let's just do that. So we'll...do we have consensus on the 1 million -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --with the idea that we'll move projects to bond?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct. So restore then?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Restore.
CHAIR WHITE: Restore. Okay. Department of Water Supply. I don't think we...we have the pass on
the Private Secretary. We had consensus on the watersheds -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Where did the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we had...there were three items. The --36-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually -CHAIR WHITE: --Countywide...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --West Maui, Ms. Cochran had it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'm looking to proviso in an item there -CHAIR WHITE: Oh, that's...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so can we revisit, then?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Can...
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, hold on. Where were you gonna put that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Under watersheds. I'm sorry? Watershed, West Maui -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: West Maui Watershed-COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Watershed Protection -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --for the -CHAIR WHITE: Oh, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Puu Kukui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Puu Kukui is what she wanted.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --for Puu Kukui -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Watershed.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. So that was a proviso -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a add.
CHAIR WHITE: --or to add to that, or was it add?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Add, but I wanted it specifically for that entity and nobody else.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you wanna proviso or add?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Add or proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Add and proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, that's what it is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, what's the number?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Amount?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two-fifty.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ooh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's what I'm asking, so I mean we can all -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Ask
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No response on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --we can -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You don't ask...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --compromise, but I'm looking for 250-.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: An additional 250- -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --over the 321-?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's specifically for Puu Kukui.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right, specifically. It's an incredibly important watershed.
CHAIR WHITE: I think we may have to revisit that amount -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: --just because it's...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that's fine. Yeah, I'm good to revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair would be comfortable raising it by 150- and proviso-ing money for the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Proviso-ing 250- of it?
CHAIR WHITE: Maybe proviso-ing 200- of it. You know, this is a new -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --effort that we're making, you know. I wanna make sure that we're being
responsible with it. And you know if it's...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well I'm very confident about...
CHAIR WHITE: No, I'm very confident in the organization.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know that we have enough information, though, that that's an adequate amount
or whether...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I actually do have a e-mail that was sent to my office, direct,
which I can transmit to the rest of the Council for further details of how this money is broken
down.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, this is...well of course it's Water...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fund.
CHAIR WHITE: Actually, you know, we can just do the same thing we did for the Countywide
Watershed Protection one. We can just move money from that same Countywide Fund, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The...that's...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: So I believe what you're saying is taking from the Water Fund Unrestricted
Countywide General CIP for Countywide Facility Improvements -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. KANESHINA: --which is now down to, your version, of 4 3 million and taking this add from that
and moving it to this grant for West Maui Watershed proviso.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair would recommend that we move 200,000. And instead of adding it to West
Maui, we just do it on a separate line.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You okay on that?
CHAIR WHITE: Is that okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I can, yeah, I can live with that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sure is better than what I had before, which was zero.
CHAIR WHITE: So if you can provide Staff with the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --name of the -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'll give, yes, I'll give -CHAIR WHITE: --watershed group?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --Mr. Kaneshina the details on that, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for reminding us on that. Staff, what is the increase of $2,701 for grants
and disbursements for Miconia?
MR. KANESHINA: Well what that was was that -CHAIR WHITE: They didn't balance?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: --yes, in short answer. It was related to the Private Secretary passes that we took
out to...and that Mr. Baz is gonna adjust when all the contracts get ratified. So that was related
to one of those. But since it's Water Fund, we had to put it in Water Fund, and we gave it to
Miconia.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Okay. Moving to Page 36. And, Staff, please feel free to mention
if I miss something. Nahiku Community Center, Chair had a revisit on that. The Chair's
recommendation is to accept the $600,000. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Mike, you had it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, but we had side talk. Sorry, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, was there...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is your...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sorry?
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CHAIR WHITE: I know that's what I just said.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, it's not Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Not me. No...it was him.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, got the wrong Mike, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: No, it's my...yeah, it's mine
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I know, they asking me if I said anything. I said, no I didn't.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's this...no, it's this Mike. Too many Mikes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Too many Johns, too many Mikes.
CHAIR WHITE: It's only the two on the ends that are really with it this morning. Those three and me
are still a little wobbly.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're wobbly.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, the next one is...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What did we...Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What did we decide -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --what did we decide on Nahiku?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What did we decide?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --on 600-?
CHAIR WHITE: I said...I thought I heard, "consensus".
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Then you guys said it was Mike V's revisit, when it was mine So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, so we have consensus on your recommendation. I'm fine.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my recommendation is to go ahead and accept it.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is everybody else okay?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, fine.
CHAIR WHITE: And in the Paia-Haiku Community, we had a deletion; and I have a Mike V revisit
on -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, Mike V.
CHAIR WHITE: --the 5,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well the question was the use of operational funds for the
appraisal, right? That was the question -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and I nevah got an answer.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Chief, the...well would you mind joining us for a second?
MR. MURRAY: Alright. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Before you answer Mr. Baz's question, let me ask you mine
MR. MURRAY: Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sure Mr. Baz filled you in on what we were doing. The question was, in a CIP
budget, we're used to working with very big numbers. And so the Chair's feeling was that while
the Administration wanted to put a, like, a placeholder here, our feeling is that the appraisal
should be able to be covered out of operating funds.
MR. MURRAY: Alright. Good morning. Fire Chief Jeff Murray, representing the Fire Department.
Thank you for that question. Yeah, this allows us to run that appraisal and stay within those
parameters to start the process of looking for a new location for the Paia Fire Station, because it's
in a inundation zone, that was the thought process between myself and Administration.
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CHAIR WHITE: So, Mr. Baz, is this gonna be paid out of Fire Department funds? Anyway, I guess it
really doesn't matter it's General Fund.
MR. BAZ: Well, yeah, Mr. Chair. Yeah, General Fund, it would be something that would be part of the
eventual capitalization of this project. And, as I mentioned, we put in the 5,000 because we
didn't want to show our hands too much before we do the appraisal, find out how much we're
gonna negotiate for a purchase price.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. This is not worth arguing over. So the Chair will recommend we -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Restore?
CHAIR WHITE: --restore.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next -MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --I think we had consensus on the Kalialinui Bridge Improvements moving to bond,
correct?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Then the Courthouse air conditioning chiller on Page 37, Line 1242, we still don't
have enough information on that. What the Director was recommending last night was the idea
that the chiller on top of this building would be replaced with one that's a little bit larger. My
recollection from last night was that...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't think so, Chair. I think what he's saying, they was gonna
put one up here that would be able to offset and be a backup for here that would feed the
Courthouse -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and the other building, am I correct?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And wasn't the new one for this building... `cause we just
replaced it a few years ago.
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CHAIR WHITE: Well, yeah, I'm not sure what...it seemed like he was saying it was replacing the one
up here with a one that's more efficient.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He was going replace it?
CHAIR WHITE: With a bigger one to accommodate the other one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The County just replaced the one up here.
CHAIR WHITE: So my concern, after thinking about it, is that if it was bought four or five years ago,
it's probably a pretty efficient one already. The ones I replaced were built in 1968, so we've had
significant energy savings. So we need to revisit this, because we don't have the details.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And we'll try to get a better idea.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, do you want the Director to come up?
CHAIR WHITE: If he has more -MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --information. I don't think he was quite ready.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I was CC'd on an e-mail that has a lot more details -CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BAZ: --I think that might be appropriate.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if he wants to come up, we can get back there when he gets here. Okay. Down
to War Memorial Civic Complex. We have a revisit by Mr. Hokama. Do we have consensus on
this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I was gonna say, I'll channel him in that he doesn't want to
provide things that the State uses. So I think that's consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus to?
CHAIR WHITE: Actually the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're consenting to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Leave it alone.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Try again.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, because we had already -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Agreed upon on it, but then he...
CHAIR WHITE: --we weren't requiring -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --we weren't recommending a -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --delete. So -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's...
CHAIR WHITE: --so we have consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
MR. BAZ: We're leaving it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Sorry. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we on Line 1254?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What about 1250, did I miss something?
CHAIR WHITE: That we have consensus on already.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: To delete or to restore?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Delete, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Delete.
CHAIR WHITE: No, to delete.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So...
CHAIR WHITE: And on the top of Page 38...I'm sorry, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm sorry, I'm lost. Let's go back to 1254. Exactly, what are we
agreeing to?
CHAIR WHITE: We're agreeing to the Mayor's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Which is to give $200,000 back.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, I'm...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we never...I didn't delete that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So it was just a question that Mr. Hokama had.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just wanna be sure.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I know what he wanted, I remember now. He mentioned that he's
thinking of doing something in South Maui with it, and I'm fine with leaving it like it is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then the next one is War Memorial Complex Paving Improvements, and we
had a revisit for Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I think, you know, I've been informed by the Planning
Director--and more information will come forward--but he informed me that, as far as he knows,
to resurface the War Memorial Complex, the parking lot, doesn't take a redoing and redesigning.
He said you could basically resurface. He did not see what...if it was new, he agreed -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --you'd have to do that, but he doesn't. So he assured me that if
there was anything different, he'd get in touch with me this morning; he has not. I met him
yesterday afternoon going out. So I'd like to just leave it there and let's get it done. And if we
don't have to spend -CHAIR WHITE: Well your...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --2.2 million...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think your question, though, was whether or not Public Works could do the
work -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --at a lesser cost. And I thought that was something worth...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, no, they could. But I'm saying, the thing is, Parks Director
said, we needed to redo and redesign would be $2.2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's when I said, whoa, wait a minute, that's not what we
have here.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, either way, I'd like to leave the money there, whether -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, let's...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --our internal guys could do it or -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we'll just --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --somebody. We need to do it.
CHAIR WHITE: --we'll just leave the amount.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So let's leave it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. So consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: So well, yeah, but there's no change, so we're -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well just...
CHAIR WHITE: --at least...yeah, no, you're right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we agree, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I won't...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Mr. Goode is here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And we can ask him that. There you go. I talk about, and he
goes, shows up.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's Goode, you're here.
CHAIR WHITE: What Mr. Victorino was asking is, if he gives you the chiller, will you pave the
parking lot?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: At the War Memorial Complex.
MR. GOODE: Good morning, Chair, Mr. Victorino. Eh, let's talk, let's make a deal.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright.
MR. GOODE: I'm ready.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I love this.
MR. GOODE: I heard some of your conversation on the chiller
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: So was the question about -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the...
MR. GOODE: --what's up there and what we would replace?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the question is whether the upsized chiller that you wanted to put up here was a
replacement of what's up there now or an additional one that would then help as a backup for
this building and take care of the building next door?
MR. GOODE: I think it's more of the latter. We have, currently up there, two chillers. One's fairly
new, is doing a good job. The other is one of the originals, that's our backup. We occasionally
run the backup from time to time just to keep it active and ready to go if the other one goes
down. The idea, I believe, is to take that old one off line completely. And if it calcs out, through
the engineering analysis, we will put a new chiller in its place that could handle this building and
the Prosecutor's and Kalana Pukui. So, eventually, we kinda gotta replace that backup anyway,
and it'd have the opportunity to do all these functions.
CHAIR WHITE: So have you had a chance to sharpen your pencil as to what that might require or is
that something...
MR. GOODE: The only work we did overnight was they determined that it was about 180-ton chiller,
approximately, that would be needed. But without the engineering analysis, to get there to see if
that's even the best solution, we don't have anything further as far as cost goes.
CHAIR WHITE: If you have the...if this is a backup, upstairs, are you gonna need to run both
machines in order to pick up the Prosecutor's Office and Kalana Pukui or is it...if you're gonna
have to run both machines at the same time, then were not saving electricity.
MR. GOODE: I think that's why the whole thing has to be analyzed.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: With a fiscal analyst?
MR. GOODE: So...no, it's an engineering analysis.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good try, Couch.
MR. GOODE: With a fiscal component, for sure.
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. . . . (Inaudible) . . . let the record reflect that Mr. Couch was not...did not ask
to be recognized.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I responded without recognition.
MR. GOODE: Well, you know, Mr. Chair, if it would help, I did have one thing the Staff brought up to
me this morning was that if we just fund the analysis and perhaps put the actual cost, say that's
about 100,000, put the actual cost to the unit on the side, not include it in this budget, we could
live with that. There is a downside risk. You know, if push comes to shove and we gotta hurry
and put something in that we gotta...obviously gotta come back through Committee and get that
appropriation, I'm not real keen on having 40-plus prosecutors sweating next door. But, you
know, if that would help your deliberations here, that's something we can live with.
CHAIR WHITE: So you're suggesting we put 100,000 in for analysis and design?
MR. GOODE: Right. And then we would come back once that design has been completed, analysis
complete, and we'd have a more detailed cost estimate based on which direction we're gonna go
and we'd come back and say, you know, we need 550-, we need 350-, 750-, whatever it's gonna
be.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair is open to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I don't mind that, yeah. Again...
CHAIR WHITE: I think that makes sense.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Makes sense.
CHAIR WHITE: Because it...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So reduce that number to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

hundred?

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --six hundred?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Reduce 600.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that right, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm trying to find it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's over there on Line -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 1242.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --1245 and 1241.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Reduce by?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So reduce the 600-.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so the Chair's recommendation is to increase the reduction from 400- to 600-.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Mr. Chair? Would that, Mr. Goode, would that also affect
1245, the Old Courthouse reroofing? 'Cause I kinda thought was that was gonna be done
simultaneously. No?
MR. GOODE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. So that could be still done without -MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --having any effect on this kind of work?
MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 'Cause I'd sure hate to do one thing and then have to go redo it
after that.
MR. GOODE: Me, too.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Goode.
MR. GOODE: Okay, you're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Wait. I have a question -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, don't let him go, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --on the parking lot.
CHAIR WHITE: Hey, that was your deal. If you slept at the wheel, then...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I mean seriously, I mean...
CHAIR WHITE: I know.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Come on.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm just kidding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He's here, I mean real quick, I promise. We were told by
Planning, we don't have to go through this exercise of redoing everything at the War Memorial
parking lot. In other words, you could just resurface -MR. GOODE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for 400,000. Do you think that's something your crew could
achieve, and it may save us a little bit more money?
MR. GOODE: Well I'd sure like to hear the vote on the five-person crew first.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think I got that one, too. Wait, hang on. Ah, you guys, can you
kinda give the five? Please, give me five real...five quick. No, I'm sorry. But I think we're
gonna...never mind, I cannot talk for everybody, stop it. But could you do it at cheaper than
400,000?
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MR. GOODE: Well we have...I'm not aware that we've penciled out the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. GOODE: --how many tons we're talking about here. Though, we have done paving in parking
lots, already. You've seen the work here, we did some...Police station in Lahaina. We actually
did a patch at War Memorial.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, I know.
MR. GOODE: Our first job's -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. GOODE: --in that practice area for the kids.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. GOODE: So, no, yeah, we could definitely do that work -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --with our five-person crew.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Mr. Chair, let the record note that, that's all I'm gonna ask,
that's all.
MR. GOODE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Goode.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait. Just for clarification, Mr. Victorino. You were saying that that's the last
question you're gonna ask today?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you, Mr. Goode -MR. GOODE: Alright, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: --I think that's all we had for you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, David.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then, Members, I believe we had consensus on moving the Kihei Road
Culvert Replacement to bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's 1069?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah...1269.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 1269.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1269, eh. 1069, I was like, wrong page.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next...actually we had a revisit from Mr. Hokama on the Lanai Recycling
paving...or not...Recycling Center paving. And my recollection is that that's all okay with
Mr. Goode. So I believe Mr. Hokama would agree.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So do we have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: And Chair will restore the 5,000 on the Kaunakakai Police Station.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. We...for now the Chair's going to continue to revisit on the $100,000
reduction of the Countywide Drainage Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Number?
CHAIR WHITE: 1311.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 1310...oh, 1311, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And then we had consensus on the move of the bridge project to Highway
Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: The next item is on Page 40, halfway down, 1341. That we'll revisit later. My only
interest is to increase this if we need to. And I'd like...if Member Carroll is watching, would
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you please phone in. And had a revisit for myself on the Countywide park facilities. But now
that we've agreed on the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: District.
CHAIR WHITE: --district amounts, I feel comfortable with this cut. And my recollection is they
haven't spent all the money, yet, this year. So do we have consensus on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. Which one...what number's this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's 1345.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, 1345. It's a reduction of 125,000. Because we're adding 1 point...almost
1.5 million in the other section of Parks and Rec. We feel this is an okay reduction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well the only concern I have is, that 1.5 is gonna go to restrooms
and...
CHAIR WHITE: We're not limiting it to restrooms, though.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well I understand that, but that's what they said. But this also would
include fields and whatnot. So I have a little bit of concern, so I'd like to revisit that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, revisit please.
CHAIR WHITE: So we changed the initials to DC.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: EC, DC.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And I believe the next change is in Page 44, and that was a revisit by
Mr. Victorino, on Line 1468, the Wailuku Gym Improvements. I believe you had recommended
a reduction of 250,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I felt like in discussions with certain parties that that could
be accomplished at 1.7 million. It definitely needs to be taken care of, but I think we could take
a $250,000 reduction.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm willing to sacrifice from my area.
-56-
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CHAIR WHITE: Do we have a consensus on that change?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What was the number?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: One, four, six...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, one forty...no, 1468 is the line number.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Then the next item is on Page 46, Line 1557. Members, this is something that the
Chair feels we need to sustain the deletion on this. And we still have a revisit by DC and GB,
and I would recommend that we don't...that we limit the discussion on this item because it's one
for which we don't have much legal assistance. And this is consistent with the recommittal of
the design fee budget amendment. So we have...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

revisit.

COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: Revisit? Okay. Countywide Equipment is the next one on the upper part of Page 47.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, could we have the Chief-CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:

for the next group, please?

CHAIR WHITE: Chief Murray? Okay. This is a revisit by Members Victorino and Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chief, we need your salesmanship. Tell us why.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sell.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm serious now, you know -MR. MURRAY: Okay.
-57-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the public needs to know. Yes, please.
MR. MURRAY: Chief Jeff Murray, again, representing the Maui Fire Department. You know, these
vehicles, as a matter of fact, I got one of the other ladders being fixed that broke down yesterday;
unsure how long that will be done. So, at this point, we only have one ladder truck on duty. We
have a engine, a pumper truck, that is filling in as the ladder company. As you know, some
discussion about buses and how long it takes to purchase and go through the process, it takes
about two years. And I know it's a high-item-priced vehicle, but it's in dire need of being
replaced. And realize that the ladder truck that is...will be replaced, if you see fit, will move into
a backup status. So we'll spend some time redoing that vehicle to get it up to par, and that would
be in backup status for at least another eight to ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So what--and just so the public to understand--what's the
difference between a ladder truck and a pumper truck? You know, because I think they have to
understand we one ladder truck in this whole County right now, on the island of Maui -MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that does what?
MR. MURRAY: Well a ladder truck is responsible for majority of high-rise situations, either condos or
hotels or business areas like this building that we're in. Also, it is for large industrial areas to
reach firefighting capabilities that unable to reach. You know, like we had the old Kahului
Shopping Center where Ah Fook's burnt, we had our ladder trucks, both of 'em, there that
stopped that fire from getting to the rest of Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. MURRAY: The individual task that the ladder truck companies do are for ventilation of roofs and
what have you during firefighting. So it eliminates some of the dangers within buildings and
occupancies, so that quick access can be done by the engine company. So those things are done
simultaneously while working together. It is a specialized tool like the engine, the fire engines,
they're specialized tools. They have accompaniment of ladders that also go within that. It also
pumps water. The vehicle that we're asking to be replaced is a multiple-use ladder truck. So it
can reach buildings, depend on access and availability of parking and setting up, they can reach
floors from the fourth floor...up to the fourth floor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Up to the fourth floor.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. So we can do a lot of different things with that. It has the capability of
pumping 1,500 gallons of water at a standstill off of that ladder as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this new ladder truck, this 105-foot ladder truck --58-
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MR. MURRAY: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --what is the capability, how high could it reach? Is it only four
stories, also, or...
MR. MURRAY: It all depends on access.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well let's say it's maximum, you got good parking area you can
park and set up and put your...
MR. MURRAY: We can get up to...105 could get up to about the seventh floor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seventh floor.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, right now, in Maui County--and I'm gonna take a wild
guess--we probably got about 60 buildings throughout this County that are four stories or higher.
MR. MURRAY: Oh, at least. I think it's much more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just a wild guess, but the...
MR. MURRAY: I think it's much more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, probably. That's a wild guess -MR. MURRAY: Including all the...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that's why I'm saying, it's a wild guess. Because I know in
West Maui and South Maui, the majority are there.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so, right now, if there's a fire in South Maui and that
responded to that fire, high-rise fire, and something happen in West Maui, how would we
respond at this point?
MR. MURRAY: Well it would be dispatched to the first one -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well obviously.
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MR. MURRAY: --and hopefully they can mitigate what they can, and then it would be redirected back
to the West side. So, right now, yeah, we're pretty strapped.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And that's one of those things, Mr. Chair, I don't think the
people of Maui County deserve. And I think when you talking even if we have to raise rates, if
they know that there are two or three ladder trucks available for especially when you're talking
South Maui, West Maui, two ends of our island, and you got Central right here who's got a
number of high rises, also, I mean to me that's a no-brainer. And I'm gonna fight real hard to
see that put back in somehow someway. But that's my take on that one. Thank you for the
information, Chair...I mean Chief. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Just for clarification, Chief. Is there a ladder truck in Wailea as well?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, there is a ladder truck in Wailea, and that's the one that is broken.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Where's the other?
MR. MURRAY: Lahaina.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Questions, Members? Chief, the concern that I have is, these vehicles aren't all that
old. And I'm concerned that we have million dollar pieces of equipment that after ten years have
to be replaced when they...I know they don't...they go out...
MR. MURRAY: And that's a really good concern. You know, it's based on pump hours, engine hours,
the ladder trucks go through a maintenance schedule from ten hour to fifty, hundred; and then we
have to bring in a company to come and certify the ladder itself and the options that are assigned
to that ladder truck itself. And what you have to realize is the ladder truck is the heaviest item,
the heaviest apparatus, that we have in the Department. And as it rolls through the roads here on
Maui, it has the wear and tear just based on weight alone. So we go through tires quite often on
these vehicles because of their weight and the maneuverability of these vehicles. So realize that
it's an investment over a period of time. And that it has to be up and running and ready to roll at
a moment's notice. And, you know, so we've come in at this point at ten years. Initially we
asked for two ladders, and we were only allowed one to be presented to you. So realize, even if
you allow us to have this one, next year we going be back for another one. Because it's just the
timing of it. And, with a viable backup, it might buy us time to even skip a year if at all possible.
So we're not really sure, but we're trying to do our due diligence in that area.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other questions on the ladder truck?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair, one more quick question.
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How long would something like this take if we said, "yes", today;
you did everything right? And I know you've answered this before, but just for the public who's
watching right now. Quickest turnaround time if we said, "yes", today, approved, got it July 1 st,
the money was available.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, if the money's available July 1 st, which it usually is not, it has to be certified -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: --so we'll go through the process of going out to bid.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: That takes anywhere from six to eight weeks. And then we have to turn around and go
through the specs of all the different companies that have bidded, go through that process and
secure, normally we'll go with the lowest bidder unless they have too much exceptions,
then...it's a long process. We have a group of people that deal with this within our Department.
So anywhere from a year and a half to two years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, you know, with that in mind, Chair, if we don't move on this,
I would hate to see our time share and hotel and condo owners be more upset at us when it burns
down, Chair. So I think I can justify some increases by saying, baby, we'll get another fire truck
available to protect your property. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Mr. V.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let me just...two things. One is, it's only...life expectancy's about ten
years, right?
MR. MURRAY: Where it starts to break down is around ten years.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. We can have it a life expectancy of 20 years if the maintenance goes with that
as well; but that is costly, it comes out of our admin maintenance program. And we have to
prioritize once it's becomes a backup on how we're gonna utilize that funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So when...if you kept up the maintenance, when would it become a
backup, after ten years?
MR. MURRAY: After ten years. Anywhere between ten and twelve years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So essentially it's not a...I mean when we go to bond, we usually try to
do something for 20 or 25 years, right, Mr. Chair? So that's maybe a different area.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For a bond, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Well we...I believe it's permissible to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: --we're just using our bonding capability.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
CHAIR WHITE: But you're right, it's generally for longer term -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --assets, but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's...
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, go, Mr. Baz.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you. For criteria for equipment, it's ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: No less than ten-year lifespan for equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But the bond is for a 25-year bond.
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MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. BAZ: On average...well no, it's not...it's an average life of about eleven-and-a-half years for the
bonds. We can go into a whole big discussion, but-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we...
MR. BAZ: --maturity of bonds, the maximum is 20 years, so we...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, gotcha. Alright. Then, Chief, you also mentioned that Wailea's
is down now?
MR. MURRAY: It went down yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And Lahaina's is...West Maui's...
MR. MURRAY: Up. It's up, and this 105 is for Lahaina. And Lahaina's...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're gonna move the Lahaina one down to Wailea or...
MR. MURRAY: No. We're gonna keep them in place, keep the companies in place; just replace it with
a backup engine for the time being. We'll try to have parts flown in from the Mainland to
address the issue with Ladder 14.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the Lahaina one is older?
MR. MURRAY: The Lahaina one, I believe, is one year older.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh...
MR. MURRAY: And that has been down, over its lifespan in the last two years, for over eight months
total downtime.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow. Okay, thanks. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair will recommend that we restore that.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Just a...we have...
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Questions on the...yes?
MR. KANESHINA: Just to clarify. We're restoring all the Countywide equipment?
CHAIR WHITE: No, just the ladder truck.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, one by one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The ladder truck, right?
MR. KANESHINA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One by one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We still got six more to go.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, good going.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I see two...
CHAIR WHITE: Well, actually, the two emergency generators -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Generators are in there.
CHAIR WHITE: --we moved to cash.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So the...Chief, if you could give us more information on the pumper?
MR. MURRAY: Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't have ready access to my explanations that you sent.
MR. MURRAY: Alright. It is my understanding that you folks already approved one of 'em that we
asked for, yeah. We had three of these -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
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MR. MURRAY: --type of apparatus. Okay. So this pumper is for the Wailea area. The two that we
asked for came in at the same time, so we're asking for replacement at the same time. The
Wailea Station and Makawao Fire Station. These pumpers have high use. They're in fairly good
shape at this point. We just put the one that you approved back on line, it was down for two
weeks, the week before last. And Wailea's experiencing the same problem with this fire engine
as well. And, over a period time, you know, we wanna be able to have viable backups as well.
So, again, if we go through the year-and-a-half, two-year process of this truck, in the next two
years, I can assure you that we will be having much more problems and a lot more downtime.
And that's the whole reason why I provided this body with the fleet management program and
how our thought process and how the National Fire Protection Association looks at those items
and really looking at seeing if we can hold on to these trucks to about 20 years on backup. So
it's not just for the time being, it is to be held, you know, as long as we can...as those vehicles
are viable and within the code for fire trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, so the two that you're talking about, we approved one.
The two that we're replacing, how old?
MR. MURRAY: Ten years.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Both of them are ten years old?
MR. MURRAY: Actually going...they're eleven years already, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eleven years. So this one would be located in Wailea?
MR. MURRAY: This one would be specifically for Wailea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the other new one would be in Makawao?
MR. MURRAY: Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then the other two that are...would be like, I mean, backups
again?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You always move to the backups...
MR. MURRAY: We always move to the backup. We just lost two backups in the last three months:
blown engines, blown pumps, things...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: How old were those?
MR. MURRAY: Those were pushing 20.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Whoa.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: In fact, we had one's 22 and one is 20.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Again, Chair, I mean really these -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I cannot argue. Alright, this is something we really need for our
communities. And whether it's Wailea or Makawao, it doesn't make difference in my mind. It's
needed equipment. And when you talking 20-year backups and 10-year original or what's being
used right now, life expectancy, I think they've done a pretty good job, Chair. So I'd like to see
that restored.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the reason the Chair put one in was that one had 81,000 miles and the other had
like 45- or 50-. We're looking for the correspondence. But you know, again, I...
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, I appreciate that point. We did try to figure out a formula to distinguish
between engine hours as well as mileage. And our mechanic shop just could not come up with a
rule of thumb. But the engine hours on that pumper is up as opposed to the mileage. It's a real
tough balance to explain, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would that...excuse me. Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Would that would be counted as that maybe it was used more at
one location --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --by fighting fire for four days at one location -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, it probably didn't move.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so maybe only went five miles, but it fought fires for four days.
And like certain brushfires, within a confined area -MR. MURRAY: Right, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --this one running back and forth to ten brushfires that were
25 miles away. I mean I don't know.
MR. MURRAY: Right, exactly. That's exactly how it could turn out.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: So the numbers don't always jive with...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Miles-wise...
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Again, Mr. Chair -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --again, miles -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and age is really important, I think, in this factor more than
SO...

CHAIR WHITE: I understand. Chief Murray?
MR. MURRAY: Uh-huh?
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CHAIR WHITE: How many pumpers do we have?
MR. MURRAY: Frontline pumpers, we have 14.
CHAIR WHITE: And how many backups?
MR. MURRAY: We did have four backups. We do only now have two, and two of 'em need to cycle
out. We have backups on each island, which we never had in the past. So it's there for those
reasons as well.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair's gonna just mark that as a revisit for now, because I just...I wanna
find my papers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And then we have a revisit on the emergency generators, but we moved -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --those to cash.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus on that.
CHAIR WHITE: My feeling is that if we're gonna go ahead with, you know, the bond, maybe we
should move it back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Move it back to bonds?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine, if you wanna do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that what you're saying?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --are you suggesting that right now or...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Well let's move it back.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Restore? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So at the same time, Mr. Chair, we're gonna delete 'em out of the cash
side, then?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So we have 180,000 to play with.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And that's going back to bond?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (Long pause) . . . Sorry, I'm looking for the...I have the item now. Yeah, it
would be...the Makawao pumper...actually, Chief, the one that I deleted was the Wailea one not
the Makawao one.
MR. MURRAY: Right. Yeah, that's true.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Appreciate it.
CHAIR WHITE: Well it's because the Makawao one has 81,000 miles versus 61,000 on the Wailea
one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I can go with it. It's closer to me.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I said I can agree with that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair will recommend restoring the 750-.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: What a shock. Okay. Then the next item. I think that's all for you, Chief Murray.
MR. MURRAY: Well I'd like to take this opportunity to say -CHAIR WHITE: Actually, no.
MR. MURRAY: --thank you very, very much.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, before you go, as I mentioned earlier, you had sent in a list of...Members, the
item...oh, I don't have a...there's a transmittal on April 26 th from Mr. Baz attaching an
April 24th communication. It's the same one in which he gave us the priority list for his
positions.
MR. MURRAY: I believe it was titled, Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Miscellaneous Questions.
CHAIR WHITE: And, in that, he provided us with the list of the vehicles that were not approved but
requested. So if you could just address...give us your top two priorities there?
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MR. MURRAY: Alright. Thank you for that opportunity. It would be on the last page of the
attachment. The two top priorities would be the Battalion Chiefs, because they respond 24-7 and
they are the commanders on duty until the rest of us arrive. And if you can see Battalion 1, the
vehicle 128,000 miles as of last week.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it's actually almost 130-.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. So I'm sure, by today, it's 130-. But if we could ask for the Battalion Chief,
both of 'em...you know, actually, yeah, it's a tossup. The two Battalion Chief vehicles in
Utility 7, 'cause Utility 7, we have to dispose of 'cause of the frame and crossmembers are
completely rotted out. I believe Councilmember Carroll has copies of those photos, 'cause
Utility 7 protects his district.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that correct, it's only got 20,000 miles on it?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. It's in Hana.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, okay. That...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
MR. MURRAY: And, you know, it's a Sport Trac. I won't give out the brand. But the issue is when
you go to the low bidder, sometimes you get...and then we try to buy it more than one to save
money, and then we end up in a situation like this. Plus, it doesn't have the towing capability
that the replacement would have. So we had to send in vehicles that are larger GVW to do the
hauling for them. And that specific vehicle does access in from Hanamanu Bay all the way to
Kahikinui. So we need a four-wheel drive vehicle that can actually handle that task for that
jurisdiction.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, any questions for the Chief? Members, this is one of those items I
feel we should hold off for a little while until we see maybe the next round of balancing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What page are you looking at?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm looking at his transmittal.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: There's nothing in the, currently, in the budget recommendation. They didn't make it
through the Mayor's review. But it sounds to me like we've got one that we need to replace at
least.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: So...okay, so any questions for the Chief? Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for the opportunity and thank you for your support.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chief. Staff, if you could just remind us as we go into the next round, I
would appreciate it that. Members, the two 30-ton super dumps, Mr. Goode agreed that he could
work with local trucking companies to provide the -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --the support. So the Chair would like consensus on that deletion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, was that after he submitted this?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I don't recall... okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it was last night.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Last night.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh. Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: It was at a time that the others of us were awake. So consensus on that removal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: And...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Revisit.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, revisit on the next one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, revisit the dump trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, revisit on the super dumps, please.
CHAIR WHITE: He said that he doesn't...it's okay with him not to buy those this year --
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, he did.
CHAIR WHITE: --and use local trucking companies to haul the material instead of the small County
trucks that he was complaining about.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm gonna buy one and rent it to this County.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I know. Ms. Cochran and I are going into the trucking business.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're gonna buy one and rent it to you. Okay, consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: I think there's some sort of restriction on that. Okay. Yes? So we have consensus on
that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, thank you. And we'll revisit the striping [sic]/marking remover truck. Okay,
Members, Staff is referring me to Page 41. Go back a bit. And on Line 1376, so we are
moving...okay. So these are General Fund, right? Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: No, well...
CHAIR WHITE: They're under the General Fund. So we're moving... Staff's recommendation is to
move the Wakea Avenue and Wells Street rehabilitation back to Bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Because?
MR. KANESHINA: Well, Mr. Chair, just to clarify. You know, because when we were talking about
that earlier today about that $1 million add back for the buses, we had to free up Highway Fund
cash.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. KANESHINA: So Staff isn't recommending anything, to clarify. But, you know, that would be
the two places where we could free up Highway Fund cash and by moving those to Bond.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. So the Chair's recommendation is to come up with $1 million in cash for the
buses by moving Wakea Avenue and Wells Street back to Bond.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just that one?
CHAIR WHITE: No, there's one more on another page. So do we have consensus on that?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then the next one is on Page 40, Line 1356. And we'll do the same thing
there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus? Okay. . . . (Short pause) . . . Okay. Back to Page 47. There's a revisit
from Mr. Couch on the Liquor Department Office Improvements. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think Mr. Victorino had spoken as well. That's the bulletproof
windows and whatnot?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it's the security upgrades and...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's at the Trask Building?
CHAIR WHITE: I believe so, yeah, at their current office location.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: And the Chair has a little bit of a question on this, too, because I don't know if we're
doing the same thing for protecting others in our community or others in our various satellite
offices.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, like the Motor Vehicles Department, which is...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What about us?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What about us?
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, I just have to remind you guys we can't be talking all at the same time, because
the recorder's not gonna work. Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Actually, they looked at the Real Property Tax Division as the other
main cash collection area. And they do have that same bulletproof windows and stuff like that
over there. So the security level is, at Real Property Tax, is what they're trying to work towards
at Liquor Department, from my understanding.
CHAIR WHITE: And do we have it at the DMV offices as well?
MR. BAZ: No. The DMV, to secure the DMV, I think would be very, very difficult because just the
large number of people that they have coming in there.
CHAIR WHITE: But I guess my question is, do we spend the money to protect only the ones that are in
small offices that are collecting a lot of...but DMV collects a lot of money, too.
MR. BAZ: You're correct, Mr. Chair. I'm not sure.
CHAIR WHITE: So...
MR. BAZ: The security cameras and things like that will definitely help, but yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Although, Mr. Victorino did have I think...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He's good, with reservations.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know, I seem to recall Mr. Victorino had a concern as well, and
he's not here right now. But I may be wrong.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Does anyone else remember him voicing a concern?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I believe that Mr. Victorino had a concern on the deletion of
the expansion positions in the Liquor Department -CHAIR WHITE: No, not...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --not -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --in particularly this section.
-75-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we do have a revisit from him on the other...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm good.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next...on Page 50, we had a revisit from Mr. Hokama on the Waikamoi
Flume repair/replacement. We did get a further explanation...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What page, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fifty.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. Page 50, Line 1683.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus on this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We had consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I didn't...we were asking him questions about that -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR WHITE: --last night, so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. . . . (Short pause) . . . Okay, the next, changes on 55. It's basically the State
lifeguards moving back to Parks, so that's a revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: And the corresponding move on Page 60, Line...at the very bottom of the page,
Line 2029. Revisit.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Page 60.
CHAIR WHITE: Bottom of Page 60, Line 2029.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: It's a corresponding move. And then we had a revisit on Page 62 [sic] from
Member Cochran regarding the Planned Review, Permit Processing in Revolving Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait, sorry. What? Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: On Page...oh, did I say 62?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, you did.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, 67.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, that's different.
CHAIR WHITE: Line 2265.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Two, two, six...that was in reference to additional inspectors -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Inspectors, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --which is sorely needed. As I can just speak for my end of the
island.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Amen.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And Lanai, I think Mr. Hokama voiced his issues, also, with lack of
inspectors. And there's...I mean they can only do so much. And -CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --we need extra eyes and ears out there.
CHAIR WHITE: So is this -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And he pointed out the -CHAIR WHITE: Did we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --section that sorta does. But it looks like it's being already used
for 14 E/P, currently, the entire amount of...
CHAIR WHITE: Well it's limited to 14, so the question is whether -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, limited.
CHAIR WHITE: --whether that fund can handle an increase over that. So we'll...are you
recommending the addition of one? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, Mr. Spence was here this morning, and he didn't feel that, you
know, we had asked him to testify; but I know he's ready if we want to talk to him.
CHAIR WHITE: Well let's call him.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It isn't that department.
CHAIR WHITE: You know what? Why don't we...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry. This is DPW, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is Public Works?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: These guys belong to Public Works?
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yes...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sorry, wrong guy.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: These are grading/permitting people. So that would David Goode.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That would be David.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: . . . (Inaudible) . . . elevator...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: He can come back, I'm sure.
CHAIR WHITE: Do you wanna call him back now?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: If he's available. I know it's lunch, but maybe we can catch him.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Get it done and finish.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we only have two more items.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. While we're waiting for Mr. Goode, the next two items are Line--on the very
last page--71. We have added the proviso requested by Member Hokama stating, provided that
$1 million shall be for planning, design and engineering of the Lanai Affordable Housing
Project, Phase I.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And then we had a revisit on the Economic Development Revolving Fund
from Member Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What, you're over it?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm over it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Member Couch.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: I didn't realize you were such a pushover, Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I think he meant lunch.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: He just wants lunch. He's getting old.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, we gotta wait for Goode?
CHAIR WHITE: So we have nothing more on this until Mr. Goode gets here. So let's just take a recess
while we're waiting for him. Just stay in your seats, please. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

12:02 p.m.

RECONVENE:

12:06 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order. In our effort
to contact Mr. Goode, he's on his way to Wailea. What I've asked...well I think it...anyway,
what I've asked Mr. Baz to work on with Mr. Goode and Rowena is to take a look at the status of
that Revolving Fund, because it's been shrinking. Our sense is that with building permits
starting to pick up again, that it's likely to start growing again. But before we make a decision, I
would like their recommendation as to whether they feel that the fund will sustain it; and, also,
what do they need. Do they need one or do they need more? So I don't think it's appropriate for
us to just do it on the fly. So we'll ask them to work on it during lunch, and possibly have
Rowena come back at 1:30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Perfect.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So, with that, we are in recess -MR. KANESHINA: What time?
CHAIR WHITE: --until 1:30. Thank you, Staff. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

12:07 p.m.
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RECONVENE:

1:43 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order. Members, we
are getting down to the final crunches. And so, as we go through this time, the Chair will be
requesting consensus. In the absence of consensus, we will go to a vote, in hopes of getting
through as much as we can this afternoon. And our plan is to take our dinner recess starting at
4:30, we'll be back in the Chambers for the Real Property Tax hearing chaired by Council
Chair Baisa, and we will plan on recessing to 7 o'clock in hopes that the public testimony will be
over by then. If it's not, then we'll reconvene and recess again until the time we think we can
come back and finish up. So with that, Members, let's move ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:

Public Works?

CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yes. Thank you. And that is back on Page 67, if I recall right. Yeah. Page 67,
Line 2265. And, Ms. Dagdag and Mr. Baz, have you come to some conclusion?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the prior discussion was on the use of the Building Permit Revolving Fund
for...no, wasn't...yeah, it was the Building Permit Revolving Fund for use to be able to hire
additional representatives, additional staff, to alleviate some of the issues that Member Cochran
was discussing. And we looked at the Revolving Fund itself and the burn rate. Last five years,
average expenditures has been $640,000 per year while the average annual revenue has been
$780,000 per year. The last two years, which is actually, you know, three-and-a-half years ago,
the average expenditures were 846,000 and revenues, 844,000. Those were kinda the lowest
economy points, I think, it was the last couples of years in permits. So we're still looking at,
even though the balance as of June 30, 2012 was $31/2 million, we're bringing in pretty much as
much revenue as we're expending. So, at least from a budgetary perspective, adding two E/Ps to
this fund won't significantly draw down the fund balance immediately, it'll take many years
before that actually happens.
CHAIR WHITE: What is the current fund balance?
MR. BAZ: 6/30/12 was 31/2 million, and we're projecting the balance of 6/30/2013 to be 4,066,415...or
no, $3,391,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, discussion? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So okay, first of all, I just need to know from Public Works if they
feel that this is a needed addition to the Department. 'Cause I have not heard a definitive, yet.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay, Chair and Councilmember Cochran. Rowena Dagdag-Andaya from
Public Works. We actually had a discussion with Staff on this, maybe on Monday. And it
wasn't, in fact, it's pretty timely. Because one of the questions that both the Director and I had
was on the timing of the inspections, especially as it relates to miscellaneous inspections and
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being able to prepare reports and giving them out to the customer in a timely basis. We had a
chance to think about it overnight, after you'd brought it up on the Council floor, about whether
or not we should include additional staff for inspections. At this time, we feel we're sufficient in
that area as far as inspections go. However, what would really help us is adding a position or
two for our coordination of any kind of request for services that we have coming in, which also
involves inspectors. The reason is because whenever an RFS comes in, our inspectors do a lot of
the research onto the property or onto the structures. An RFS, I'm sorry. An RFS is actually a
request for service. So these RFSs could be for miscellaneous inspections, RFSs could also be
for a potential grading, building permit electrical or plumbing violation. So whenever that
request comes in, what happens is, the inspector does an initial research or conducts research on
previous history. So that takes a lot of their time. And then they go out into the property,
inspect, come back, create a report and then that report gets drafted and is sent to the consumer.
So a lot of the times...not a lot, but a portion of their work involves doing research. And if we're
able to find someone who could alleviate them of having to do the research prior to going out
and doing the inspection, then we would be able to kinda catch up on our inspections.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Follow up, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Please, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So my big issue, and the reason why I even bringing this to light, is
because of the large projects. There is one humongous project going on in West Maui, in
particular, and this is why it's very near and dear and I'm passionate about trying to get
inspectors here. Your very own inspector told me when I was up there, the magnitude of this
project needs somebody on site every day. It is constantly changing and it's just so huge that
someone needs to be watching and there needs to be oversight. But there's only one person to
take care all of West Maui and all of Lanai. So a body to alleviate these smaller ones. I'm not
calling anything, you know, manini or anything; all of 'em need to be looked at. But I'm
wanting to find out how can I get larger projects that need the oversight done.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh. Yeah, and Chair and Councilmember Cochran, it kinda goes back
to that RFS Coordinator position. We currently have someone on staff who works with the
construction inspectors, and that person typically does a lot of the research and writing the
letters, but if that person was kinda relieved of any of those duties, then that person could assist
that Construction Inspector on the job, be like the second eyes there or be that person who can
fill in when that particular inspector has to go out to a different site. So that's one of the reasons
why we'd kinda be looking towards getting an additional person on staff just so that we could
free up some of that need to prepare our reports or do research. That's just so that another person
on staff could go and assist with the larger projects.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I don't know. Go ahead, pass.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair; and thank you, Ms. Andaya, for being here. I
guess this would be more for Mr. Baz or possibly Mr. Ueoka. If those positions that she's
talking about, would they be able to come in under this fund? Because they're part of the
inspection team, inspector's team. Or could they, Ms. Andaya, could they be inspectors and be
like relief inspectors? You know, their primary job is the research, but then maybe they can go
out and do the job, too?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I think we're looking at Chapter 16, that's specifically for building permits.
And I also wanted to make mention of that, too; and we have Chapter 18, which is Subdivisions.
So I think the one that Councilmember Cochran was referring to, the issue that she was having,
was relating to an inspector who would be working under Chapter 18. And I mean we could...I
think there's some flexibility. I mean if we're able to gain some flexibility on this, then I think
we could make it work where...but you're looking at someone who is doing both inspections and
also researching at the same time, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would that be a feasible solution?
MR. BAZ: Want me to read the Code? Mr. Chair? I can read the Code, Member Couch, if you want to.
It says...it's 16.26B.108.2.1, it says, there is hereby established and created a fund to be known
as the "Plan Review, Permit Processing, and Inspection Revolving Fund." The fees collected
pursuant to this subsection are hereby deemed appropriated upon receipt and may be expended
for salaries, training, contracts, rent payments, fixtures, materials, supplies, and equipment that
facilitate plan review and for the payment of overtime for plan checking, permit processing, and
inspections.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And that's a kind of a big, catch-all and inspections. Inspections of
what?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: For the Building Permit Fund, it would be for building permits.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So inspecting the plans or going out and inspecting the...
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Inspecting the plans...or, no, inspecting on site, that's what it...there's
a...we have a Plan Checker -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --and they check the plans as they come in when someone applies for a
building permit. And then, inspections, that's handled by a different section. But that would be
all under...captured under this Building Permit Revolving Fund. But I also wanted to make
mention that we also have a Subdivision section that also does inspections. And so I think the
one that...the inspection that Councilmember Cochran was referring to comes out of that section
that deals mainly with subdivision, construction inspections.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So solving your issue will not solve her issue. So it's two separate
issues at this time. You still need positions for the RFS research, et cetera, and possibly relief
inspectors -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --which seems reasonable, but it doesn't help the situation that she's
looking for.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: It could potentially--I'm sorry, Chair and Councilmember Couch--it would
potentially help the construction inspections. But when I say, "construction inspection", that's
the Subdivision section.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I think we'd need to maybe discuss this a little bit amongst staff and also
with Corp. Counsel on how we're able to do this between the two sections. Because there's two
separate funds that we're dealing with. But if we have some kind of flexibility put in here, then
what we could do is alleviate some of the research work that the inspectors do so that they can
spend more time out in the field doing the inspections. And that's for both, the subdivision
construction as well as building permit or electrical or plumbing type of inspections.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: But, again, I think that's another discussion that we'll probably need to
have with Corp. Counsel or with the Budget Office.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Any thoughts at this moment, Mr. Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Of course not.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, and I've been listening very
intently to my colleagues. And I did go to your vacancy list; and both the one that you supplied
us, Sandy, and the one that was supplied by the Mayor's Office, have quite a number of positions
that are open. Not all fitting what you want. But I've heard my colleagues say about shifting
positions and redescribing and all these other stuff. And, you know, I'm looking at some of
these positions and I can see where some of that could be redescribed for some of that stuff. My
question to you is, with all these vacancies that you have available and if your list, Sandy, says,
-84-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

one, two, three, four, five, six, seven and it's one position that's filled--applicant's starting date
4/1/13 I guess--and then one more was waiting for pre-employment physical--I don't know how
that one turned out, that one I guess is as of 5/1--but all the rest are open positions. You know,
you posted 'em, you're looking for people. Could this, again, you know, to keep it simple,
because you have these open vacancies, could some of these positions be shifted and people be
moved or hired for that purpose under some of these Sub Codes and changes? I mean I asking
you, Ms. Andaya, as far as that is concerned.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well I know, for these positions that are currently open, Division Chief,
we're actively -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Looking for somebody, yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --looking for someone, and that's a separate type of role. The Plumbing
Inspector II or Building Inspector, Electrical Inspector, they're all in process right now. So I
believe that DPS is still kinda whittling down the list -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --and then eventually they'll take a test, they'll be doing the test for it. The
Permit Clerk, that's another one. In that office... see, we kinda looked at that one as the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --one potential area. But we still need permit clerks to intake and also to
do some of the work in the permit clerk office. That, in fact, that one would have to be...if we
were to take that position and redescribe it, that would involve a higher, a much higher, SR level.
So that's one -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, understood, yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: --that's one area. However...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, the possibilities of moving people within your, you know.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, your application, your vacancy list is there. And,
again, some don't have that option, but you guys seem to have some options in that respect to
fulfill what their concerns are. You know, that's why I'm asking. 'Cause, you know, each
department as they come in and talk about vacancy...I mean, you know, new expansion
positions, I quickly look at their vacancy list. And some, like in the Highways and those areas,
very few, you know, really limited numbers. Here, you got a more extensive number, you know,
not that it solves everything. But if you do it, it is possible, right?
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Well I know for the list that we have right now, it's pretty much
not...they're currently in progress. So we anticipate filling them soon, I mean for these specific
positions.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, but that clerk could...that DSA Clerk could help. You
know, again, you upgrade it, but you could kinda fulfill some of the paperwork -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --so the inspectors could be out there more often, right? Or
something of that nature.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You could reallocate, and that's all we're looking for now instead
of expansion. Right, Mr. Chair? We'd like to fill what we got, and maybe be able to utilize 'em.
In the private sector, that's what we do. We kinda look for people to kinda move in different
positions and help us in certain areas. And, you know, if it's higher upgrade, then, you know, we
upgrade 'ern accordingly. But, you know, we try to take what we have and use that first. And so
I think this is what we've been discussing the last few days, you know. If your Department has
it, great. Some departments don't. Maybe we have to take positions...and that's another thing,
maybe we got some positions we can shift over to you guys, you know, so...but you're amenable
to that idea if we'd help you find some of these things for your people?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I think we'd be open for discussion on that, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And that's fair enough. Thank you, Ms. Andaya.
CHAIR WHITE: The question the Chair has, Ms. Andaya, is currently, there are 14 E/Ps allowed in the
Revolving Fund. If you are...I think all of us wanna help solve the problem of making sure that
projects are properly inspected. But my sense, Ms. Cochran, is this is...because this is a
revolving fund, the monies are gonna be there and I would rather maybe refer this to Committee
and they can work on how to solve the problem.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: And rather than us doing anything with the E/Ps now, and I would rather put this back
on their plate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's fine.
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CHAIR WHITE: If you're okay with that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that'll work. That way they can sift through things and
figure things out and come up with options.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And we all can decide as a body to choose the right one.
CHAIR WHITE: So would that go to Mr. Couch's Committee -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Infrastructure, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: --or is it Infrastructure?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's mine
CHAIR WHITE: That's right. So it'll...this is gonna be your Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So that's even more perfect.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So Ms. Andaya has a comment I guess.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Ms. Andaya?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay. Chair and Councilmember Cochran, yeah, I just wanted to reiterate
that we did note this as an issue that we're trying to tackle in our Department. And so we've had
meetings regarding, in fact, we had a meeting on Monday regarding our process in trying to
figure out where some of these areas can be kinda tightened up a little bit or if we can identify
staff who can take on some additional responsibilities to try to help out, in that sense, and try to
alleviate some of the work being done. We are kind of testing out a new process right now, so
it'll be a few months before we can kinda determine how that process is working. So I would
like to ask, you know, we look at our performance measures or establish some internal
performance measures in addition to the ones that are created in this budget and see how we're
working towards that. And maybe in the next fiscal year we can have an additional discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. Thank you for the efforts. For me, right now,
it's a actual project as we speak, it's ongoing and there's issues. And I need coverage and I need
people. So that is why I'm very, very adamant to try and figure this out, the sooner than later.
Because your inspectors already know my concerns.
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MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, also, just off the top of your head, how many subdivision
inspectors do you folks have? If you know that.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: I have to count. Subdivision...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And just whenever you get the figure.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Okay. Construction inspectors, we have one--oh, no, construction--one,
two, and...that section is about four.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I guess it breaks down, like, per district, too. You have certain
people assigned only to inspect districts?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And they are.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: West Maui, Lanai is one or two guys?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: With one person, uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And then -MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And then...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --so we have nine districts, so 18?
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't know, yeah.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: And what we tried to do as well is if there are opportunities for another
construction inspector to assist, then the staff...I mean we reassign or we have both inspectors
going out at the same time to that one area. So maybe what we could do is kinda find, like,
priority areas or for projects such as the one that you had mentioned and then, you know,
internally, we can talk about the process and determine a way to do the inspections so that
they're done appropriately or...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And just a follow-up comment to that. To educate or bring up to
speed or clue that particular inspector in on the project, too, would be helpful.
MS. DAGDAG-ANDAYA: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It. _that. ..
CHAIR WHITE: Can we do this off line?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. But anyways, just a comment. Thank you. I'm done, Chair.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Thank you very much. Okay, Members, we are gonna start at the top. And on
the Office of County Council...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What page, Chair, again? Back to the front?
CHAIR WHITE: Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 3, okay. Back to Page 3, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Again, as all of you know, these are Program Budgets. So rather than going line by
line in some of these, if there...like to get consensus on...if you look at the Council line, it says,
5,366,036. The Chair would be amenable to...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Line?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Column E, Line 101.
CHAIR WHITE: Column E, Line...yeah, 101.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: 101.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 101, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Right. So rather than to getting into discussion about what position's in, what
position's out, the Chair would recommend that we add back $100,000 to that line to bring it
to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: --5,466,036. And the Chair is -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: --the Chair is able to do --
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: --I mean 'cause it's a Program Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Okay. So we are...oh shucks. Where's my letter? You know,
there's some days I wish I was down at one of those desks where you got...you don't have to
keep track of 100 different things.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I share your pain. During General Plan, I went through it.
CHAIR WHITE: Let me just take a quick recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

2:09 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:12 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee will come back to order.
Members, on Page 6, Solid Waste Operations, we have transferred over 5 million to Solid Waste
Operations. We have a letter back from the Director stating that they have been using the tarp.
And that first number there is, the 400,000 number, that we reduced the cost for the cover
material. And they're saying that they are using the tarp and they can use it on most days. They
still don't have full approval from the Department of Health to use it going forward. So I
don't...the letter doesn't state when that approval will come or not. But the, again, we have one
of those big number questions. We transferred $5 million into that fund this year, and they're
projecting to have $3.7 million Carryover at the end of this year. So the question, again, is
whether or not we should keep the cut here and move along, and they can come back for a
budget amendment. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well this is where you said if we don't get consensus, we're gonna do a
vote, is that right?
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. The reason I asked for a revisit on this is that, yes, that 400,000
can kinda be eaten up in the Carryover. But there's also the 700,000 with the drop-box program
that wasn't budgeted for this time, because of the private sector out there doing some of the
drop-box stuff. So my concern is still that's another 700,000 that...so you're looking at
1.1 million, and that's little...getting iffy.
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that's a good point. Staff, do you...would you concur with Mr. Couch's
analysis?
MR. KANESHINA: We'd have to look into it. But I heard a bunch of different things. I heard it was
out, then it was in and they could do it internally. But I really don't know. I really wouldn't be
able to offer any more specific details.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. And having talked with the Director just recently, if we can
leave the 400-, then they can figure out if that's enough to do the...but to possibly have a 1.1,
that might be tough. That's my concern. So, Mr. Chair...
CHAIR WHITE: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Before he makes his motion, how much carryover did you say
they were having, right now, that they were anticipating?
CHAIR WHITE: They're projected to have 3 7 million carryover -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 3 7 million -CHAIR WHITE: --by the end of this year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --by the end of this year?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Of course that's, you know, that gets rolled into the next year's budget. So
it...they're starting off with that 3.7. So, yeah, to say that...all I'm saying is that they have that
carryover, but that carryover is gonna...is built into this budget as well.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As part of this budget, too, Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, are you referencing the Carryover/Savings that we're recognizing in this year's
budget?
CHAIR WHITE: I believe so.
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MR. BAZ: Okay, that Carryover/Savings was from two years ago. So that was unexpended
appropriations or extra revenue that was part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget that's recognized in
the CAFR. So...
CHAIR WHITE: And what are you anticipating...what was your estimate for the...at the end of this
year, what they'll have left over?
MR. BAZ: Let me get that to you. But when I checked the Solid Waste Operations Program itself, they
were already overspent. At the third quarter, they were at 19.6 percent balance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So I'm hearing two different figures.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, again, this is one of those areas where we transfer money in from the General
Fund, right?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, we do. And we proposed the rate increase for the tipping, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: Right. Okay. Well what's your pleasure?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, Mr. Chair, just the procedure now.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This would be where someone would make a motion. And what is the
motion to do, just adjust that line? 'Cause we don't have a main motion on the bill itself or the
exhibit itself. So I'm not quite sure...
CHAIR WHITE: Hold on a second. Can you tell us how much is encumbered and versus expended -MR. BAZ: Yeah, I can pull that up for you. If you give me...
CHAIR WHITE: --and what the balance is?
MR. BAZ: Alright. Just give me a couple minutes here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, while he's looking that up, Mr. Chair, just how are we doing this
procedurally? 'Cause there's no real main motion. Are we just amending this document per
line? Just...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it's gonna...yeah, I think we need to do it by line.
MR. KANESHINA: It's ...excuse me.
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
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MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know, it's really up to the Chair, 'cause he's the, you
know, providing [sic] -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Preside.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Presiding.
MR. KANESHINA: --Presiding Officer of this Committee. But, historically, we've handled it just line
by line like a... similar, like how we do a consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Chair would, you know, someone would make a motion to do up or down, to keep
the cut or to add it back; and then they would just come to a vote and five votes to win.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I'm still looking up that, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. . . . (Short pause) . . .
MR. BAZ: Okay. Yeah. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
MR. BAZ: Okay. So it looks like they were appropriated, the Solid Waste Operations Program, was
appropriated $12,881,000 in Fiscal Year 2013. They had a prior year encumbrance of
$3.8 million left over from Fiscal Year '12. They have $11 9 million in actual expenditures and
a current encumbrance of $2.6 million, leaving a balance of $2 million, which is 15.9 percent.
CHAIR WHITE: And that's as of the end of April?
MR. BAZ: That's as of what's in the computer today.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but is that as of...does that include April?
MR. BAZ: It includes...no. It includes the first payroll in April, but none of the actual operation
expenditures.
CHAIR WHITE: So...
MR. BAZ: I can pull a report that's on a certain date if you want. By the March 31 st date?
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CHAIR WHITE: So if you annualize that expenditure, where does that put them? Anyway, while
he's...
MR. BAZ: If I do it by the third quarter, which is kinda the easiest to go, it would be a March 31 St date.
That would typically leave, if you were annualizing their budget 25 percent leftover, at
March 31 5% they had a balance of $2.5 million, 19.6 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That'd be short 6 percent.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so they're already short 6 percent. There are a number of encumbrances in the Solid
Waste Alternatives Program and those are due to the contracts that they have with the recycling
vendors. And then the other large encumbrances are for the Central Maui Landfill which they
encumber contracts for the trucking and fill and stuff like that, pretty large amounts. I can do
some drill downs if you give me more time.
CHAIR WHITE: No, that's okay. Okay, Mr. Couch, your thoughts?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd certainly like to move to restore this $400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Instead of taking it as a, yeah, instead of doing that the way I think...well,
okay, we'll...the motion has been made by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Baisa to restore the
$400,000 cut. All those in favor, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those against, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: And the Chair votes, "no". Measure passes, five to two.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and Guzman.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
-94-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And, Mr. Couch, if...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That being said, we got that, then I'm fine with the other two lines.
CHAIR WHITE: We have consensus on the other two lines? Okay, let's...do I have a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To what?
CHAIR WHITE: No, to what?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, you just said, you may make a motion to accept the whole
thing.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To delete the two positions, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: No, we're...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're consensus on leaving it as is. Leaving the reduction...
CHAIR WHITE: Wait. Okay, we're on Lines 195 and 196.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: One refers to service contract...or R&M Services and Repairs and Maintenance Others. So Mr. Couch's comment was that he was comfortable with the cuts of the other two
items. So the question is, do we have a consensus to leave these cuts in place?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fine. I'm...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. We'll get better at this as we go. Okay. The Chair's position on
the Service Representatives...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Where are we?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry, Page 7. The Chair's feeling on the Service Representatives, I'm not
interested in adding new employees to the County government and unless it's absolutely critical.
And it's gonna be, I think, very difficult for us in the next 24 hours to go out and find E/Ps
without taking some risk that we're messing with some other department. So the Chair's
recommendation is that we simply...we eliminate these costs, and with the message to the
Administration that if they can come back with a reallocation of other positions from some other
department, let them do the heavy lifting and come back to us with a budget amendment. They
can...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved, Mr. Chair. I move to approve your reductions.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Does everybody understand what I'm -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: --talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Run that by me again -CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --please, sir.
CHAIR WHITE: Instead of establishing new positions and new funding, as we've talked about, we
would rather shift E/P from other areas.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh?
CHAIR WHITE: But rather than us determining where those E/Ps should be reduced and where
they... and in order to be added here, I would rather leave it in the Administration's hands to
figure out where those moves should be...where those E/Ps should be drawn down from. So my
motion would be to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You can't make motions.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, right.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Your recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your recommendation.
CHAIR WHITE: My recommendation...
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, go ahead.
MR. KANESHINA: Sorry to interrupt.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, rescue me, will you?
MR. KANESHINA: You know, the proposal in the budget in front of everybody is, if I understand it
correctly, is to reduce the six positions being requested. So I guess the motion would be to...
CHAIR WHITE: Sustain the reduction.
MR. KANESHINA: No. It would actually be to, you know -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Restore.
MR. KANESHINA: --restore the cut.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: So what's in front of you, now, is the cut. The motion would be to restore the cut.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't think that's what I'm saying.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's not what he's saying.
CHAIR WHITE: Because...
MR. KANESHINA: So if you don't want to restore the cut, then it's fine as is. And you just get a
consensus. If somebody doesn't wanna agree with the consensus, then they would make a
motion to restore the cut.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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CHAIR WHITE: So do we have consensus? I'm confused.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The only question I...oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Hold on a second. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

2:26 p.m.

RECONVENE:

2:27 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . . Thank you for that brief recess. Okay. The Chair's proposal is to
delete the six positions. So do we have consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then we need a motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to restore Lines 225, -26, -27, -28, -29 and -30.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. There's a motion from Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Baisa to restore six
positions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can we have discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, sir. I understand where we're going with this, and I was
just wondering if there's somewhere in the middle we can meet? You know, we've gotta grab
the positions from somewhere else. And I see -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Let 'em figure it out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --your ideas that they're better at finding out where those positions are.
Although, I can...I mean as long as it...my concern is, is it comes back here before we pass this
out in Council, because it's easier if it happens in this body as opposed if it gets messed up in the
whole administrative works. You know, as we heard from Personnel Services that doing it at
that end, you get into all kinds of issues. So if we do it in here, then it's much easier for the
Administration to administer.
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CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was the difference in the time is only the time it would take us to hear
a budget amendment, 'cause the process would be the same.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're saying when they find the positions and they would come
back here and do a budget amendment to this budget -CHAIR WHITE: . . . (Inaudible) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and then we would still be making the changes?
CHAIR WHITE: Right. Yeah. Okay...we have two others that warma...Ms. Baisa followed by
Mr. Guzman.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chair, I totally understand the need to try
and stem the growth of positions. But I'll tell you, I frequently have this habit of going to Longs
in the morning in Kahului. And this morning I was passing at two minutes to 8:00. I looked at
my watch to make sure. And there was a line of about 25 people outside the door of DMV
already. And I'm hearing that this is happening everywhere. And I'm just so afraid that if we
don't do what, you know, what is before us, that, yes, we can sit here and idealistically talk about
doing personnel actions in one hour, but I'm sorry, after seven years, I have never seen or heard
of it. We often hear about, well, I couldn't do it, we didn't have the position description, the
money, this, the union, whatever. I really, really feel that this is a service that our community
treasures. And all of us, whether we like it or not, including myself, gonna wind up in those
DMV lines. And I'm just worried, I don't wanna take it out. At best, I would be willing to
compromise. And for this year, maybe give them a part of what they want and see how it goes
and maybe give them the rest next year. But I really would like us to do something. This is a
big, important thing in our community
CHAIR WHITE: Well, motion on the table is the...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, like I said, if it fails, I'm willing to do part of it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm willing to amend it to the top three.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I could go there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It depends on what Mr. Guzman and everybody has to say.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, on what they want to do.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I look at this as kind of newly discovered
evidence in the middle of a trial. Now --99-
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, dear.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --I definitely agree with the theory of the vacancies and transferring
the E/Ps--from deleting E/Ps from one department and creating from another. But had I received
this type of information prior to going into this session, I probably could have done an adequate
enough research to look for it. But now we're in the middle of this session, and I'm not sure
whether the theories work or not. I'm, at this stage, you know, in a headlock. And I do agree
with your theory. So, at this time and junction, I would propose just going half and just doing a
pilot-type thing. 'Cause I know that they need help over there. And so maybe we could just
propose, make an amendment, propose an amendment, move to amend to half the employees just
as a trial, you know. I definitely wanna see this work, but there's just not enough studies that it
will actually work.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And I appreciate the comments from both of you. Because I think the message
that I would like to send to the Administration and the message I would like to send to you all in
your subject matter Committees is that these kinds of things have to come to us in your subject
matter Committees. Because I don't like doing this kinda discussion with...I was almost gonna
say something that would get bleeped in other areas. Half-baked, I'll change my word.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Decorum will be maintained.
CHAIR WHITE: But half-baked...well, I shouldn't say they're half-baked, because they go through a
lot of process. But for us, we get it really late.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: So, you know, what, you know, this...being my first time through this, sitting up here,
it's a lot more fun than sitting down there I can tell you. Because -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Nah.
CHAIR WHITE: --you can choose what your next move is gonna be and you can sit here and plot and
so on. But, up here, I gotta keep track of what all you guys are doing...gals.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: By the way, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: I didn't say, "monkeys", okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You don't talk about Don like that, don't talk like that. But I was
going second his amendment, by the way. I will second his amendment.
CHAIR WHITE: Well...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I'm fine with making it a friendly amendment. I'm fine with that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And there is...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Motion.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: There's a bunch of ways we could do this. You know, Mr. Couch could just
withdraw and make the new one -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Withdraw.
MR. KANESHINA: --if he gets a second, and then he could make his new motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'm fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I withdraw, okay. So, Mr. Chair, I move to restore Line No. 225,
226 and 227.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Baisa to restore Lines 225, 226 and 227.
Further discussion? Ms. Crivello, followed by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question. The advisement or the comments that came from
Councilmember Guzman that we should have this as a trial. Now, are we accepting these three
positions as permanent positions or are we going for eight months as a temporary to see how it
works? And I'd like to have that clarified. And I'm kinda...I'm where Mr. Guzman is coming
from. If we can come back with a report if this goes through, like how much of a difference it
has made. And I don't know procedures as to how it would eventually become permanent
employees or am I out of whack to even consider be temporary.
CHAIR WHITE: No, there is an option of determining them to be limited-term, LTAs, Limited Term -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Appointments.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Appointments.
CHAIR WHITE: --Appointments, so...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think Ms. Cochran...
CHAIR WHITE: And then, Ms. Cochran, you had a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. I kinda wanted discussion when it was up to the full six,
`cause I think the six bodies were gonna be distributed Countywide, is that right?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So now we're just doing...
CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was it was only in three locations.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: On Maui only?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So no Molokai, no Lanai?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No need.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No need.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No need, those islands? Okay. So okay. I mean I'm good for
getting whoever we can, just the added extra bodies for a service to our community But I heard
Mr. Agsalog, and it's...so I'm good wherever consensus goes here, I'm all good. But...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So the question is whether Ms. Crivello wants to make a friendly amendment
to make them LTAs?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: If that's allowable. But I don't -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That wouldn't be a friendly...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Cannot.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --I don't think that's at the...this is the time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This would be the time.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: This would?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: This is the time. But if you...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well, I may not have the support, but I will submit that as such.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I so move to make the amendment.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair? Excuse me. I think Corp. Counsel wants to blow the whistle on
something.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: I think we should probably check with Personnel Services if we're allowed to just
Limited Term Appointment -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we don't know.
MR. UEOKA: --any old position. Might wanna check with Personnel Services on that.
MR. KANESHINA: Well, Mr. Chair, if I may?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: Just from past budgets, this has come up every year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: And every time we've attempted to meddle with full time or Civil Service or
LTAs, I believe the answer was, we can put the position in as LTA. That is, we'd be good for
that fiscal year. The difficulty that we've heard from the departments is, is that who is gonna
apply for a job on a LTA?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
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CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. KANESHINA: And, you know, maybe they'd get the person for two months and they'll leave or
something. And so, depending on the position, sometimes an LTA will work and sometimes
LTA won't work. But just wanted to share that with you guys.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I do recall that being the challenge. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So further discussion. Through your recollection, how
have that been handled in the past, historically, have LTAs work out? I mean do people use that
as a training route?
CHAIR WHITE: Well we have LTAs in many positions. The question is whether--this is one of the
lower paying positions. So the question that Staff is alluding to is whether or not it's workable to
get people to apply.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'd like to make a motion to amend the motion for the three: 225,
226 and 227 to be LTA.
CHAIR WHITE: Have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll second it for discussion, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a motion by Member Crivello to create these positions as LTAs,
seconded by Mr. Victorino. Discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I understand where Ms. Crivello is coming from, but this one,
this seems to be one of those, as Mr. Kaneshina said, that this one would be tough to do. And
then we would have to make 'em permanent later. The other part of this is, is Mr. Guzman
talked about a quote, unquote trial, and that's what kinda set this motion off. What I'm assuming
he's meaning there--and I'll ask him I mean I'll ask him to elaborate--but my interpretation of
that is that you have three more positions that they want; that's where they can go and find, do
their job to find where those positions are then come to us for a budget amendment. I think
that's the trial that he was talking about, but I'm not sure. That's how I'm interpreting it.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. Yeah, let me clarify. When I said like a pilot,
trial, I meant by give them three and let them research and find the other three E/Ps, and so that's
what I meant.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: But I like the idea of the, my colleague's, I mean in terms of it being
a temporary. I mean that's very good idea.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I would just like to make sure there's a reminder in your minds that this is
probably one of those that we can clearly add to the Homeowner category. Okay. Any further
discussion? All those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What are we doing?
MR. KANESHINA: So the...it's as amended?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As amended.
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is just for the LTAs.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: This is for the amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, for the amendment.
CHAIR WHITE: This is just for the LTA amendment. All those in favor, please signify by saying,
"aye"
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: I will vote "no". So that's five to two. Measure passes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fails.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, fails.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fails.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fails.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, fails, right.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Crivello and Guzman.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and
Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION TO AMEND FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: We're back to the main motion to restore funding to the three positions on Line 225,
226 and 227. All those in...any further discussion on the main motion? Seeing none, all those in
favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have...measure passes, six "ayes", one "no".
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Guzman, and
Victorino.
NOES: Councilmember Crivello.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.

CHAIR WHITE: So we are restoring those three. Okay. Then it would follow that we would change
Line 234 to restore one-half of the $6,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Okay, moving on. The next item is Line 270 on Page 8. And Mr. Couch
had a...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and...
CHAIR WHITE: Is it there?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. Again, this is in the...this is in conjunction with something we
haven't even discussed, yet, all day.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, that's true. It's on the first...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On Page 1, Line 13.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I don't know how. Go ahead.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Kaneshina?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yeah, we should probably leave this one open, because,
you know, if further changes happen in the Solid Waste Fund, we need to keep this open to be
able to balance by fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct. Okay, so I'm fine with that.
CHAIR WHITE: And the one you're alluding to is my reduction of the tipping...or elimination of the
tipping fees, which are on Page 1. And the reason for the reduction is that I heard from the
business community that they feel they're already paying a lot in tipping fees. And as you all
know, this is another one of those things where we put the majority of property tax on
businesses. And of course the tipping fees are businesses and condominiums and other...well
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it's basically the businesses and condominiums. Businesses and condominiums also pay higher
sewage rates; and, in most cases, water rates because they have one meter as opposed to multiple
meters. So the elimination of the tipping fee was my response to the fact that we're already
putting a very heavy burden on the business community whereas on the home pickup side, we're
providing I believe it's about a $6.6 million subsidy. So rather than putting the tipping fee
simply all on the businesses, my intent was to, instead, leave the tipping fee where it is and
increase the transfer from the General Fund into the Solid Waste Fund so that everyone's sharing
the cost. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So in your discussion, you're talking about not eliminating the tipping
fee, you're eliminating the tipping fee increase?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I just wanted to make sure. But well, if we're coming back to
that...
CHAIR WHITE: Well, yeah, we'll come back to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --that on the first page and this page as well. Let me mark that. Okay. Next, we have
Post-Employment Obligations Fund, I think we should leave that for now. As with the transfer
to the Emergency Fund. Okay. Then on Line 310 at the bottom of Page 9, I believe we might
have gotten a response from Fire as to what that Ocean Safety Division Chief might be called. Is
that...what is the...Michele, have you gotten...
MR. KANESHINA: I actually just got a e-mail like -CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: --well, a little while ago from Chief Murray. I saw him in the gallery earlier today,
and I informed him about the consensus that he got for his top two positions plus the
Committee's support for some sort of position to facilitate the move. But we weren't quite sure
what exactly it was. So he e-mailed just now and said, he has a position description for Fire
Battalion Chief, Chief of Aquatics. He says that DPS would still have to specify a specific...he's
not sure if DPS would have to specify a specific position. But we could add the E/P with that
line. And we could just work with Personnel to get the ranges for that salary and we could put it
in, if that's...or I could ask the Chief to come in and explain.
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CHAIR WHITE: I say we just add the E/P and let him deal with it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Figure it from there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus on...but we don't need to change...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: We're not changing any of the decision, we just had a line there that said, Ocean
Safety Division Chief, and we don't wanna name it and...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. But the dollar amount stays, the 69-?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's no amount in there.
CHAIR WHITE: That might be...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: There's no amount for that.
CHAIR WHITE: It's gonna...I believe that's gonna have to go up.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It says right there, Line 310 -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sixty-nine thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Sixty-nine thousand.
MR. KANESHINA: I think the main thing is the position is there.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And my recollection is that there are two clerk positions coming over with the
transfer when Ocean Safety comes over. So the question is, do we really need to add these other
positions at this time? So the Chair's feeling is that the deletions should remain for the ones
listed on -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Page 10?
CHAIR WHITE: Lines 3...no, the ones on Page 9 are already done. So the revisits are on Lines 311,
-12, -13 and -14. And the Chair's position is that these deletions should remain, because they're
gonna be getting additional staff when the Ocean Safety group is transferred over. And they can
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also...they have enough positions in that Department that they can probably reallocate some of
them themselves.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I would like to--you know, I don't know how
many what my colleagues think--but I'd like to make a motion to put back first of all the Chief
Operation Assistant and the Storekeeper I. And I know Storekeeper I was something very
important to the Chief and being able to keep track of the immense amount of inventory that they
have to keep as far as the Department is concerned. So that's my motion, and if anybody wants
to second it, fine. If not, that's fine with me, too. But wanted to add those two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just to clarify?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, just to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just to clarify. You said, Chief Office...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Office Operator [sic] -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So Line 311 and...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --Office Operations Assistant II and Storekeeper. I'm sorry, I
said...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 311 and 313.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 311, 313. Sony, eh? I said, "Chief'. I don't know where I
got that. I thinking of Chief already. Sorry. That's my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: There's been a motion by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Ms. Cochran to restore funding
for the Office Operations Assistant on Line 311 and the Storekeeper on Line 313. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I remember that, you know, Chief did make a real pitch for
the Storekeeper I because of the immense amount of, as I said earlier, of inventory and
keeping...and then being able to keep track of orders. And this is what the responsibility of that
person was. And the Office Operations Assistant would be one that would also assist in this
changeover with the Ocean Safety along with some other operational needs that he would...this
officer would perfonn...this office would perform, I should say. So that's my comments to
those two positions.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The only thing I would like to clarify is that in his letter of April 24th, of the
eight positions requested, you would be correct in...you would be correct that his Office
Operations Assistant was the next -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The third.
CHAIR WHITE: --in line for priority. But the Storekeeper, unfortunately, is priority number eight out
of eight. So if you would like...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What was the next one after that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What was...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, hold on just a second. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The fourth was the Account Clerk III.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So the motion on the floor is the Office Operations Assistant II and the Storekeeper I.
So...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair, I would to move to amend and take out...
CHAIR WHITE: You can...if you wanna withdraw your motion and restate it?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, just restate 'em. Then I'll withdraw and then move to put
in the Office Operations Assistant and Account Clerk III.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 311 and 312.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's the two that...okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So it's Lines 311 and 312.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And 312, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: And that was seconded by...motion made by Mr. Victorino and seconded by
Ms. Cochran to restore funding for those two positions. Any discussion? Ms. Baisa, followed
by Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I can support the motion because these were the Chiefs priorities.
And I just wanted to comment on the fact that we're talking about a couple people coming over
when Ocean Safety comes. My concern is that, you know, who knows when Ocean Safety is
coming. And in the meanwhile--or if they're coming, and we hope they're coming--we don't
know when that is. And there's work to be done, so I can feel comfortable in supporting these
two. It's like, again, it's the compromise of, you don't get it all, but at least you get something.
And I think like a message is going loud and clear, we wanna help you, but we can't give it all.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, you know, we're talking about the vacant
positions again. And both reports are very difficult to read. It seems that the budget of
implementation report is a little bit better, but it's still unclear if these positions are really vacant
or not. So for the fire Department. Ones...there's a group of 'em that are employee and 9,000
series, was that mean they're vacant and then the anticipated field date is unknown...lot of
unknowns. So there appears to be a lot of vacant positions in the Department. And if there's
that many, I'm, you know, I do wanna see those positions come in, but if there's so many of
these vacant within the Department itself, you know, why can't they just pull 'ern from there?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the challenge is that the...my understanding is, when they have a new recruit
class and somebody in training, they're in a FD9000 position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: And it's...the term that I heard was it's a ghost position. So when you're in a training
position, your funding is coming from one of the positions that you will eventually fill. So it is
very confusing; and I think we've all gone through this vacancy list and, yeah, scratch our head a
bit. And maybe Ms. Crivello can provide us additional understanding is that she used to be their
boss.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No. This is my first information about the FD9000 series, but it's
really simple, there's not...that's really not a vacancy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So there's no vacancies even though we have a page...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I think we came up with 14 recruitment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's part of that 9000 series that will start July 1 st, but maybe
Director Baz can give us a better insight.
CHAIR WHITE: Well I think, you know, rather than having Mr. Baz interject. The Chair's feeling is
we're not at a point where we understand these lists. And so I think rather than trying to make
decisions based on those lists, you know, if you all feel that you need to move forward on this -COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --then . . . (inaudible) . . . do that. Okay. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no". We restore all positions...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: -11 and -12.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just -11 and -12.
CHAIR WHITE: Items -11 and -12...311 and 312.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
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ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we have consensus to delete the...or, no, to sustain the...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: -13 and -14?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes. We will leave the cuts to -13 and -14. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next line is 331. The Chair feels that we're adding enough support there
and we...the Chair's position is to leave this as a deletion on that line. Do we have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair still feels that the following four items should remain as a delete.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Which one, which four?
CHAIR WHITE: 332, -3 and -4...-3, -4 and -5.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: -32, -33...-5.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: -2, -3, -4, -5.
CHAIR WHITE: And again, Members, I'm making this motion because this is a Program Budget and
these are not huge numbers in this department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus? I only heard three.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Now the biggie.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Now the big one.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Line 340, Reduce Premium Pay by 607,000. The Chair is still not comfortable
eliminating that. So...or restoring that, I should say.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I know you're not comfortable with restoring that, and
so in the sake of compromise and be able to move on, I'd like to at least put 300,000 back there.
That at least gives the Chief and the Department and if they need to come in for a budget
amendment, I guess they'll have to come in for that. But I think it's better than nothing at all,
you know. And that's my feeling in that respect, at least 300,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, I guess so.
CHAIR WHITE: So we restore -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 300,000.
CHAIR WHITE: --300,000 to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So the deficit is 307,200?
CHAIR WHITE: 307,200.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The next one definitely, I'd like to see reinstated. You heard the
testimony this morning. And this is the actual Fire Rescue Operation. This is the line people.
These are people that are out there. Boots -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Boots.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --and everything else. No, this is not just boots, but that was part
of the discussion.
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CHAIR WHITE: It's, most of it is boots.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. And I sure hate...I move that this should be put back in, the
100,125.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Mr. Couch to restore...was
that 100 percent?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Of Line 341. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Did I say who seconded?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, you did.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, so now you can take a vote.
CHAIR WHITE: Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: No discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Motion carries, seven "ayes", zero "noes".
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the last one, that was me with the helicopter, right?
CHAIR WHITE: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So this reduction in the helicopter, and again, I get very
uncomfortable because the helicopter service has a integral part as far as rescue, ocean, land, at
accident sites, you know, at fighting fires. I mean they perform multiple tasks. And, again,
we're moving into what we call prime fire season, brushfire season. And I don't know about you
guys, but I drive along our highways. Oh, we've had some nice rain over the few months and
boy the grass is tall and just waiting to burn. So I'd like to see that 73,575 put back in.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Ms. Cochran to restore the
increase in the helicopter service contract amount. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If we could get from Mr. Baz, one more time,
the current expenditure for that? You're to date?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, I pulled up the report, 'cause I figured that question might come up. So the helicopter
service Index Code has appropriation for Fiscal Year 2013 of $1 million. They had a prior year
encumbrance of $1,200. Actual expenditures so far this fiscal year up to March 31 St is $600,202
with a encumbrance of 110,200 and a balance of $290,000. So they're right at about 29 percent
of expenditure, yeah. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 29 percent, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So not much left if we have to have a big brush fire in the next
couple of months, which we all into that this is the season to be ready for brushfire. I don't
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know, Mr. Chair, this is one of those that I'd rather have the money there than not have it and
then have to scramble to get it later. And we may get FEMA and other people to pay back later,
but you...I don't know if I wanna wait. This is core essential, again. So that's my pitch and it's
up to the rest of the Members.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, on this one, you know, we're adding a lot
of money back already, so the price tag is getting higher and higher. And any time we can look
at some of these at 29 percent when they should be at 25 percent, you know, I can support taking,
you know, this deduction. So I don't think I can support the motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, thank you. And I believe the numbers that Mr. Baz gave us
didn't include two helicopters just last night in Honokohau. They had to use two to put out
50 acres of fire. So it's coming up on summer season and, you know, I don't wanna say, but
there's a good chance we could burn down--not literally--you know, wear down this money. So
I'm in total favor of this, right now. So just wanted to add that in. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I'd like to support that. I witnessed just several
months ago with the Molokai District Fire Department and I was quite impressed, because where
one of my sons live right in the back is wildfire area and they had it under control because of
their training and helicopter use that came through. That it could have damaged all the homes
there and we've experienced where it's been uncontrollable. And for...I mean they couldn't get
hold of my son, so they got hold of me and I was there trying to control the fire. But didn't have
to, they had it under control thanks to the helicopter service, yeah, and the wonderful firefighters
that we have.
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion, Members? Okay. Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Chair votes, "no". So the measure passes, five "ayes", two "noes".
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VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmember Couch.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: So that amount is restored.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes, Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have a question. And then I don't know where this fits in, before
we end fire, 'cause we're cutting very close to the end. Remember we talked about that fire
abatement program and that if we put $5,000 in there or something, some real small? I'd like to
somehow take money from someplace in here and, you know, I know it's a Program Budget, but
I'd like to put some proviso where it's proper to put 50,000 instead of 5,000. So I don't know,
Mr. Baz or maybe you can give me direction or Staff, where would we put that kind of proviso?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, I missed what the purpose was.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The fire abatement program.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's 347.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that 347? It says, Fire Prevention Program, but it's all one lump
sum, eh? Is that where it is?
CHAIR WHITE: Well before we do that let me just finish -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I just wanna know before we finish.
CHAIR WHITE: --off on Page 10. If you'll recall, we put the two generators back into the bond.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Take 'em out.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right...
CHAIR WHITE: So we have consensus to remove.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Remove, yeah. I removed it already so...
CHAIR WHITE: I just wanna keep the sheets correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Now, back to your issue. The fire abatement?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, fire abatement, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Baz can help direct me on that one.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, there's currently $5,000 assigned to the Fire Brush Abatement within the
Fire Prevention Program, so that is where it's at. Would be in, I guess, 347.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So if I put a proviso saying that 50,000 would be put into that
fund, can that be done?
MR. BAZ: You can add any proviso you want to. But are you suggesting that you proviso the current
net appropriation that's on the paper of 187,000 by allocating 50,000 of that, too; or do you
wanna add and then proviso?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, take it out of that. I mean...
CHAIR WHITE: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, I understand where my colleague, Councilman Victorino, is
going with the abatement, and it's a great cause. But I remember when the Chief was talking
about it. It wasn't being utilized. In fact, there was no liens on any of the properties that were
being warned. It didn't seem like it was being functional and I believe Corp. Counsel even piped
in and said that there hadn't been any liens placed on any properties. So, at this stage, I
understand where my colleague is going, but I cannot support this provision.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Mr. Chair -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --before you go on, he's correct about the lien part. In fact, I think
they said only one lien ever.
CHAIR WHITE: Actually you haven't made a motion, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I know.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, there's no motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There's no motion, yet.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But what I'm saying is, the Chief also said the 5,000, they can do
maybe one property, maybe two and that's it. And then they have to go after the homeowners or
the landowner, whoever it might be. So this 50,000 would give them more latitude to do more
properties, and then if you need to go liens or whatever else. Now they did say, most of them do
pay back. You know, they've gotten the money back. If I remember correctly what the Chief
had told us.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. But my recollection's the same as Mr. Guzman's. And my concern with
putting a proviso in is that we're telling them how to spend money that's already allocated for
other purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: So I think...and if you'd like to make that motion, that's fine. But I'm, you know, I
would be concerned that we have a Program Budget; and if they choose to spend some money on
the fire abatement and up the ante on the homeowners and start generating and fund, then that's
the way I would prefer to do it. But, you know, you're free to make a motion if you'd like to do
SO.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I just felt that his discussion was that he doesn't...that 5,000
is a very insufficient fund when they have to go out to one or two, three properties, they're done
with, you know, they use that money up.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. But to put it into perspective, we just gave them 73,000 for the helicopters.
And actual usage in 2011 and '12 was about 700,000 per year or 724- one year and 742- the
next. So, you know, if they save money on the helicopter and they wanna transfer some of that
money over from that or from the boots we just gave 'em to salt that fund, they can do that.
They got plenty of money.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, that's fine. You know, if that's what you guys feel,
then fire abatement will not be a big issue, and then we'll have more brushfires. But that's fine,
you know, I'm not gonna push the issue. You guys decide what you want, and I'll move on.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Moving on to Line 351. Chair's recommendation remains to delete the
Premium Pay by 9,200 and the medical and safety supplies by $3,375. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I'd like to...not so much with the Premium Pay, but I'd
really like to move that reduction in medical and supplies. Again, that's...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Do we have consensus on the reduction of Premium Pay?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Go ahead, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So do I make a motion to, you know -CHAIR WHITE: Restore.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --restore the 3,375?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Victorino, seconded by Ms. Baisa to restore the $3,375
on Line 352. Discussion, Members? No discussion? All those in favor, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure passes, seven, zero.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Here we go.
CHAIR WHITE: Now the big one.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm ready.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't think we're gonna get consensus on this. So the Chair's recommendation is to
move the Aquatics Program back to Parks and Recreation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I move to delete the recommendation in Line 357.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Ms. Baisa to delete the move of
the Aquatics Program back to Parks and Recreation. Discussion, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We had very lively discussion with the
departments, both departments. And it's clear in the Charter that Fire Department has to come
up with a timetable. And as clear as we can, with two lawyers in the room talking about it,
Mr. Kushi and Mr. Ueoka, where they said that upon adoption and then shall provide a timetable
that it's sooner rather than later. And I understand what the Fire Department's going through,
but if we have the money over there, it's starting to fulfill the Charter, which is what we've been
trying to do and it's what the people have overwhelmingly voted on. And so that'll get the
process started and get the fire...light a fire under the Fire Department to get that thing done. So
that's the reason why I'm making that motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I seconded the motion and I really can't add a whole lot to what
Mr. Couch says; however, we did give them the position to work on this. So I'm comfortable.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I need clarification.
CHAIR WHITE: On?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we saying that we're gonna restore...
CHAIR WHITE: No, the motion...the Chair's position is to leave the Ocean Safety Division in Parks.
The motion on the floor is to -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Move 'em.
CHAIR WHITE: --change it back, to move it back into the Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, can I clarify that?
CHAIR WHITE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually, the Mayor's department, in their proposal, said, we're gonna
move it to the Fire Department. It is in Parks now. Your proposal was to delete the Mayor's
proposal and leave it in Parks. My motion is to go with the Mayor's proposal and move it to Fire
Department.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So if I understand this and these dollars and the headcounts go
together to Fire in this new fiscal year?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Is that what you're saying? So...
CHAIR WHITE: As of July 1st.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But that's not the timetable that the Fire Department came up with.
If we heard Chief Murray saying that got this position, I have my Division Chief to put together
and to work with the plan; and then he can come back and give us a definitive timetable as to
when it's gonna move. Because how...you don't have...what I heard is that they don't have
their organizational structure in place. And we're just gonna go ahead and say, July 1 st, you take
your 52 employees and work on your plan. We give you your bodies to work on your plan, go
ahead and you plan as you go along. You're gonna implement this and then come up with your
plan. What I heard Fire say, allow us to come up with a plan and then we'll come back with
your timetable, allow us to come up with a plan with the team that the management team that he
needs or Fire needs to make it all in place. And that's what I heard, so I cannot support this.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And it's my understanding--and maybe
we're...we need some clarification from Corp. Counsel or Mr. Baz--is that is the funding is just
going over. The bodies are still under Parks and they're still under operating the Parks' rules,
but they're being paid for by the Fire Department, which is exactly what happened with Risk
Management and Corp. Counsel, same thing. Corp. Counsel paid for Risk Management's body,
but they're still at Finance So it's not moving the bodies to different people. Plus, as Ms. Baisa
said, we've already given them the position to start working on this right now. So we've already
made the commitment to have them start working on it, so let's make the rest of the
commitment. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I understand both sides of the issue here, and equal merit. But I
think there'll still be an impetus. You know, once you move the money, you better move the
bodies. Even though we know the bodies won't move right away like they did in Risk
Management, they finally move. So, for me, it's about, you know, another prod to say, come on
guys, we need to get this done. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Comparing apples and apples is really good, but when you don't
compare apples with apples, you off the base. And I'm gonna say, my colleague is off the base,
and I'll tell you why. Number one, right now, if we were to move these monies over to Fire, just
as they said, some of the backup for Ocean Safety are our lifeguards who are now in the pool,
which would still be under Parks. You have that issue that even the Fire Chief says, we don't
have the backups right now so if maybe some...if you were to take over right now, I wouldn't
have any substitutes or backups to come in and man the tower, because Ocean...I mean the
lifeguards are under Parks. Until that's worked out, that's another major issue. That's putting
safety and the lives of our visitors as well as our residents could be in jeopardy. We don't have a
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tower man because we're lacking manpower, that could be very dangerous, okay. Right now,
Parks has both Ocean Safety and the lifeguards and they're qualified some of them to come in
when necessary and fulfill those positions. That's why we get complaints that the pools are
closed, because they go over and handle a beach tower instead of covering a pool, okay. So
there's that challenge about where that funding is coming from. As you move these people over,
`cause one's in Parks and one's in Fire as far as financially. So I think we're being premature.
The Chief of the Fire Department has stated, like the Charter said, I'm not ready, I'm working on
my timetable, I need the positions. So we've given 'em the position, so we'd hope by 2014, like
he's kinda given us an idea that would happen, that we could complete this changeover smoothly
and safely. And, again, it's not like Risk Management, it's not like Treasury or not like other
departments. We're talking Ocean Safety and lives that could be affected very drastically. So I
cannot support the motion, either. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I understand where the both of our colleagues
are, both sides of the stories here. But I can't support this motion, either, because of the fact that
I'm truly reading language of the Charter and I see that it is in the discretion of the Fire Chief to
make that timetable. And if anything goes wrong and basically the Ocean Safety guys are not
properly supervised, I believe that we may have a situation on our hands where the left hand is
not speaking to the right hand. So, at this point, I feel very uncomfortable with not having the
consent of the Fire Chief, at this point, and him not being ready to take over the responsibility.
And as what he said, he wants to do a good job, have it well planned out. And so that's where
my position is. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Further discussion? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And that's why I am in support of this is
because of the fact that Fire has been sorta hemming and hawing for a long time now. This
didn't just come up a few months ago. This has been in discussion for many years, actually,
through several administrations. And so I've been hearing the Ocean Safety section, they've
been wanting to dialogue and merge or get to the table and create this plan and share ideas and
work together and collaborate. That hasn't happened. Something's gotta give here. And
something's gotta bring them together. And I think Ms. Savage had an idea that was given to her
in regards like an outside party come in and, you know, sorta be mediator between them all. I
don't know why we have to do this. I feel we're very professional people. We all stand for the
same thing as public safety. And it boggles my mind that they haven't come together yet to
create this plan and this merge. 'Cause it sounds like both sides wants it, but Fire keeps saying,
we're not ready, we're not ready. I don't know when that's gonna be, when that day's gonna
come. So for me it's urgent, at this point, to move them so they get on it. Because otherwise
they can sit back all day, all night for years on end saying, hey, we create the timetable, we're
gonna do it on our...when we're good and ready.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And that's what Ocean Safety's been hearing, they're good to go,
the voters have spoken. So I am completely in support of this. So I'm very, you know, it's too
bad that others don't quite feel the same, but that's the way of democracy. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. I guess somebody's gotta clarify for me. If the
dollars go with the Fire as the motion--if I understand it right--the dollars go there, but the bodies
stay with Parks?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So...
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair doesn't read it that way, because the E/Ps transfer with the dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's my understanding.
CHAIR WHITE: So the question in my mind is, who are they gonna report to on July 1 st?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I asked that because, simple, we are saying, you take your
52 bodies or you take this money and you start your planning. Now, if I understand the
personnel process, we're approving the team that he needs to get it going. Does that happen
right away through the personnel process with DPS? Is he able to get those positions filled, like,
by tomorrow or the end of this fiscal year? So I need to ask those questions. So couple things. I
can understand the urgency, I can understand where Ocean Safety's coming from. But they will
still be able to perform their professional services the way they are doing today. They are and
they are being supervised accordingly and under the jurisdiction of Parks and Recreation, and the
Charter says, they need to move over, there's no question about that. They have to move over
and merge with the Fire. It's when it is in place, and are we, you know, I don't believe Fire
Department, whether it's this Chief or another Chief that maybe tomorrow will be allowed to
carry it on for another four, two, three years. I don't believe we can allow that.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I agree with Ms. Crivello that, you know,
we need to get some clarification either from Corp. Counsel or Mr. Baz. I want to certainly
thank the Charter Commission for being very clear on the Auditor, but not so clear on this one. I
was hoping they would get the same. But, that being said, it's my understanding and it's always
been represented to me, but maybe I've just been hearing it wrong is that the only thing that
changes - who's paying the paycheck.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The reports, the backups, everything is still with Parks; it's just who's
paying the paychecks. And the whole idea for that is to, again, light a fire on the Fire's rear
ends.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair will allow a little more discussion on this before we call for the
question, but...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And maybe, you know, if Corp. Counsel wants to chime in. But I
read the Charter, just like all of you, I saw the Charter change, it falls directly under the
Department of Fire and Safety, Public Safety. It falls under them. And to get history
perspective, this has been going...
CHAIR WHITE: You mean the transition plan?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. This has been going on for many years, like my colleague
mentioned. But I can tell you, when I came on seven years ago, it wasn't Fire who didn't want it
at that time, Fire was all for it. It was the Parks Department that didn't want it. So that's the true
history, and go check the record, okay. This is the democracy. I'm saying, beyond a democracy,
I am concerned that when we have change this way, this is not Risk Management, this is not
where you don't have people's lives on the line and something can go wrong. I'd like this
transition to be done in a proper way where the Chief and the Fire Safety...the Fire Department,
I should say, is comfortable, they've made the changes, no harm, no foul. I don't wanna see
somebody get hurt, we don't wanna get sued, we don't want to be in harm's way in any way. So
the history is there. The change, right now, could be done, but I want to make sure it's done
right. And the Chief has asked to allow him to do it.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He's asked that. I don't know what everybody else is hearing, but
he's asked that. And I think it's only fair, 'cause that's what the Charter Commission and the
people who voted, voted for it that way. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order, Mr. Chair. I never got my answer to my question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Which was?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Baz.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Baz or Mr. Ueoka, where is the responsibility lies? If the
responsibility moves with the bodies, then certainly I wouldn't support that motion. But if it lies
still in Parks, I'm all for it.
CHAIR WHITE: Corp. Counsel, if we transfer E/Ps, does the responsibility transfer with it?
MR. UEOKA: My understanding is it's gonna be the funding goes to Fire and the day-to-day operations
will remain with Parks. And if this body...well I guess I shouldn't say, "this body desires", but
I'm sure, administratively, we will figure all of this out on July...prior to July 1 st, if you guys do
choose to move it. 'Cause, at the end of the day, everyone is concerned about safety and
everything operating smoothly.
CHAIR WHITE: You have further question?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I do.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So you're saying...oh, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So what you're saying, from the legal side of it, that you would
leave the 52 employees, report to Parks and Recreation, supervision will still be there; but the
dollars will be handled by Fire Department, that's their budget? And if that's their budget, they
have not accepted Ocean, yet, but we're gonna give them all these monies? But they don't have
to take Ocean Safety according to the Charter until their ready? But we're gonna give them this
money, and that's just gonna build up their pot for their budget. Or are we saying, you take this
money, and we're saying, you're gonna have to do Ocean Safety whether you're ready or not?
Are we in violation of Article 15.4?
MR. UEOKA: To answer the first part of the question, I don't know if it's necessarily a legal thing, it's
more of procedurally how this would work. And, my understanding is, the money's gonna go to
Fire the way it's...I'm sorry, the way it was written in the Mayor's Proposed Budget. And they
would work something out between Fire and Parks where the day-to-day operations or
supervision of the OSOs would remain with Parks. The funding wouldn't just be a free-for-all
for the Fire Department. It would need to be used to fund the OSO program. And the final part
was, I don't believe that this body is making Fire--well I shouldn't say, "this body", I'm sorry-the Chair's Proposed Budget puts the E/Ps back with Parks. I don't believe it was the Mayor's
intention to violate the Charter and put the day-to-day management of the OSOs on the Fire
Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm not saying that.
MR. UEOKA: Okay. That was just one of...that was part of the...I just heard violation 15.4 Charter, so
I wanted to respond to that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: We're the one that saying, gotta move. My understanding, that the
Mayor would want employees and budget to go to the Fire, with his proposal.
MR. UEOKA: I believe that was the Mayor's proposal. I believe your Chair's proposal is to move
`em...is to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Leave `em.
MR. UEOKA: --leave them with Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: So but I don't think anyone's in violation of the Charter. I just wanna be clear on that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I think we've had plenty of discussion on this. The Chair's feeling is that if
the Department is not quite ready and the Charter clearly says that it's on the Department's
timetable that this transfer take place. It's difficult for me to roll the dice on this and just move
them all over. So, with that, I'm gonna call for the question. All those in favor of having the
Ocean Safety Officers remain in Parks...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that's not...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, that's not motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The motion is to delete Line 357.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, you're right. Okay. The motion is to delete Line 357. All those in favor, say,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
- 130 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: So the measure fails. There were three "ayes", four "noes". And the "noes" were
Members Cochran, Couch and...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, that was the "yes".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The "ayes".
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry, the "yes" votes were Members Cochran, Couch and Baisa. The "noes"
were Crivello, Guzman, Victorino and White.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, and Couch.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Crivello, Guzman, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we have corresponding items -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --which we'll...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, let's -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Break.
CHAIR WHITE: --we'll take a quick break. I just, you know, I just get to where I'm having so much
fun up here, you know.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I know you...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Way too much...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we're in recess for ten minutes. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:33 p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:47 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . This meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee will come back to
order. Members, we are finished with the Fire Department and moving into Housing and Human
Concerns. And we have our first...
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: Sony.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, yes. We had an update from Chief Murray.
MR. KANESHINA: So I've been exchanging e-mails with Chief Murray. And I know I think on his
earlier guidance was, he wanted a Battalion Chief, Chief of Aquatics. But I looked at it later and
I think... so I e-mailed him back and he clarified, it should be Battalion Chief of Ocean Safety,
`cause aquatics kinda covers the pool, too. So he wanted to clarify that's Battalion Chief of
Ocean Safety. And I can make this e-mail available to the Committee if you guys would like to
see it. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you for that. Members, we are on Page 12. And -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 12.
CHAIR WHITE: --I have a revisit on the...no, we passed that. We restored -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, we passed this, yeah...
CHAIR WHITE: --yeah, we restored that already.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Restore.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay. So, Mr. Victorino, we have a revisit for you on the funding for Maui
Academy of Performing Arts. And the Chair's position is to delete as shown on the document.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: As you well know, Mr. Chair, they were here yesterday to clarify
what the need had changed to. In talking to Human Concerns, Ms. Shishido, they were aware of
it and they were very...
CHAIR WHITE: Actually, if you don't mind -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: --if you'd like to make a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I move to put the 75,000 back in for Maui Academy of
Performing Arts.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'll second it, but we need some language.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So I think I started what...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Well, I'm sorry. There's been a motion by Mr. Victorino and a second by
Ms. Baisa to restore funding for the Maui Academy of Performing Arts. Any discussion?
Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I think I agree with Ms. Baisa that if we approve this, there
has to be language specifying the usage of this appropriation and it being a one-time
appropriation as they stated. I want that to be noted, and I don't know how the words can be.
And I guess I can put a proviso. I'll work on it with Staff, how we can proviso this. But, you
know, I'm willing to help, but it's not an ongoing thing that we're gonna be doing every year.
It's for a direct, according to them, construction of their facility to prepare for the move from
Kaahumanu Shopping Center.
CHAIR WHITE: I think we have provided...we have used provisos that simply say -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --it shall be used for design and construction -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Whatever.
CHAIR WHITE: --purposes only.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So whatever the Staff can help me with, that...
CHAIR WHITE: So your motion includes the proviso -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Includes the proviso, that is correct.
CHAIR WHITE: --as does your second?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Further discussion, Members? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I'm kinda caught in a quandary here in terms of
this MAPA situation, because of the fact that it, you know, initially when the Director came and I
did ask her about the description of it, it was for something else completely. I believe it was for
underprivileged scholarships as well as theatre programs for the various schools. And then a
day...I think yesterday where I believe Mr. Frampton came in and submitted a letter indicating a
construction. And, from the letter itself, I don't see the intricate details that would most
commonly come with a construction request. I don't know...is this for design, is this for, you
know, construction? I just don't know enough details about it as well as them coming in and
saying, oh, you know, we're at the jeopardy, last minute, we have to find a new place. Well,
have they done the proper...was it an initial plan for them to eventually build a theatre or are
they looking for another venue or another site? I still have some questions, so I'm not sure if I
can support this at this very moment. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Other discussion? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. And I hear, you know, the concerns in
Mr. Guzman's voice. 'Cause I guess, initially, it was supposed to be for scholarships, and now I
guess, forget the scholarship and the underprivileged children, now it's going straight to
construction. So two different uses of this money. And of course support, you know, the people
who need assistance; and now that's like, forget that, now we need to build a home for our
program, which I understand, also. But it is a little, I mean, odd or strange or, I guess,
circumstances happen and we can't predict. But, you know, construction, one-time ask; but,
again, I wish that we could be taking care of the initial reasoning for the intent of the initial ask,
basically. So I'll make my decision when the vote is called. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, when Mr. Frampton was here, I had asked him to please come
back with language explaining what happened so that we could deal with this, and I don't think
we have it. I understand and I'm totally supportive. I think scholarships for, you know,
deserving kids are really important, because we want every kid to be able to participate in a
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program like this. But if this is crucial for them having a place to do the program, if they don't
have a place to do the program, then they can't do the program. So I need that in order so that I
can vote.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. For my second and final time. You know, again, you're
absolutely correct, it was asked for another purpose.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And as you heard, they were informed that they no longer will
have that space at Kaahumanu available to them, which I think they were paying little or no rent
at all.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's upstairs. And so now they lose that. To find another
space, as Mr. Frampton had mentioned not only to me but to some others, that it'll be
cost-prohibitive. When they have the facility with some construction and some make up, they
can continue to do the performances here and not have to pay rent, 'cause that's their building.
And that was something that they were gonna do in years to come, but this has exacerbated the
problem, because they are losing that space at Kaahumanu. I mean that was a nice thing to have,
but you're not gonna have it anymore. So it's a urgent matter in that sense. And that's the plea
I'm putting out to my colleagues, okay. And, again, we'll put the words in for design and
construction and one time and, you know, whatever else to make sure the proviso is clear to all
here and the public that it's not every year we're gonna give 'em. This is what it's gonna be, and
this is what the purpose for this money is, to continue the program and not to lose it. So we can
help others, disadvantaged; we can't help others if the program doesn't exist or they don't have a
place or they're strapped to put on their performances. So that's my plea to my colleagues, and
it's really their decision. I can respect and appreciate this. This was a change, no denying. And
you heard me ask Mr. Frampton to clarify it wasn't a revisit, it was an absolute change of what
you originally had asked for. I didn't want that mistake. It was not a revise, it was a change, and
he did state that to all of us. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I guess one more, boggling on my mind, is the
site. I mean do they even have a location for the construction?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, it's right here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It's stated? Oh, this...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, their MAPA...remember, he said, they're gonna redo their
facility right down here on Main Street. That's where the money was gonna be used for.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Well I know MAPA is been a long-standing organization in our
community, as my own children go there. So I truly wanna help them out, but I just feel that I
don't have enough solid information to go forward. But I do understand their situation and I
would propose an amendment to offer them 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you make the motion?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I move to offer them 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second? Motion to amend was offered by Councilmember Guzman and
seconded by Councilmember Couch. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Actually, so just to get clarification on the initial 75-. Is that...oh,
no, that's Mayor's proposal?
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so, with the change into the intent of the use of the money,
Administration continues to support the use? Is my question -CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --to I guess Mr. Baz, Administration here. Because they put it in
for the initial intent. Now, it just switched yesterday to construction.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair? Unfortunately, similar to Member Guzman, without...this is new
information. And this is not what was on their application to the Department, which was then
recommended to the Mayor, which was, you know, revised. But, from a policy statement, I
mean, I could tell you that, yes, the Mayor has supported MAPA in the past and I'm assuming
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that he would support this construction as well. It's going to eventually, I'm assuming, save
them money, so that they can start doing things like has been discussed with the providing extra
arts and activities for youth that are disadvantaged.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. To answer Ms. Cochran's question, I believe
the Administration, the Deputy Director Shishido -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --did say that they support that, they do support the change. So I thank
Ms. Cochran for asking that question, 'cause that jogged a memory that, yes, they do support it.
So I would support the full amount.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I wanna thank Councilmember Guzman for the clarifications and to
surface what Mister....or MAPA is, made the changes, you know. I think if he didn't bring it up,
I wouldn't have much paid attention. But, you know, it comes back to planning. And if the
organization just received notice and now they make their changes and Human Concerns have
accepted it, and I guess we need to ask if the full 75,000 is for renovations. Is it for renovations
or cleaning up the building or what? And how can part of that 75,000 take care of what their
original intent was to provide scholarship for the needy, for the kids?
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair's understanding is that the scholarships are no longer part of the equation.
The $75,000 was to be used for design and initial work on the construction to transform a portion
of their building on Main Street to be used as a theatre similar to what they have down at
Kaahumanu. Is that everybody else's recollection?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes. Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And we're not gonna get much more information before we need to vote. So any
further discussion on the amended motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, amendment.
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CHAIR WHITE: Amendment...no, you're right. The amendment to the motion. No further
discussion? All those in favor of the amendment to the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: I counted two in favor...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call, then, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Roll call if you want.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Roll call? Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you. Member Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Michael Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Mike White?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
- 138 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, the motion fails, three to four.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Crivello and Guzman.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION TO AMEND FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We're back to the main motion, which is the $75,000...the motion to restore
the $75,000 cut. Any further discussion?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: No. Let's do a roll call.
MR. KANESHINA: Member...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
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MR. KANESHINA: Member Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Michael Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Mike White?
CHAIR WHITE: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Four, three, motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Victorino.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Crivello and Guzman.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MAIN MOTION FAILED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to change the dollar amount from 75,000 in
Line 402 to 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, motion by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mr. Victorino is to...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, that...
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That was my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that was an amendment. That was an amendment to his motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Didn't agree to the amendment to his motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Victorino's motion failed. So now this is a new motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: My understanding is that's okay. Is that correct, Staff?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MR. KANESHINA: It's...
CHAIR WHITE: Wait. Hold, hold up the talk, please. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: You know, Mr. Chair. You know, you're the chief parliamentarian for this
proceeding. So if you're gonna allow it, then you can allow it.
CHAIR WHITE: It seems duplicative to me, because we just. . .Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the only reason it is done this way is the original motion
was for 75,000, and that was the intent of four of the seven of us. Mr. Guzman said he's satisfied
with 25,000. At least for the four of us that said, "no" to the 25,000; so if we want to try the
75,000 first, if that fails, then we can go to the 25,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I'll allow it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we have a motion on the floor to restore 25,000 of the $75,000 cut, is that
correct, Mr. Couch?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This was done already. I already seconded already.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, is there a second already? Oh, sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Mr. Victorino seconded.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Done already.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, I don't...where are we?
CHAIR WHITE: Any discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor of 25,000, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". It's six, one. Chair votes "no".
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.
NOES: Chair White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Moving to 407. We have a revisit by Mr. Victorino and Couch on E Malama I Na
Keiki 0 Lanai Preschool. I believe this $76,000 [sic] figure...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Should be 3 percent more, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Plus three.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, but I thought that...does that include the 3 percent? It does not? I thought we
added that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we had a...I requested the revisit, 'cause Mr. Hokama, I
believe, had said he wanted more. Is that right, Mr. Victorino? You and I...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I have no idea. I don't have his paper, but I...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's not on this paper, that's the only concern.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I kinda remember that, also, but I, you know...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It definitely is not on this paper, I've been looking through the whole
discussion, and he's not here. So I think one of the reasons we said, "revisit", is because he
wasn't here. But he's not gonna be here till Monday, so...you know, Mr. Chair, I'm okay with
changing the...restoring the reduction, restoring the 4,880.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, if it's consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I figure you making a motion...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is the 3 percent from last time. If we can do a consensus, we're
great. If Mr. Chair has a problem...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: No, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we're restoring 4,880.
CHAIR WHITE: --$4,880 is restored by consensus. Our next is Community Work Day Program.
Revisit by Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Were we...is there supposed to be some verbiage inserted
here or no?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: This is your...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I thought the 15,000 proviso for West Maui Recycle Program.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you wanna increase it, increase the
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Yes, I wanted...Chair, my intent was to add in 15-, but have it
specifically for West Maui. But I thought we -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --spoke about it.
CHAIR WHITE: No. What we did last night, we did not add the 3 percent to this line item, because it
was a revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. So if you'd like to make motion, please do so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I move to add 15,000 and proviso'd for a West Maui
recycling program. I guess the verbiage would be worked on. But that's the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is to add 15,000 to Community Work Day with a provision that it's
West Maui?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Ms. Cochran and seconded by Mr. Couch to add $15,000
to the Community Work Day Program with a proviso that the 15,000 be used in West Maui
recycling projects. Any discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Question.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Further questions.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, and I think you had asked the question of me whether they
don't provide this type of service. But they do, just not on a regular basis as the community
needs. And I had asked them what would help them be able to accomplish that, and added funds
would help accomplish that. And it's a definitely needed service for my outlying areas in West
Maui, along with districtly and downtown, they've had overwhelming support and a dire need
for the service. So this is why I look for my fellow Members' support. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion? All those in favor of the motion to add $15,000 to the
Community Work Day Program, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no". Motion carries, seven, zero.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And we have a revisit by Mr. Couch on Homeless Programs on Line 460.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Please go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Sony about that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. The reason I said to revisit this, and Ms. Shishido made it
abundantly clear that this is for more outreach to the homeless, and it is increasing, especially
since Ms. Cochran is moving hers to Kihei, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There's more in Kihei, there's more in Central, there's more
everywhere.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Upcountry. And they're coming over to Molokai. This is an issue that,
you know, you can throw as much money as you want to it, it's still gonna be there; but at least
we need to help the folks. I mean this is a huge issue that there's coalitions every once a month
that they're trying to get things going. And, you know, I'd like to see back to the 41-. And the
reason we did it this way is because you had suggested a 3 percent increase, and the 41- is way
more than the 3 percent. And I'm assuming that they asked for the 41,000 for a specific reason
not just to...cause that's an odd number, you know. If it was a 3 percent increase or something, I
can see the odd number, but that's just out there. If Mr. Baz can kind of recall what that intent
was with the 41,000; if he can't, that's fine, too.
CHAIR WHITE: I'd prefer to -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --keep the Members in the discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: If you have a burning question -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: --for Mr. Baz, I'm happy to have him help. But...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So is that a motion, Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I can move...yeah, I'll move to restore Line...the amount in Line 460.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Couch and seconded by Mr. Victorino to restore the
$41,000 amount on Line 460. Discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure carries, seven, zero.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: We are on Line 490 on Page 15. The Enlace Hispano Program, and that's a revisit by
Mr. Victorino and Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would like to, of course, speak in favor of restoring this, because the
Enlace Hispano Program, as we have heard, is extremely busy and we have one staff member, if
I'm not mistaken, who's trying to do this all by himself. And the intent, of course, was to get
him some help. So I would like to move to restore the cut.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Ms. Baisa and seconded by Mr. Victorino to restore the cut
of $31,000. Discussion? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, Chair, I just wanted a clarification. Is it the 91,000 to cover
two workers --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --or...
CHAIR WHITE: I believe it's one, one-half.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One and a half.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: One and a half?
CHAIR WHITE: Ninety-one thousand covers one and a half. The additional 31,000 is for a half-time
person, as I recall.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion? All those in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Chair...I only heard two "ayes". Can we all vote, please?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Silence implies consent here. Our rules say you don't vote, it's a "yes".
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, it's a "yes".
CHAIR WHITE: Measure passes, six, one. Chair votes, "no".

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.
NOES: Chair White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: The next item, Line 509, the revisit by Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I move to reinsert the 17,000 to make it 134,000 as
proposed by the Mayor.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: It's been move by Mr. Victorino and seconded by Ms. Cochran to restore $17,000 to
the Salvation Army. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: For any one of us who live in Central Maui and drives down
Kamehameha Avenue will understand the great importance the Salvation Army does, and on
Shaw Street in Lahaina, you know, I've driven by there; and the number of needy continues to
grow. There are long lines in the evenings there, people seeking not only shelter, but food and
other help. You know, again, we just put some more money in the homelessness area, but this
program is a proven program. It has been around for more years than I can count, probably more
than 100 years, if I'm not mistaken.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that more years than you've been around?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Than I've been around. So that's kind of a long time if you know
what I'm saying. But all joking aside, Chair, this is something that I really support. All the
nonprofits do great jobs, but I in particular have had, where I've had workers, I've had people
that were vagrants and I have been able to help take there and they took 'em in and helped 'em.
So I really...my colleagues would support putting this 17,000 back. And I wish I could put more
in there, but I'd be really satisfied with the 134-. I think that's a big, big help. That's 17,000
more than they got last year.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by saying,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All opposed, say, "no". Okay. Measure passes, seven, zero.
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VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. I really like when you vote with me.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No kidding.
CHAIR WHITE: Just don't expect it all the time.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I know. I'm just honored when I get it.
CHAIR WHITE: As I said at the beginning of this process, we're building this back together, so I'm not
gonna vote, "no", on all of it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's good.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have our next revisit, is 527...Line 527 on Page 16, Women Helping
Women. And that is for...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll let Mr. Couch handle this one.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, Mr. Chair. The deducted amount in your proposal is $10,000,
which is more than a 3 percent increase from the 185-. I don't know what the increase...oh -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it would've -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: -- yeah it is...yeah, I see what last year's...
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CHAIR WHITE: --it would've been about a little more than half.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. So I would like to restore to what was requested from the
Department. 'Cause this is another issue, it's a domestic violence issue and somewhat a
homeless issue. And, you know, we gotta take care of this. So if it's consensus, I'd love to have
this 10,000 restored. If it isn't consensus, I'll make a motion.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We'll mark that as consensus. Moving to J. Walter Cameron Center. We have
Ms. Baisa, Mr. Victorino and Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'll let Ms. Baisa handle this one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, as a former board member of Cameron Center, a person who's
really been watching this for a long time, I really would like to see a lot more money put in here.
I think we heard this morning from the Chair of the Board, and there's a serious issue at
Cameron Center in terms of trying to take care of an aging facility. And the Board and everyone
has been trying really hard. And with the reserve study that was done quite a while back, like
three or four years ago, it's a huge $3 million that had to be invested in here, along with
energy-saving equipment and replacing of air conditioning units, air handlers and all these things
that we've been talking about in our own aging buildings. And the point is here that by us
supporting people being at Cameron Center, we save the nonprofits money, because that way,
they don't have to go into the marketplace and pay market rent. So really it's an investment in
our nonprofits when we help the Cameron Center, so that they reduce their overhead and that
way they don't have to go to the agencies that are there and ask them to pay more shared costs.
They don't charge rent, what they do is they take the expenses and, you know, spread it like a
CAM.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so I really would like to see us give them the full amount if
possible. If not, certainly more than 45,000.
CHAIR WHITE: So is your motion to restore...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To restore the 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, we're restoring 55,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 55,000.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I mean to...well to take it to the 100,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: So motion by Ms. Baisa and seconded by Mr. Victorino to restore 55,000 to Walter
Cameron Center. Okay, further discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I can't say much more than what Ms. Baisa
said, but I just wanted to remind people, you heard it in the voice of the testifier and in the
passion of the testifier. And it does, as Ms. Baisa said, reduce the rent for a lot of nonprofits of
which we support. So it's kind of a -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Pay now or pay later.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you know, pay now or pay later kinda thing. So I can fully support
this. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. And I'll also put this in about the J. Walter Cameron
Center. They've done a terrific job of allowing outside people, outside organizations, to use their
meeting rooms for a fee, so they've, you know, tried to accommodate and to bring in additional
income by utilization of their meeting rooms for outside organizations such as our homeowners
association and others for which I've attended meetings there. So I think that they also look for
means of raising money along with other fundraisers. So, you know, I want people to know that
these organizations don't come and just want a handout and do nothing to help themselves, that
is not true. They are working very hard. But, again, there's so many great organizations we try
to help and then so many more organizations we, as individuals, try to help. Oh boy. It comes to
a point where there's just not enough dollars to go around. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor of restoring the $55,000, please
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure carries, seven, zero.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
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NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Moving to Substance Abuse Programs. We have a revisit by all. So who wants it?
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I'd like to ask your indulgence to talk
about this one and the next one together. We noticed the Youth Alcohol Education Awareness
Program that Ms. Baisa wants, and that's part of substance abuse. And I can see what you might
have done here is, taken 102- out to keep 'em flat from last year, then taken a lot of that, moved
it into the other.
CHAIR WHITE: Well no, let me explain.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: The removal of the 102- was just simply making it flat with last year.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Flat, uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: So the removal of the 102- was not connected to the 150-.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Hundred and fifty was just a number that we put in to start the discussion on
establishing additional youth alcohol awareness education programs. Because of the, you know,
because of the desire to...well, as we all know, we tried to get a bill through the Legislature that
would -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --allow the Liquor Department to do so. So the Chair's thought on this was to
increase General Fund expenditures to provide additional programs in that area while reducing
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the costs, eventually, in the Liquor Department so that the...we can push some of the
responsibility on Commercial and Hotel categories.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: So the increase there was simply to start the discussion of putting additional money
toward that effort.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well it's very coincidental then. I would support a 3 percent increase
of the Substance Abuse Programs, because we have the 150- down there with this new program.
But I'm open to the will of the body.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm all for putting the money back. And, you know, this
substance abuse money's really important. Last year, we had a proviso in here for BEST.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I hope that we can include that at some point to make sure -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I doubt -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --that they get their money.
CHAIR WHITE: --that there's any objection to that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, and...
CHAIR WHITE: But I don't remember what the amount was.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Was 100,000. So if we increase it by the 3 percent, 103,000 would be
wonderful.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we're not combining these amounts, correct? We were talking about them
together, but...well, let me clarify. Ms. Baisa, is that a motion to -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, if you'll accept it.
CHAIR WHITE: --to restore the 102-...
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thousand five hundred.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have consensus to put it back, I think.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus on that.
CHAIR WHITE: I think...yeah, okay. So, Mr. Couch, I don't know, was that a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's fine. That's what I said, I'll yield to the will of the body,
and that seems to be more of the will. So I'm -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then proviso 100,000?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 103,000 for BEST.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So the motion is to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think we have consensus, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we'll mark...well, I don't know if we have consensus for restoring the
102,000, do we?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, we have consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Working on the proviso.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So consensus on the 102- with a proviso to the BEST program for 103,000,
correct?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And I think we already have consensus on the 150-, is that correct?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: On the 150,000 for the Youth Alcohol Education Awareness, last year
we had a proviso for...and wasn't it...maybe the Staff can help. Was it Be A Jerk or something?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Be A Jerk, but this is a new program.
CHAIR WHITE: Staff? Wait. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: This is all new?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so Be A Jerk disappeared? Where is it?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Kaneshina?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Last year, the body appropriated $500,000 to the grants
and disbursements for substance abuse programs.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
MR. KANESHINA: They also added two provisos. The first proviso, as Ms. Baisa said, was $100,000
to BEST program; the second proviso was $50,000 for the Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.,
Underage Drinking Be A Jerk Campaign.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But it came out of Substance Abuse?
MR. KANESHINA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, I'd like to put that proviso back in there if we can, because
I think that a program is wonderful and I'd like to see it continue. I have a real concern about
youth alcohol.
CHAIR WHITE: But you're talking about putting in the 150-?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Is there a consensus to add that proviso? Ms. Crivello?
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That 50,000 proviso is for something Jerk as part of the Youth
Alcohol Education Awareness Program?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, okay. I'm okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so it would be a $50,000 proviso to the Be A Jerk Campaign. Okay. Our next
revisit is on Page 17, Line 562 and the revisit is Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I would like to remove that proviso. And if we don't get
consensus, I'll make a motion. But I don't think we should put an issue that is State and County
level on the backs...not on the backs, but make the kids of Paukukalo a pawn in a bigger game.
This is a separate issue. I think that they're getting ready to pay us, I'm not sure. But, you
know, if they're not gonna pay us, then all of a sudden, we're not gonna put up a nice building
for them? I don't think that's right.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
I'd like to--thank you, Chair--I'd like to echo what
Councilmember Couch is saying that I think we have a fiduciary responsibility to do the
collection and so does Department of Hawaiian Homelands. But, you know, I kept hearing about
taking care of our children and our elderly. And this is a big number from the district meetings
we've had. I mean they have lots and lots of boys and girls in this Paukukalo area, so I would
like to also support the removal of the proviso. I do think that they shouldn't be held as extortion
for us to get the monies.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Further discussion? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I have a question on it, and I'm not sure if maybe
Member Couch can answer. Who is servicing the Paukukalo kids right now and where do they
go?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Guzman or Mr. Chair--I was supposed to be talking to you--right
now, there's a Paukukalo Community Center that has a lean-to, if you will. It's two walls and a
roof and the community center. The two walls and the roof, I think, is where they're gonna build
a nice building. Right now, in the community center, the staff comes, takes out tables and puts
out tables and chairs, the kids come in, they use the community center and then the kids go and
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then the staff takes all the tables and chairs and puts 'em away. So it's kind of a temporary
location for the Paukukalo Community Center. And the Boys & Girls Clubs are doing that
without any funding from the County at this point, it's all grant funding. So and they're doing a
capital campaign on the building and all the other funding is lined up, they just would like
to...the funders would like to see that they County has a little buy-in on that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: That community center is on OHA land or that's...
CHAIR WHITE: It's Hawaiian Homelands.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Hawaiian Homes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Hawaiian Homes, oh.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hawaiian Homelands.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, this was...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I mean I'm kind of...I know, I'm conflicted.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I'm torn on this one, too -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Because I, you know, I...
CHAIR WHITE: --because they've owed us a lot of money for a long time. And I know Vice-Chair
Hokama feels very strongly about this, because of that debt owed and owed for a long time. And
I...we don't often have the ability to give somebody a reason to pay us, you know. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to remove the proviso listed in Line 562.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Couch and seconded by Ms. Crivello to remove the
proviso on Line 562. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And this is probably for Mr. Couch. So there's an agreement or
whatever that Boys & Girls will have a facility upon a DHHL land and there's no, I guess, you
know, is there any risk here, is my question.
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CHAIR WHITE: I don't know about the risk. It's -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Or something.
CHAIR WHITE: --I don't know how many other places the County has paid for buildings on somebody
else's land. I'm sure there are, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Ueoka, are you familiar with the County building buildings on land that they
don't own, that the County does not own? I'm sure there're places that were, but...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Point of order. It's not for building a building, it's for just the plan and
design.
CHAIR WHITE: I know, but we're facilitating -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay...
CHAIR WHITE: --the building of the building. Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: I think we have built buildings on land we don't own, but we have long-term leases for,
in the past.
CHAIR WHITE: So this doesn't fit into that category either.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I don't...
CHAIR WHITE: So it's one of those things I think we all feel we wanna do, but it's an unusual set of
circumstances, because we're putting a facility on land that we don't own and can't lease -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: --and they owe us a whole lot of money. So, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair. You know, this is a really hard one.
CHAIR WHITE: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Because I think all of know that the children that are being served by the
Boys & Girls Club are very deserving.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: These are kids that really can use the help. And this is the kind of
people we wanna help. We don't wanna hurt the kids. But we also have this other side where
we have a, you know, this situation where our pleas are ignored; and we know these people
could pay us if they really wanted to, but they don't. So I'm trying to find a middle ground here.
And I'm wondering, if we were to approve this money and give them six months to come up
with the taxes; and if they do, we give it, and if they don't, well, then...we gotta have some
leverage.
CHAIR WHITE: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And I think that's what Mr. Hokama...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, and that's in effect what this proviso is accomplishing.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know, but it's kind of open-ended. You know, I'm trying to find an
incentive for them to do it quickly so that we can release the money and help the kids. But it's a
tough one. And I understand how Mr. Hokama feels, because this money that owed to us for a
long time and everyone else has to pay.
CHAIR WHITE: And it could be said with the money coming in, we could help with the building,
but...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And we could also run a program, too.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Ms. Crivello then Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, thank you. In my mind, first of all, our objective is to serve the
boys and girls.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That's the first objective and the purpose of, to me, if we would
fund this, okay. And there's a problem that we recognize that we have a department that should
be working with Department of Hawaiian Homelands as far as collections for whatever is due,
okay. So shouldn't this be placed...I understand where Councilmember Guzman,
Councilmember Hokama is coming from. And if I were to say, oh well, that's Hawaiian
Homelands, too bad, so sad; but, in my mind, that's the kamaaina, okay. And if we don't take
care of the kamaaina, this is where we all come from. And when I look at, number one, what the
number one objective is, are the boys and girls that are from the land of the kamaaina. So that's
my theory. And if we can place this proviso to where it belongs, that we have a finance or real
property or the department that is working with the Department of Hawaiian Homelands to do
the collection. That's who has the authority and the fiduciary responsibility, not the Boys &
Girls Club.
- 160 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

CHAIR WHITE: Right. By putting the proviso on it, we are insisting that the monies not be released.
And I don't know the history well, but my understanding is the Real Property Tax Department
and the Finance Department have been working on resolving this for quite some time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Long?
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know how many years, but my understanding is they've settled with all other
islands but us. So it's a tough one.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a hard one.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And just a reminder to the Members, this is a
grant. This isn't or gonna be a building, this is a grant that will go towards the design of a
building. But it's not a County building, it's gonna be a different building. We've done this
before on different things. I agree with Ms. Crivello that it is for the kids, and that's why I'm
passionate about it. So and just so you know, that the organization has a lease with the
Department of Hawaiian Homelands for the space, for the new building. And there's private
funding that's gonna come in and build the building, they have a long-term lease for the space.
It's just another place to keep really disadvantaged kids off the streets. So I'm pleading with my
colleagues to help remove this proviso. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion, Members? All those in favor of the motion, please signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, roll call?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We voting to do...
MR. KANESHINA: Member Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, let me just-COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wait. Hold on.
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CHAIR WHITE: --let me read...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I wanna be clear what we're voting on.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. A "yes" vote would remove the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: A "no" vote would leave it there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Wait, I'm confused on the vote...
CHAIR WHITE: "Aye"...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: "Aye" removes it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: "Aye" removes the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: "No" means leave the proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh. No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Michael Victorino?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Chair Mike White?
CHAIR WHITE: Chair votes "no".
MR. KANESHINA: Vote is four, three, motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Crivello.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Guzman and Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we were gonna break at 4:30. And so we will be in recess until -MR. KANESHINA: 7:00 p.m.
CHAIR WHITE: --7:00 p.m. And...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 6:00 p.m.
CHAIR WHITE: No. This meeting is being recessed till 7 o'clock, because we have a public hearing -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Council meeting.
CHAIR WHITE: --a Council meeting at 6:00. So if the testimony is not done by 7 o'clock, we will
reconvene and recess to a later time. If the public hearing [sic] is done at 7:00, we'll reconvene
at that time. So we are in recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

4:48 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:10 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . This meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee will come back to
order. And I believe we left off on Page...
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Seventeen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Paukukalo we were working on.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's what I got.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, you're right. I was...had moved my minutes to...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Paukukalo was the last thing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Boys & Girls Club, Paukukalo.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I just wanted to move for a motion to revisit the MAPA provision in
regards to placing a proviso in that section.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We can do it.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we can...I think there was enough discussion about making sure that it was
only for -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, for construction and design.
CHAIR WHITE: --design and construction. So we'll put that proviso in.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: I think we have consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: As long as he doesn't change the amount we're okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No. That's what I was going for.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: It was just to make sure that it's for the construction and design.
CHAIR WHITE: Right, just design and construction.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No problem.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And, Chair, I already have them putting it together. The Staff is
putting it together for us. So thank you, Mr. Guzman, but I've already -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I said I was going do it, I was going do it.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Perfect. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Your district neighbor has your back.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Got your back. No worry.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, we are on Maui Family Support Services, Inc., for Teen Voices
Program. It's a revisit for Don Couch and Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well I think I asked for that, too, but whatever.
CHAIR WHITE: Well maybe the MV didn't fit in the square.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I know. It's always left out if no room.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let him. Go for it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, I noticed a program...what page are we on? I'm sorry,
I lost it now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Seventeen.
CHAIR WHITE: Seventeen.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm on 38 already, oh my God.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Seventeen on the bottom, Mike.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Sorry about that, Chair. Okay. And you removed the
42,000. And if...I'd like to propose maybe just putting, for the puipose...like half, 21,000,
and...so my motion would be to add 21,000...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh... okay, good.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean wait, 21,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-one thousand, consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We're on Page 18, Line 599. And we have -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: All Don's.
CHAIR WHITE: --DC, DC, DC, DC, DC, DC, DC.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Come on, Couch. Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, we had discussed a while back--I can't remember now--but
the youth centers, as you heard by several of the testifiers for the Paia Youth Center, they're
overflowing with kids and including the Kihei Youth Center as well. They're staffing... you try
to do one to twenty, one to twenty-five kids. If you start getting more than that, it gets pretty
dangerous, you know. It's hard for the one person to be able to, you know, herd cats. And it's a
lot of herding of cats, as Mr. Ueoka knows. The issue is, you know, 3 percent is nice; however --
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CHAIR WHITE: You know, I'm still missing the Ueoka to the cats reference.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: There was no relation or correlation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's a private joke.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And so I'm just asking the Members, that the youth centers have been
flat for quite a long time, five, maybe six years I think or close to flat. So I have some numbers
that I wanted to...the whole youth center pot used to be 1,667,000. I was asking to, in my
proposal, to put that number up to 2 million. I know that's a high jump, but that...if you spread
it out over the years, it kinda makes things even. And we can get our, you know, more kids
taken care of. We don't have to turn away kids at all the youth centers. And it's happening at all
the youth centers. So I have some numbers that, you know, I'd like to give a shot, you know. I
broke it down per youth center. So if you don't mind, I'll just put the numbers that I have and
then you...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, before you do that -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: --what I would like you to do for us is provide your assessment on how the youth
centers have a greater pressure on their services than some of the other nonprofits that you can
think of. Because I, you know, we hear -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. No, I understand.
CHAIR WHITE: --client bases are all growing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: And so I think we all wanna help all nonprofits.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure, I understand that.
CHAIR WHITE: As I've said many times, I'd rather help the nonprofits than give the Administration
more money.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The issue is, if you look at the census numbers that were in the paper at
the beginning of last year or so, for the 2010 Census, that the increase in population, there are
about 1,500 more people that moved here from the Mainland then left. And there're 4,600 more
people that moved here from outside of the Mainland then left. And there were almost 9,000
more people who were born here than died here. We are...our population is increasing and it's
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kids. Most of it is kids. And we're just...there's a lot of kids out there that don't have places to
go. They've got to MEO, MEO's got some good programs, and there are other programs out
there. But a majority of the kids gravitate toward youth centers, because it's the staff and the
opportunity for places to, you know, all different types of programs in all different areas. And
we have...that is one of, I think, one of the other core functions required by this County is to get
a place for our kids to go. If not, I mean you've heard the stories. I think all the Members here
have heard the stories just from the one set of youth centers. You know, the youth-of-the-year
stories. That's, you know, just a little bit of what's really out there. So that's why there are more
kids coming in that need this help, and they're the ones that are most vulnerable. That's my
pitch.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And, you know, I -CHAIR WHITE: I think Ms. Baisa had her hand coming up.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I'm sorry? Oh, okay. I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: No, yeah, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, and I can appreciate what Mr. Couch is saying, you
know. Our children are our future, our leaders, et cetera. We hear that all the time and, you
know, I tend to agree with you that if we do that, then my feeling is, then you better...MEO
youth program. I mean there's others that do great jobs, too. So you can't be just saying one
without the other. My idea would be--and this is I think even fair--you know, instead of
2 million, I'd like to put another million in this pot and just divide it amongst all of 'em, that
would be my idea to be fair. Because jumping up nearly 21/2 million is a big jump.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I'm sorry, I -CHAIR WHITE: No, he was -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --I said only 333,000 more.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh? To take it to 2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Take it to 2 million from the 1.6 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Huh?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The youth centers' -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --pot before we broke it out -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --was 1.6 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I said add 333,000 to make it 2 million, to round it to 2 million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's only 333,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. You got me scared, boy. I thought...I was like, where
did this guy...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But I'm willing to take Mr. Victorino's offer of 2 million increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay...
CHAIR WHITE: I was about to say, we all better go home and come back and start fresh in the
morning.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, let...good night everybody. Good night America. Okay. I
got the picture now. I was thinking, whoa, where we going with this?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair. I, too, of course have supported the idea
of putting more money into the youth centers, 'cause I think it, you know, they are growing and
their population is dense, and it's kinda scary. 'Cause, you know, we're dealing with kids and
we all know how creative they can be. They'd have to be watched. When you have more than
25 kids to watch, I don't know how you do that. I couldn't watch one or two. But my concern
is, we're gonna split it. And I'd like to hear Mr. Couch's proposal as to how he's gonna split it
before I decide.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And before you get into the numbers, any other comments on the concept,
Members? I'd just like to add, while I support the intent, the testimony that was provided was
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asking for amounts to provide increases not for increased staffing as much. So I, you know,
again, my challenge is trying to balance things between, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And my numbers were all across the board, same percentage increase.
I don't remember what the percentage was. But, for instance, Hana Youth Center, which is the
first on our list, from 132- to 158,236. And I'll just go through and show you what the...
CHAIR WHITE: My recollection was your increase would be around 20 percent?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Under that, but I don't know. I don't remember what the number was.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Give us the numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Kihei Youth Center--while he's figuring that out--Kihei Youth Center
from 179- to 214-. Essentially there's, you know...then Lanai Youth Center from 142- to 167-.
And Molokai, from 205- to 244,8-. And then Paia, from...I'm sorry, from 185- to 228.8. And
then Boys & Girls Club, I think we lumped them up from 812- to 984-. And I don't remember
what the percentage is; it's close to 20. Is it 20?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, it's 20 percent -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Did we add...
CHAIR WHITE: --19.976.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 20 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What does that total increase add up to, Chair? Maybe Staff could help
US.

CHAIR WHITE: The 333,000 he mentioned.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It

it up to that?

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, it does.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I can't do the math in my head. Gone are the days.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did the math.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I did the math, I was wrong. I'm tired. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, I mean if everybody's okay with the concept, the total increase is,
of course, less than the 333,000, 'cause you already threw the...oh, no, we didn't do anything
there. Okay. So it would be 333,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, my fairness alarm is going off a little bit.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I understand.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause we have other youth programs.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, and quite honestly, if we're going to consider something this dramatic, I would
almost like to revisit this when we're all done with everything else, because we're not providing
this kind of a change elsewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Please. . . . (Inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, I would appreciate that, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Plus, maybe I'll be more alert by that time. Shoot.
CHAIR WHITE: And you might have found another million by then.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I'll look for it, okay. I'll let you guys know. Son of a gun.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: So we come back to that. And, you know, I'm sorry, I'm not...I shouldn't impose my
will in that way. But if you guys would prefer just to vote on that now we can, but I...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We should wait...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I agree with you, we should wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think we should wait.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We can wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, good idea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we can wait. Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Just remind me, it's on the green tab.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Green tab.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, I'll put one green tab...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next after that is the -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The animals.
CHAIR WHITE: --Line 628, Animal Management Program for Maui Humane Society. And we had a
revisit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: What I thought, DC, you got it.
CHAIR WHITE: We had provided...last night, we had provided an increase of 38,167. And the revisit
is Mr. Couch and Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry, what was the number last night?
CHAIR WHITE: The number would've added 38,167 to the 1.272224 for a total of 1,310,391.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Where's all those figures?
CHAIR WHITE: No, remember, we didn't -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --add...where there was a revisit, we didn't add the dollar amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So I have that on my copy from last night.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I know the Mayor threw in 200,000. And it looks like the
revision Reduce-Flat in 2013 is 194,776. I would like to see if I can restore that, but with a
proviso that after-hours care is done at 365 days a week...365 days a year, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I was going say, that's a long week.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. That's what it feels like here.
CHAIR WHITE: Other comments? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, is there any particular agency that's going to or it's going in a pot
or where is it going?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well it's...that is, right now, the mandate of...it's in the contract, and I
think it's in ordinance that whoever we give that contract to...the contract that we have, right
now, is with the Maui Humane Society. I'm open to if somebody thinks that we should move
that, but we have to be very careful as to, do we put that out for RFP, do we put the whole thing
out for RFP? I guess that's the biggest concern.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Maybe the wizards can help us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, I don't understand the question, and I don't understand the
answer. So please, can somebody clarify? I'm being honest, now, I don't understand what we're
trying to do here.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch . . . (inaudible)...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I was going to Line 627 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --restore the full amount -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --but proviso that that money be used for -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Three sixty-five...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --three hundred sixty-five days a year, after hours.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And to explain, Mr. Victorino. My idea was, if we're gonna put that
money in there like the other things are for certain things like Maui-Molokai Humane Society,
the animal management contract, and Lanai, whatever, where is this going? Are we gonna say
who it's going to or are we just gonna have a pot?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Because, Mr. Chair, if I read this correctly now, 626-, right, we
talking?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, 627-.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Six, two, seven.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right now, that is supposed to -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Seven.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --oh, two, seven. Hundred ninety-four, thousand?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, I was on the wrong line. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Long night.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's why I confused. Okay, I'm sorry. Okay. But, yeah, I
agree with you Ms. Baisa. Who's it going to? Or is it going to the Humane Society?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I believe that's in the contract, right now, for the Humane
Society. And I believe, but I'm not quite sure, that's also part of an ordinance, but I'm not sure
the...I think it's 16 point...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair's concern with that is that it is been their responsibility -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: --and it hasn't been a responsibility that's been fulfilled. And the challenge that I
have with your concept is that we have a situation where the Police have had to step in, other
individual have stepped up to the plate, for nothing; and, yet, we have people being paid salaries
that don't seem to have the passion to go out and care for these animals in the middle of night
that other people do. And so the Chair's got a bit of a problem with the increase. When I look
back, the testifier yesterday said that they were flat with 2005. And I went back and looked at
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the 2005 numbers, and the numbers that we were provided for 2005 reflected 961,000. So that's
not flat with what we have in there now; and with what we gave them last night, that would put
them at about a 35 percent increase over 2005. So Chair is very comfortable with flat. I'm not
convinced that the passion is there. And I believe that we can provide the nighttime service for
significantly less than providing the full complement as you've suggested. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's why I had my initials there, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd sure like to hear what everybody else has to say.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know, I tend to agree with you to a point, and then I'm
saying, if this is what they're gonna get and the others get whatever and is there duplication of
services, number one, especially when you go into the bottom groups when, you know, again,
Animal Rescue and all these other ones. I'm not sure. And the grant to the Valley Isle Animal
Rescue...oh, that's zeroed out already...no, that's...wait...that 25? Huh? Twenty? No, that's
Lanai one. I'm talking the grant to Valley Isle Rescue, is that 25?
CHAIR WHITE: Twenty-five.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twenty-five, okay. You know, there's so many numbers here we
all seeing. You know, the Humane Society for Molokai and Lanai, I have no problem with that.
And then you get the spay and neuter program, which we putting down here. Anyhow, my
whole idea is, I would like to give them at least half of the 194,000. That would be my motion,
to restore half of that 194,000 to ensure that the 24-hour care is taken care of. That's my motion;
if nobody wants to second it, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What was it again?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Half of the 194,000.
CHAIR WHITE: To provide half of the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: To who?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To the Humane Society --
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --with the proviso, just like Mr. Couch said, to make sure that the
24-hour service, 365 days a year, after-hours service, let's say, for 365 days a year would
continue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll second that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a motion by Mr. Victorino, a second by Mr. Couch to increase...or to
provide half of the 194,776...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That would be $97,388.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Discussion, Members? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question, I guess, for...how I understand it, you want to
move half of the reduction back up and to...so that they would provide what is required of them
for 365...throughout the year at 24...I guess to be on-call 24-7. But they're not...the reason why
we've moved $25,000 to the Valley Isle Animal Rescue is because they weren't carrying out that
24-7?
CHAIR WHITE: My understanding from the testimony that we've heard is that Maui Humane Society
has not been answering the calls from the Police. So the Police found a willing person, and that
person has been doing it at their own cost...or, I guess, person or persons.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So they're not doing what is...well, they're not available for
after hours?
CHAIR WHITE: They've not made themselves available.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: They have not made themselves available for after hours with the
Maui Police Department?
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So why are we giving them more money? I mean shouldn't
we try and find out what the problem is?
CHAIR WHITE: Well and I would caution you that we gave them an additional 115,000 last year, and
there was no restoration of the nighttime service then. And if you look back about that same
time frame that we were talking about earlier, I believe it was stated that the after-hours coverage
was suspended in 2010. And it was picked up by somebody answering the phone for a while,
and then the phones went unanswered. But the interesting thing is that while admin. salaries
went up by $78,000 or 84 percent, the ACO salaries during that same time frame went down by
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24,000 or about 7 percent. So, again, you know, I'm left asking, is it more important to have
more admin. than there is to be out on the road at night helping the Police and helping the
animals that they're contracted to help?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Do we have a resource -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --person?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, she's here.
CHAIR WHITE: If you'd like to have her come down?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Ms. Bouchard? Questions for Ms. Bouchard?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I do.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you for being here.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. So what we're discussing here is, we're transferring $25,000
to Valley Isle Animal Rescue, because they're available to respond and have been the contact for
the Police Department, after hours.
MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are you not available to fulfill that...is that part of your contract, to
be available after your closing hours or...
MS. BOUCHARD: It is in our contract as available if funds are available. Funds have not been
available. We cut this program when our funds got cut back in Fiscal Year '10. And I did it, as I
mentioned, and we've been doing it sort of at no cost with salary people, 'cause we don't charge
extra to go out and do that versus my officers which get, you know, usually paid overtime
because that's above and beyond their eight-hour day if they get called out. So it was a matter of
funding cuts. And it is a little frustrating to be cut by the County and then still expect a certain
level of services without the funding to go along with it. And I take great offense on behalf of all
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of my staff and volunteers to have our passion called into question, that is highly offensive to
me.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So you are not able to adjust your budget to meet what is required
in your contract?
MS. BOUCHARD: If this body provisos that in our contract, then we just have to cut something else.
The admin. increases that were referred to were...have not been charged to the County. So those
are things that we took on privately. And that's the field officers, or County positions, so they've
been cut because the County cut the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So you have over a million dollars -MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --per fiscal year.
MS. BOUCHARD: We take in 22 animals a day and we answer about 10,000 calls in the field. We
touch about 30,000 people a year via our contractual obligations for a little over a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: With the County -MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --what is asked of you for...
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I work for a nonprofit and we usually skim everything, just go
without, so...
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah, we have been going without. My staff have not had increases in over five
years. It's very hard to attract qualified staff and retain qualified staff when you're paying
substandard wages. And my officers, as Chair White correctly pointed out, are making an
average of $16 an hour when the national average is $20 an hour. So that's why I take such
offense to the statement about passion, because they're not doing it for money, they're doing it
for passion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Other questions, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So if the motion that's on the table is 194,000 divided by
two...quickly...
- 178 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Nine seven three eight eight.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Huh?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: He said, 97,388.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nine seven three eight eight, I believe, is what he said?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 97,388.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Is that enough to resume the after-hours?
MS. BOUCHARD: No, not really. I will have to cut something else if the Council provisos that.
Because, again, this funding is from, you know, we're operating at levels past. Gas, electric, all
that stuff has gone up and it, you know, it costs more. I mean we've heard this from everybody
else and I'm kinda getting these taut looks like, humph, that it, you know, we should be able to
do it for the same amount of money we've had years ago. We're in the same position all of the
other nonprofits are in. Our costs have risen and, you know, it costs more to do the job that we
were doing... every year it costs more. So a flat budget is a cut, because our expenses rise every
year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you very much, Chair; and thank you, Ms. Bouchard, for being
here.
MS. BOUCHARD: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What is your request? You're saying that what we're offering is not
enough. Well what is the real request?
MS. BOUCHARD: The request brings us up to the...what was in there, the 204,000 is all that we're
asking to stay in there, from the Mayor. If other pieces are taken out of the program, if that's
what this body chooses to do, then obviously it would be less that amount. But, you know, that
was our request, to be reinstated back to Fiscal Year '09 so we could at least level out a little bit
instead of losing Like I say, we've been spending approximately two to three hundred thousand
a year funding what is in our contract. And, you know, the other thing is, we look at that
contract and we pare it down and we stop doing as much for the County, because something's
gotta give, you know. We can't...we've gotta figure out how to make the money match what it
is that the County expects from us.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so with that number that you just gave me -MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --you could not include that after-hours program?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes. I mean we-COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You could?
MS. BOUCHARD: --if you...yeah -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You could.
MS. BOUCHARD: --and, you know, if you do that, we can do that. And we may just have to have less
officers on the road during the day if we find that we're still at a shortage. But I understand, and
I agree that that is an important service. And, certainly, it would be a lot less cumbersome for us
to do that than to pay another agency. We said 22,500 to do that. So if you're giving 25- to this
other entity to do it, we can save you a couple of thousand right there. 'Cause we had put in our
proposal to the Department that that would be 22,500 to do the afterhours.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just wanted to be sure that, you know, we have the right numbers.
Thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, any other questions for Ms. Bouchard? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well I'm confused now, 'cause we're offering to bring it back up to
add--how...again?--ninety...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Nine seven three eight eight.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Nine seven three eight eight. I write it down this time. And you just
said, 22,500, you can do the afterhours, so that's a lot more than 22,500.
MS. BOUCHARD: Right. I'm saying, if you proviso it, we'll do it; but we'll have to cut something
else. So maybe we'll have to close one day and not take animals in that day or do something
else. That's the cost to do the after-hours piece. We do a lot more than that. You know, we
were open seven days a week, we're taking in the 22 animals a day, we're providing adoptions,
we're doing returns for people, you know, we're doing education. There's a lot of other things
that we do besides just the field services.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Now, the other thing, what would the after-hours...I mean what
happens on an after-hour call?
MS. BOUCHARD: Well that depends what the call's for. I mean it could be...we do...after hours, we
have always kept for emergencies. So if it's something that can wait till the next day, you know,
we don't respond. So an emergency is, in order of priority, probably would be like a dangerous
animal where public safety is being threatened, that would definitely a high priority. An injured
animal that was suffering would be a high priority. And other calls might be animals that are
running at large or something like that, as well, we might respond to depending on the situation,
if it's an emergency. Assistance with Police. If they're going in or if there's an accident or
somebody's been arrested and there's an animal there, we've assisted with that. And then,
obviously, if there's any cruelty or neglect, emergency-type situations like what was on Oahu
earlier this week, we would be called out for something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the only thing that is a little confusing is that we had two different
groups come up and testify say that they do that. One, Valley Isle Animal Rescue and then
another one -CHAIR WHITE: Pitbull Rescue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Pitbull Rescue, if the Valley Isle -MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and they haven't asked for any money. I mean I understand the
Chair's idea about giving them some money. But they haven't asked for money and they've
been doing it for how long now for no money.
MS. BOUCHARD: I'm not sure exactly. A little over a year, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Members, other questions for Ms. Bouchard? Seeing none, thank you, Ms. Bouchard.
Okay, Members, what's your pleasure?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well we have a -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Do we have a motion on the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --motion on the table.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have a motion on the floor, don't we?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further discussion?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's to go to 97,388.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So this money that we're trying to...that's in this proviso is being
divvied up amongst the three new line items below, right? It's sorta deducted out -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --the seventy-five twenty and seventy-five. So now we wanna put
some back. So are we -CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --we're subtracting from the...
CHAIR WHITE: No, the motion does not include -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That?
CHAIR WHITE: --returning the proviso. It's just giving an additional amount to the amount remaining
after the proviso's removed down below.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And it seems like quite a bit more from what Ms. Bouchard
actually needs for this particular service, this proviso is supposed to cover. This proviso's for
ninety-seven three, and she said for twenty-two five she could do the afterhours.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So it seems to be quite a bit of a jump of what she actually needs
for the services we're all concerned about. So I kind of can't be in favor of that. So that's just
my comment. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further comments?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I, you know, I'm trying to do something that I thought was right,
but if Ms. Bouchard thinks she can do it for 22,500; but, yet, on the same thing she says, I'm
gonna have to close a day. I am very confused.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I cannot help something or someone who cannot explain,
clearly, what the problem is, okay. Either she come up and clearly get it straight or I will not
support this, either; and I made the motion, so I would withdraw the motion. So I'm asking, one
more time, for Ms. Bouchard to explain to us, if we give her $97,388 to run the after-hour
program for 365 days, when she stated she could do it for 22,500, clear the air or else forget it.
And I'm...that's the way I feel right now, Chair. I'm sorry.
MS. BOUCHARD: So let me try and be as clear as I can, Mr. Victorino, and I apologize if I haven't
been clear. The increase is for more than just after hours. We are hemorrhaging at a rate of
$300,000 a year, approximately, in what it costs to do our contractual obligations with the
County and what the County is paying us. That's why we're asking for the large amount. We're
trying to get back...restore it to where we were when we were cut back in Fiscal Year '10. The
cost of the afterhours, alone, is 22,500. If that's all this body is concerned about, that's all it
costs. But we will have to cut because there's a bigger need than more than just for the
afterhours. We can't afford...we're subsidizing the cost of running what we need to do for the
County contract, right now, to the tune of about 300,000 a year. So that's why I'm asking for a
larger amount than 22,500. We were asked to break it down by the Mayor's Office. We were
asked to give them an itemized breakdown of what each item cost and the Council all received a
copy of that. So we broke out, what does it cost to do field services during the day, what does it
cost to do during the night, what does it cost to take in the animals, what does it cost to do the
adoption program, what does it cost to do the reclaim program? We broke all of the various
programs, and there are numerous programs that we do as part of our County contract. All of
those were broken out and given a separate price. That's why I'm telling you the specific price
for afterhours was 22,500. But our need to run the operation for the full scope of the County
contract, for the full scope of what the County asked us to do, is actually 300,000. I'm simply
asking you to restore what the Mayor put in his budget of 200,000, so we can get a little bit
closer.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'll let others.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And, excuse me, if I'm...
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino, are you done?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, go ahead. Let others, please.
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CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm hearing you.
MS. BOUCHARD: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm trying to understand from a nonprofit. So do you have, like,
actuals?
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And what...so you're finding that your operating at a loss -MS. BOUCHARD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --by taking this contract?
MS. BOUCHARD: Oh, absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The other providers, beside you, you think that can manage this?
MS. BOUCHARD: I believe that we are the only people that can manage in its entirety, because we are
the only organization with a shelter that can handle 22 animals a day coming in. I think we're
pretty much the only organization with a shelter, let alone one that can handle 22 animals a day.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see. Okay.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah. And that's why we didn't bid, because it was offered to us because we had
the facility.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see. So with your actuals, your actual...like a financial
statement...
MS. BOUCHARD: Yes, and I actually gave them to Mr. Guzman; I know, for a fact, has them. It was
asked from the Department of Housing and Human Concerns, and I submitted those last week, I
believe. Member Guzman I know, I specifically handed them to him, but gave them to the
Department so they were supposed to have been disseminated to the Council.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, you gave me a packet, yeah, that was on the floor. But that
was...you had mentioned to me that...I asked you if you've given it to all the Members; and you
said, "yes". Don't get into an argument with me here on the floor and blame me that you
don't...
MS. BOUCHARD: No, I did not. I gave it to Ms. Ferguson and Department of Housing and Human
Concerns as requested. And I personally handed you a packet, because they had said that you
were the one that made the request. But I did. I gave it to Ms. Ferguson, so it would be
disseminated to the Council as requested.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
MS. BOUCHARD: I'm not trying to argue with anybody.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Chair, for a moment. I'm gonna go to my office and grab what
packet that she may have given to me. But I'd ask for a quick recess at this point.
CHAIR WHITE: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd like to see the document, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I was gonna have you go get the document while Mr. Couch has actually asked
to be recognized -COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --just prior to you.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm a little confused, now. I'm sorry. So you're saying you're losing
300,000 a year for that contract? How often do you sign the contract?
MS. BOUCHARD: Every year. And this was what I said when I said that we've spent $1 5 million
over the past four years. Because of the cuts, we understand that the County has cuts. We care
about the programs, we believe in the programs, so we've been funding it.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. My question to you is, if you're losing $300,000 a year, why are
you signing the contract?
MS. BOUCHARD: Because we care about the programs and we believe in the programs and we're
passionate about the programs and the animals need to have a safety net and we're there and
we've been providing it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I don't know how this works or whatnot, Mr. Chair, but I guess
that's a question for Housing and Human Concerns. I'm just curious why this isn't put up for
RFP every year if...you know, I understand you're losing $300,000 a year. But I mean if I were
doing it...I was on the Board of the Boys & Girls Club. If we started losing $300,000 a year,
we'd say, we're done.
MS. BOUCHARD: Yeah, I'm sure that that discussion will be held.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I'd like to wait for Mr. Guzman's
paperwork.
CHAIR WHITE: Well Ms. Baisa has a question as well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I just have a comment about this idea of if you're losing $300,000 a
year, well you say, aloha. You know, a lot of the nonprofits are not being compensated for what
they do and you know that, because you're involved. As a board member, raising money and
looking everywhere, under a rock, trying to make things work. You know, nonprofits continue
to do that, because they believe in the mission, and so the board members go out and hustle and
they look for volunteers and donations and do whatever they have to do. So it's not unusual that
you would continue doing something even if you were losing money. I just wanted to remind us
that we all do that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, if there are no further questions, we'll wait for Mr. Guzman to come back.
We'll be in recess for five minutes? Two minutes?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Two minutes.
CHAIR WHITE: . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

7:52 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:59 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee is coming back to
order. Members, Mr. Guzman went to the office and came back, and I don't believe it's
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Mr. Guzman's job to distribute things. And I'm assuming that his thought was that they were
being presented to him and that others were being presented the same document. So is there any
further discussion on this item? There's a motion on the floor. I believe at the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did he?
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon me?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Did he withdraw?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did you withdraw it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn't withdraw.
CHAIR WHITE: There's a motion on the floor to provide a...or to restore 97,388. Any further
discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And if the maker of the motion doesn't mind a friendly
amendment to change the proviso to say that 25,000 shall be used for afterhours; otherwise, the
whole amount, you know, what are they gonna do with it if it doesn't...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's fine. If that's a friendly amendment, then I can accept
that...
CHAIR WHITE: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Proviso that.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion, Members? The Chair would just like to say that this
particular organization is a very, very critical part of this County, but the operation has lost
credibility with me and I know with many others in the community. And it's very hard not to
support increases; but, at this time, I simply can't do it. So, if there are no other questions, Chair
would call for the vote. All those in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no".
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR WHITE: Roll call, please?
MR. KANESHINA: Member Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Michael Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aye.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Mike White?
CHAIR WHITE: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Three to four, motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, and Victorino.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Cochran, Crivello, and Guzman.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
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EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's it.
CHAIR WHITE: Moving on to Lanai Animal Rescue.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Molokai Humane Society.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm sorry. Yeah...oh, no, we had consensus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, we got consensus, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: We did not have consensus on Lanai Animal Rescue, I believe for $20,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe the Member from the district was not supportive of an
increase there. His comment, I believe, was there's humans that need to be taken care of before
animals, was his comment.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. The Chair feels that we still need to support this effort. One of the main
focuses is to provide a sanctuary to protect native birds. So they basically collect the cats from
Lanai and sequester them.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further questions, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus. Okay. The next one is a revisit for Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I know we've had people come up from this
organization and we had meetings with them and whatnot. My concern, couple things. One is, it
probably should be more to 100,000. Second is, should be done along the same lines as that's
being done at the Humane Society, in that, if people come in for the vouchers, the coupons, that
they are able to pass those out like the Humane Society does. And I don't know how...if we
need to proviso that or if the program itself is set up that way.
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CHAIR WHITE: The intent is to provide vouchers and information to all the veterinary services on the
island. And if the Humane Society would be interested in passing them out, I'm sure that would
be -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --very workable.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And then, in that case, my request would be, since this is a important
program and it seems to at least stem the increase, hard to say, I'd like to move to change the
number to 100,000 instead of 75-.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Discussion? There's a motion by Mr. Couch and a second by Ms. Baisa to increase
the amount to 100,000. Discussion? The Chair doesn't feel that that is necessary, because the
amount was 75,000 this year, and it's been drawn down to...well it's been drawn down by the
Humane Society to the tune of somewhere between 25 and 35 thousand dollars. So I think the
amount is adequate. And rather than increasing it arbitrarily, I'd rather leave it at the same
amount and let them go through a year of operation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm sorry, I thought I heard testimony that it was expended
every year, so...
CHAIR WHITE: Well it has been, but it's been partially used for the spay-neuters at the Humane
Society.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further discussion or...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll withdraw my motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So do we have consensus on that?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The next one is the grant to Valley Isle Animal Rescue - EC, MV and DC.
Elle, you wanna take that one?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I forget why my initials were there.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Too long. Too long, too many
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think DC should take this one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: MV's number two. MV the second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair. I think question came up, really, in our discussions,
this was a new-funded one, you know. And so the question was on the organization itself, and I
think I've done some research and found to be very credible. And if they're willing to do the
night, you now, the overnight, the after-hour program, and they can do it for 25-, well then, I
want somebody to do it, yeah, I want somebody to do it. So I can support this, I can...if there's
consensus, I say, consensus then.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: My only concern, I remember what the DC is there for, is just the
501(c)(3) and can they accept our funding.
CHAIR WHITE: It is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It is?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I told you, I checked on it.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, moving to Department of Liquor. And the Chair is going to
withdraw the request for the deletion of all vehicle replacements and withdraw the request for
reduced funding.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair's recommendation is to simply reduce vacant E/Ps of which, I believe,
there are eight. And if I did the calculation comparing...and this is very light. If we apply the
ratio of licensees to inspectors that Oahu has, the reduction to the total employee count in the
Department of Liquor in the inspector line would be more than half. So we're leaving all
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existing, filled positions intact. We're just simply eliminating the vacant positions. And we will
deal with the funding issue at a later date, because we can't calculate the revenues. If we play
with the revenues, we have to have a balanced budget. So this is all moving in the direction of
fulfilling the Chair's wishes, but doing it a little bit differently. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you, Chair. You know, the Department was here
earlier. And I think gave Mr. Baz and myself, and I cannot find that paper for the...I mean
there's just too much paper already...
CHAIR WHITE: Was that...I know the feeling.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I mean this is...no, I apologize. This is getting to be a point
where I'd just like to throw everything out and just start over, but I can't, 'cause something's
important. But I cannot find that...do you have it, Sandy?
CHAIR WHITE: Was that the revenues?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. There was a report that she was gonna share with you,
Mr. Chair. And she gave it...oh, God. Do you have it, Sandy?
MR. BAZ: I have it via e-mail.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And it was something very important to understand how this
works. And I think if Sandy can explain to you, our Budget Director, you may have a change of
heart, I really believe that.
CHAIR WHITE: It's gonna have to be something spectacular.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, well wait. You guys haven't heard it, yet. That's why I'm
telling you. It's almost like going to heaven and coming back.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Ooh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I just need to find the paper.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know how that's like.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's hear it.
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CHAIR WHITE: It's getting very late or very deep.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Deep.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sandy, you better be good at it.
MR. BAZ: Okay. Looks like...hold on. Yeah, the Liquor Department e-mailed me and handed
Mr. Victorino a copy. I forwarded it to the Staff as well, but I don't think they've had a time to
even look probably at the e-mail since they've been following the Budget so closely. Basically,
it listed the vacant positions and the status of those vacancies. LC-0019 is an Account Clerk III
is currently in recruitment. The...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Is what? I'm sorry.
MR. BAZ: Currently in recruitment.
CHAIR WHITE: Currently in recruitment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We can't hear, Sandy.
MR. BAZ: Sorry about that. Okay. LC-0003, which is the Chief Liquor Control Officer, is they're
updating the class specifications. LC-0028, Liquor Control Officer I, is under...they're
reallocating it down to a...it's currently budgeted at II and they're reallocating it down to a I and
then in process of doing the reallocation and recruitment. Liquor Control Trainee, there's three
of those positions that they are...two are recruiting and one of them has...employee has return
rights. I'm not sure what the status of that is, but he has return rights in that position. There are
two Liquor Control Officer Ills that are pending qualified applicants. So they're also in the
hiring process of those. So those are the vacant positions that were listed. Then...let's see.
Trying to see if there's any other relevant information on here. So the salary reduction, as
proposed by Chair White--well, this was prior to--would've been $330,000 in salaries. The
overhead reduction paid to the General Fund would've been 233,041. And then...see, it says,
the savings...well, Mr. Chair, I don't know if you want me to go on.
CHAIR WHITE: No, you know, the Chair's not gonna change his position. I thought this was gonna be
a revelation that the staffing was really, really low or something of that sort. But, you know,
we've...anyway, my intent is to reduce the expense here. And because it's the Liquor Fund, we
don't save anything. But the Chair is comfortable that either the hotels and the other licensees
through commercial property taxes are providing us enough that as long as we feel we're saving
some money on this side, we can spend it over here on programs that the nonprofit sector can
help us with for youth education and other challenges that we might have with alcohol education.
Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And you said that eight positions, E/Ps?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yes. And we're not...and my understanding is we're just doing E/Ps. We're not
specifically taking like the Liquor--what is it?--the Chief Liquor Control Officer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, understood.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the reason for not deleting all vehicle replacements?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, I just...I guess I felt badly if I was taking eight E/Ps that I should at least let 'em
have some cars.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm sorry. I have an issue with any...
CHAIR WHITE: You know what, let's deal with these issues one at a time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair is going to stand by his position to delete all vacant E/Ps...I should say, just
delete eight E/Ps.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you need a motion for that?
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, for the sake of settling it, I'll make the motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Then we vote, then we know.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Chair Baisa to delete eight E/Ps from the Liquor
Department. And it's been seconded by Mr. Couch. Further discussion? Seeing none, all those
in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
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CHAIR WHITE: Measure carries, six "ayes"; one "no", Mr. Victorino.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and
Guzman.
NOES: Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Now, we can deal with the vehicle replacement. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Did we determine that it was necessary for all the inspectors to have a
vehicle, a take-home vehicle. I guess this is take-home vehicles.
CHAIR WHITE: It's not all the positions. My recollection is, they had six or eight take-home vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: . . . (Inaudible) . . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Of which one of them was the Director's -CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --who thinks that it's a perk.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct. But we can't do that through the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We can't. Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: We can only do it through the enforcement of the vehicle use policy.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So the question on the table is, whether we provide the funding for the replacement
vehicles or not.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well there's no funding amount in there.
CHAIR WHITE: No, I didn't pull the amounts.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Do you know what the amount is?
CHAIR WHITE: I don't. You guys...
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
MR. KANESHINA: Just maybe some guidance. You know, you guys all are probably aware, this is a
Special Fund -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. KANESHINA: --the Liquor Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: So if we were to reduce their budget, their operating expenditures, we would...in
order to balance, we would have to reduce the revenue somehow. The only way to reduce the
revenue would be go into Rates and Fees.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
MR. KANESHINA: Staff, and I think, when I spoke to Mr. Baz about it, on the side, you know, maybe
a week ago, I don't have the breakout of this permit equals this amount of revenue, this permit
equals this amount of revenue and how to tweak the revenues to offset the cut that you would do
in...for the vehicle. So, you know, so it would pretty much be just an arbitrary cut to the
revenue. And I don't know if that would be something that'd be worth saving some money. But
if I'm wrong, you know, Member Baz...Mr. Baz can correct me. But...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)...
CHAIR WHITE: Boy, that's three times in two days.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Four.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Four.
CHAIR WHITE: Four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, I think Member Kaneshina...Mr. Kaneshina -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)...
MR. BAZ: --appropriately worded that. You know, this Liquor Department is controlled by HRS. A
lot of the functions and requirements are in Hawaii Revised Statutes. And without a lot of
review, I think it's something that can be and maybe should be discussed in maybe Policy
Committee or something like that. But, at this point in the budget process, I agree with
Mr. Kaneshina--would not be something that I would want to either revise the estimated revenue
on without some kind of correlation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: When we deleted the E/Ps, we did not delete any funding for them.
CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: That's why we're not playing with the funding.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, understand.
CHAIR WHITE: So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think this needs to go to, I guess, Policy, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would think Policy.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, Ms. Cochran is next.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, thank you. So that changes my whole thinking around then,
because the monies and adjusting rates and fees, as Mr. Kaneshina was mentioning, wouldn't
really come into play if we minus'd E/P and not the funding. I just thought, well let's just tack
on another use.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, let me explain. The reason we're not addressing the funding is because we have
to balance the Budget.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: So the money won't be spent by the Department. What happens is, they collect
revenues, they spend the money, they're allowed to hang on to 20 percent of their annual budget
and then they have to credit back the whatever overage there is to the licensees. So they don't
actually send them a check, they just simply reduce the fee for the next year. So the amount of
money returned to a licensee is...or credited to licensees last year was about 654,000. So that's
kind of the...that's part of the pot that we're playing with, just to give you a sense. So I really
kind of underbid it in the...with the 150,000. But I'm comfortable that's a good start. We can
work on the accounting through the year, and then figure out how else we wanna move or where
else we wanna move.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So on the question of the vehicles, they have two vehicles, and they're requesting to
replace two vehicles at a cost of 25,000 each. I would suggest we just let that go through since
we can't mess with a number. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, how many vehicles that they were asking for?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two.
CHAIR WHITE: Two. So we're restoring the two vehicles.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. 'Cause I wanted to make a point on that, because
according to the Deputy, he has hired three new female officers and he wanted to make sure they
had reliable cars. Because they start at 7:00 in the evening.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I would agree with him.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So but, you know, I understand. My paper had
disappeared from my desk, because it's with all the other rates and fees, it was taken off when
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they picked up everything. So I gotta go find it, but he showed me some interesting statistics that
you need to see, Mr. Chair. But I'll find it and I'll get it to you. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we will change the item on Line 649 to read, "18 equivalent personnel".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But before we wrap up this Liquor Department, I have a little bit of
angst here. I understand what we're trying to do, and the positions, we took 'em out. Is there
gonna be any kind of, you know from our discussions with the Director--and I'm sorry, but I
think I missed the day that the Director came, I was not here--did we discuss anything like that
with him in terms of enforcement? What I'm afraid of is, you know, as much as I...this is not
my favorite thing, I don't want liquor running wild on Maui and I don't know how important
these bodies are.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't know what their, you know, we've run averages on...the annual average of
vacancies on other departments. I don't think we ran one on this...Josiah, did you? Yeah, we
were focusing more on the higher number of vacancy departments. So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So eight vacancies was a higher number department?
CHAIR WHITE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's a lower?
CHAIR WHITE: We were looking at the, like, the Police, Fire, Parks and all the ones with, you know,
many more than eight vacancies.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: 'Cause, you know, I'm pretty sure some people would say, well if
you're gonna take away the inspectors, then all of this alcohol is gonna go crazy here on Maui.
And is that something we wanna deal with?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, you know, you're note of caution is well taken. If you wanna reduce that to six,
we can change it next year if we feel appropriate.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would might be more comfortable rather than taking all.
CHAIR WHITE: I think you're caution is well noted. So...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Can we revisit that?
CHAIR WHITE: Well I...yeah, I'm comfortable taking it back down to six instead of eight.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't know about my colleagues, Chair.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's better than...thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Good point. So it will be limited to 20 equivalent personnel.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. What time do you want to go to tonight?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Finish.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Finish.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: We're good.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Well I'm not sure we're gonna finish, but -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Keep going.
CHAIR WHITE: --we'd get a lot further.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Today or tomorrow, let's go.
CHAIR WHITE: My sense is that we should go until 10:00. I wanna get some sleep tonight before
we -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: --head into a long day tomorrow.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm good going home at 9:00, but...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well let's see what we can get done.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Let's just continue.
CHAIR WHITE: Let me just let you...our plan was not to rerun any numbers today.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Because I don't think we're gonna get through this whole thing in, you know, by the
time we get to 10:00. But we should be able to finish it by the time we get to lunch. I mean we
can take whatever lunch break we need to--I won't use the word I used last night--to recalculate
and provide you with the...okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So let's keep moving along. Okay. The Department of Management, Reduce
Registration and Training Fees, $10,000, is a revisit by Ms. Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: Chair's position is to maintain the reduction. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I'll go for half.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus on half?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Couch, have you found us any positions?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I thought we said we weren't gonna do that? We're gonna make
the...ask the Administration.
CHAIR WHITE: Well I think the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I can.
CHAIR WHITE: --resolution that Mr. Guzman came up with on the DMV positions is a realistic one.
The Chair would be open to providing him I think he said...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The two "fives" I think.
CHAIR WHITE: No, not...no, it was one of the fives and one of the others. I have it written down on
the other sheet, unless one of you has it. Yeah, the numbers I have is he...the number one
position he wanted was the first one, Line...the Systems Analyst II and the second one was
Systems Analyst V. So the Chair would accept providing them two of those positions with the
understanding that they try to reallocate the other two from some other department.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So you're gonna get rid of Line -CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --you're gonna restore Line...
CHAIR WHITE: We have consensus on Line 672 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 674?
CHAIR WHITE: 674.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: And the other two cuts remain
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And we...okay, and then, Mr. Couch, the Premium Pay, the Chair will ask for
consensus on restoring that.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: They'll probably need it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Chair? Since we only put two positions, can we just cut
that in half?
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, there's other staff.
CHAIR WHITE: No, there's overtime for more than just the additional staff. It's a...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I don't agree with it, but the heck, I don't wanna worry with
that. Just go.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I don't agree, but that's okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then the...DC, you had a revisit on the VoIP System.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, Mr. Chair, having dealt with several phone systems in several
different companies, if we're past the expiration...I mean even the maintenance date on these
things, you know, it's not worth it to have the County be at risk for that. So, in my opinion, I
think the new...this kinda goes with the new voice-over IP phone system. So it's kind of, we
have to do it hand in hand, so if we approve this, then we have to approve the phone system as
well. But I think since we're already doing it at the Police Department, the new Police Station,
we gotta get up with the times. We've been holding back this Department for such a long time.
Not only this Council, but many Councils back, even probably before Mr. Victorino and
everybody else that's been here. So it's time to step up before prices get way out of whack. And
I'm just requesting to have this -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Put back.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --put back -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Restore it?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --restore it, Line 679.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I'll make one last stab at it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I mean we hear from all the businesses that many are, you know, still not even close
to being back to where they were, it's very difficult for me to add another million dollars, and
we're adding a lot of money back today -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR WHITE: --and that's gonna result in tax increases on business and others. And so we just have
to keep that in mind that this is...we may be upgrading to a system that many businesses can't
even come close to affording.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that they got four years ago.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That many businesses probably got four years ago.
CHAIR WHITE: Well not that many
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, I know.
CHAIR WHITE: So, okay, let's...well, do you have a recommended number that you'd like to put
back?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The full amount.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The full amount was what I mentioned.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry, I didn't hear that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: If you need it, I'll make a motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Please do.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to restore the amount in Line 679.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: It's been moved by Mr. Couch, seconded by Mrs. Baisa to restore Line 679. Any
discussion, Members? Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Chair votes, "no". Measure passes, six, one.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.
NOES: Chair White.
ABSTAIN: None.
- 204 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Reduce Computer PC...we have DC, SC, GB.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. What happened to Reduce Airfare?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The rest.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we approved that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: All done?
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, I'm sorry, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, no, it was Mike White, yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. If one of you'd like to make a mess...uh, make a mess -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)...
CHAIR WHITE: --make a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Make a mess?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's a mess right now.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair's still not compelled to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to change the amount in Line 682 to negative
14,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a motion by Mr. Couch and a second by Ms. Baisa to change the
reduction of expense on Line 682 to a negative 14-...from a negative 27,000 to a negative of
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14,000. Any discussion, Members? Seeing none, all those in favor, please signify by saying,
"aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Chair and Mr. Victorino vote "no"; and measure passes, affirmative votes to two.
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and Guzman.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Now we're on Line 683.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'll try that, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go for it.
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'll try. Okay. So if we're to look at the reduction of computer
equipment for PC replacement, and we have here, we've restored the voice-over, the I guess the
Internet system. So I think we have to decide if we want Line 683 restored. If that's going to be
restored, we also need to restore Line 680, the computer software. Right? Because if you have
the new...the PC replacement, we're gonna need to update it. Because we have a reduction,
right?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We've restored half of it, 150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. I don't...oh, okay, I'm sorry.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 681.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, 681 restored. Okay. So...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair's position is, again, that we are providing, yeah, 600,000 and the
Department still had about $370,000 in computers that we approved a year ago and they still
haven't spent or encumbered the money.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So the Chair feels that this is adequate. And if they speed up their process, they can
come back for a budget amendment. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, since my initials on there as well...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, I'm sorry, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm sorry. So our...I would suggest at least restoring half the 400-.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, but I think...yes, that's a motion. If you wanna second it?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And then have the discussion.
CHAIR WHITE: Motion by Ms. Crivello and a second by Ms. Baisa to restore 200,000 of the 400,000
deletion. Discussion, Members? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We have, what, 33, 34 people in IT? If we were to buy all the
computers at once and try to install them, it can't happen. You have to buy 'em a little bit at a
time. And Mr. Verkerke told us that they're gonna spend all the money by the end of the fiscal
period; we're still couple months away. So, you know, just because we're looking at a thing and
say, oh, they're gonna be 300,000...or they're still $300,000 short, we've been shortening these
guys for years and I just...I would rather have the whole amount.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Let me just put a little perspective to that. We allocated them $500,000 last
year. We had a carryover into this year's budget for, I think, 230- from the year before. So they
still have 370- out of the 500- that we allocated them. So I think by...well, using my number of
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600-, we're still giving them more. If this measure passes, that gives 'em 800- compared to the
500- last year. And so, you're right, they have to buy them in small amounts. But they've been
doing that, and they're...I doubt that if they're buying them in small amounts, they're gonna be
able to spend the remaining amount. So I think we're in...I think my number was pretty
generous. I think this motion is very generous.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright.
CHAIR WHITE: And knowing Mr. Verkerke, being the very loyal individual that he is to the County,
I'm sure that when he comes in here, he's figured it out that he better ask for more than what he
really needs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, so you're saying this is an inflated number?
CHAIR WHITE: That's why I'm comfortable with my six.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: I've been looking at the...I'm, you know, I'm -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I understand.
CHAIR WHITE: --I'm still happy sticking with my number.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand. Can we have a short recess, sir?
CHAIR WHITE: Depends on how far you're going.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two minutes.
CHAIR WHITE: Two-minute recess. . . . (gavel).. .

RECESS:

8:39 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:45 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . The Budget and Finance meeting will come back to order. Members,
we are still on Line 683 out of 2,400, so we need to move. And we can play around with these
numbers all night long, and we'll all turn into pumpkins.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: So back to...we have a motion on the floor --
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Motion on the floor.
CHAIR WHITE: --and we're in discussion. The motion on the floor is to reduce the Chair's
recommended reduction...no, I'm sorry, to restore 200,000 of the Chair's -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: By half.
CHAIR WHITE: --reduction of 400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Call for the question.
CHAIR WHITE: I would suggest that you guys might want me to call for the question, before
somebody changes their mind.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes, call for question.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Call for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Call for the question.
CHAIR WHITE: I'm happy if somebody wants to change...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, we don't want...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any further discussion, Members? Seeing none, all those in favor, signify by
saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no". Chair votes "no". Six "ayes", one "no".
VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.
NOES: Chair White.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
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ACTION: APPROVE.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And, Mr. Chair, the next line? We just voted "yes" on the phone
system.
CHAIR WHITE: I assume the vote will be six, one on this as well?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Does anyone else want to join me?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: No, this is not consensus, because...well...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, you want us to go through the motions?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, make a motion, because I'm...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to restore Line 684 to its...just restore Line 684.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait. There's no second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. And motion by Mr. Couch, second by Ms. Cochran to restore Line 684.
Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Did I understand that Countywide includes...these monies include
for the Police Department and the neighbor islands and every...
CHAIR WHITE: My understanding is that the amount...this will be added to the 450,000 or something
like that for the Police phone system. So this will...Police phone system will deal with the
Wailuku Police Station and the Kihei Police Station, mostly, and then it will connect into this to
get out to the other stations. And my understanding--Mr. Couch, you can add to this--is that with
this system, it will improve the communication to the other islands.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
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CHAIR WHITE: Whether systems will be...or VoIP systems will be installed over there, I don't
remember hearing, but I would assume...I'm not gonna assume anything. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, what Mr. Verkerke said was that any... since it is going to a
voice-over IP system, any place there's a computer, there can be a phone, which based on the
enhanced wireless system that they've built and all of the current networking, it's pretty much all
County facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And $1 million and includes maintenance, installation and the
instrument if need be?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? I'm not sure about that answer, Ms. Crivello, I know this is what they're asking
for, would be this first years' worth of...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, I'm sorry, I failed to ask him those questions.
CHAIR WHITE: That's alright. This is all a learning process. And hopefully we'll, you know, we'll
all know questions asked next year. Okay. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I really like Mr. Verkerke and believe he's very trustworthy and
does an awesome job for this County. So I have all confidence in him that what he's asking for
is definitely gonna be utilized in a very -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --you know, good manner So I am very confident in his call on
this.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I think we all agree with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, we do.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay. Seeing no further discussion, all those in favor of this motion, please
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
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CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Chair and Mr. Victorino vote "no". Five "ayes", measure passes.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and Guzman.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: And 685, Chair recommends...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus on 685 and 686. Leave 'em...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Moving on, GIS.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we're down to 700.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, Office of the Mayor.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair, instead of arguing over the line of cuts, the Chair would like to
recommend...as I mentioned last night, the...well, what I mentioned last night was the salaries
that are shown here came from three Index Codes that were put in the Budget last year. And so
we have the salaries here now, those Index Codes still have the same amount in them. So the
Chair's proposal would be simply to...instead of taking all these reductions, and let me clarify
that the 3,290 and the 85,888, we agreed would come back in when we do the transfer for salary
adjustments. So the remaining amount represents...what was the calculation, Michele, about
roughly 200,000?
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MS. YOSHIMURA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
MS. YOSHIMURA: . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so my recollection is in the other accounts, there's about $115,000. I'd like to
eliminate the $115,000 in those three Sub-Object Codes, because there was...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I don't...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
CHAIR WHITE: Well, okay. Like we did on the Council, all I'm asking for is instead of taking all the
rest of these out, I'm just asking for reducing the number by 115,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
CHAIR WHITE: Or consensus, I don't care...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Or consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You're gonna cut...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 115,000 less.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So essentially, roughly, what we're looking at, is that would...if I'm looking at
115,000, if you consider that 112-, it's...and I'm not agreeing to the 112-, because I don't want
to agree to the salary increases. But they're there, so what I'm asking you to do is allow me to
take that amount out of these other Sub-Object Codes and then I'm agreeing to the remainder of
those being restored. I know this is confusing.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I can't follow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's the bottom line you want on Line 706?
CHAIR WHITE: Michele, if we add back the 3,290, the 85,888 and 115,000, what does that change the
Council line to?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Council?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Council? Mayor's.
CHAIR WHITE: No, the one in the Council's column.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: Come on. Get with it, Couch. No, all I want you to do is add up...and just minus that
from the 2,117,970.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, can I have a short recess to get some clarification, please?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes. Recess. . . .(gavel). .

RECESS:

8:55 p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:57 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . Okay. To make this simple, if I can make anything simple at this time
of night, the Mayor's total is 2,117,970.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: The new total that I'm requesting in the Council column, instead of the 1,818,960, I
am requesting 2,002,970.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Seven, zero. I had that.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Two, zero, zero, two...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Two, zero...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What? Two, zero, zero, zero...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Two nines.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Zero, two, nine, seven, zero. So we're losing...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, the 115,000 they subtracted out.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: So we're putting back almost 200,000. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No? Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I mean then we can vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's vote.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I move that we now change the Budget from 2,117,970 to two
thousand, two -CHAIR WHITE: Two million.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --$2,002,970.
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have a second?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: We have a motion by Mr. Victorino and a second by Ms. Crivello to change the total
in the Council line to $2,002,970. Discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I was just curious what Ms. Baisa had to say.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, me, too.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well I'm not sure how this $115,000 loss is gonna affect the Mayor's
Office, so my vote is "no". If the majority wants "yes", well, that's the way it is, that's the
process. Vote and settle it.
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, basically, I'm doing roughly the same to his budget as we're doing to ours.
And...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I know what it's gonna do to ours, I don't know about theirs.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh. Well the point...well, I'm not gonna restate the point.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, it doesn't -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --it's not worth this...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay. Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in favor of the motion, please say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Roll call.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we...roll call...well, I think I got it. We have two "noes" and the rest are
"ayes". Is that correct? Okay. So we have...the measure passes, five to two with the two
dissenting votes being Baisa and Mr. Guzman. Okay, thank you.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and
Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa and Guzman.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
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MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have another revisit. Maui County Farm Bureau - EC and DC, the
trucking company.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter)...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The super dumps.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's right, the super dumps. Want to go for it?
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: You know, I'm just gonna not go here. I'm okay with this -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --this year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, consensus then.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Well I'll...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well...
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, DC needs something to say.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, I would...if we're not gonna go up, then I would suggest that we at least add the
3 percent that we added last night.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, hang on a second. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I can't remember if we did anything for the Maui Farmers Union.
We're we going to proviso MFUU, Maui Farmers Union United? Did we proviso that on the
agricultural promotion?
CHAIR WHITE: No. My recollection, was when we spoke to the Department, they stated that they had
not qualified for...they had not been able to qualify for the application. And so I believe they
may be able to get some money out of one of the other funds. But you remember what the
conversation was, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes. The Department...uh, the Department...the Office of
Economic Development did state that when the grantee...when a allocation was provided to the
Farmers Union, they weren't successful in qualifying for a County grant. So I don't know what
the current status is of the organization, 'cause I believe that was a couple of years ago. The
grants and disbursements for agricultural promotion does have $103,000 in there, which you did
give $3,000 more, so there may be some funding available. There is a balance available in that
fund this fiscal year. I looked it up, there was about 17 grand available. So maybe, Mr. Couch,
if you wanna discuss that with...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's fine. And where was that again?
MR. BAZ: Line 719, grants and...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 719?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine with, then, the reduction, Mr. Chair, if we...and then I
would like to go up to 719.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well do we give the 3 percent, the 9,750 we discussed last night?
CHAIR WHITE: Do we have consensus on adding the 3 percent to the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. To Maui County Farm Bureau?
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we added that last night. But because there was a revisit, we took it away.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So that increases it to 334,750.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mr. Chair, I move to add a proviso under grants and
disbursements for agricultural promotion that 15,000 goes to Maui Farmers Union United
provided that they can qualify for the grant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. There's been a motion by Mr. Couch and a second by Mr. Victorino to add a
proviso to the agricultural promotion in the amount of $15,000 to the -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: MFUU, Maui Farmers Union United.
CHAIR WHITE: --Maui...United, thank you. Discussion? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes. Thank you, Chair. I believe that, also, the information that the
United Farmers Association sent, I believe it indicated a labeling-type program. And I wanted to
also add in a proviso in regards to them working in conjunction with Made in Maui labeling, if
that's okay? That's a friendly amendment.
CHAIR WHITE: On the...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: On the...
CHAIR WHITE: --on the agricultural promotion line or on the -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: MFUU?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, MFUU.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On my... add to my proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: On his one. Just a friendly amendment to Mr. Couch's proviso.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine. We can get the language to the Staff.
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CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Members, other comments on this amendment? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm trying to understand what they're application is for, to begin
with. And if they don't qualify... so are you making that note that providing they meet the
requirements as an applicant?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. And can we do that, Mr. Ueoka? If they've already been
denied as an applicant?
CHAIR WHITE: No. My understanding was this time around, that's why they're not listed anywhere.
Well, let's let Mr. Ueoka answer Ms. Crivello's question first.
MR. UEOKA: Yes, they could reapply.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: But if they, again, if they don't meet the requirements, then...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whether or not we have the...
CHAIR WHITE: Wait.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, if they don't meet the requirements of a grantee for that department, we will not
grant.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: That brings up another concern. Is if we proviso it and they can't qualify, then you've
sequestered 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's why we said, provided that they qualify. That's if we put that in
there.
MR. KANESHINA: Excuse me.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Kaneshina?
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MR. KANESHINA: Oh, thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, Member Kaneshina, excuse me.
MR. KANESHINA: Too kind. Thank you. Just for clarification. I think I know where Mr. Ueoka's
going with this. Problem is, you could say something like, provided that it's for Maui Farmers
United, further provided that they qualify as a nonprofit; but I think you wanna make it at date
certain. Because it would be a shame for you to leave it wide open, and they kinda just never
qualify and it locks up that 15,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You know what, Mister, I'm gonna withdraw my motion. It's a little
complicated. We'll work with them to see if we can do a grant.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, and they have the ability to apply for something -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure.
CHAIR WHITE: --the funds in other areas. And my concern was that we, you know, we already have
these funds going to a variety of projects that take 15,000 out of a $100,000 pot.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: I think it's risky...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So I just wanted to make sure that that organization...I mean if you've
been to one of their meetings, they're huge.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I agree.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Couch, I'd be happy to work with you on that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Members, Staff handed me a note that says, we have 43 revisits left.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not bad.
CHAIR WHITE: How many have we gone through?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No problem.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's go.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let's go.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Let's go. We got 43 minutes left.
CHAIR WHITE: Wow.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let's do it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let's do it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That was profound.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran has just entered la la land.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: She had her five-hour energy drink. Mr. Chair, just my concern is the
Staff. If they're...if we end at ten, how long are they staying after or do they get to go with us?
CHAIR WHITE: My sense -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Leave the building with us.
CHAIR WHITE: --my sense is that Staff will probably be around for about a half hour after we
leave...or you guys leave.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well let's see how fast this goes.
CHAIR WHITE: My question to Staff is, do you think this crowd can get through 43 tomorrow
morning?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, let's try to...
MR. KANESHINA: No comment.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah, we should keep going for a while.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just keep going to 9 o'clock, Chair, that way...whatever is left is
left.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Let's just do it. Some of 'em are easy.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. Okay, let's go.
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah. I think we have about 35 left to go.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, we spending time thinking. Let's go.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Let's go. We are in Line 37...1 mean 737 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 737.
CHAIR WHITE: --CTAHR. And last night -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. It was a, Mr. Chair, you had asked for a 3 percent, and we were
talking about that this was set for programs -CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --and Mr. Baz was gonna come up with a list of programs on this.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair...
CHAIR WHITE: A telling blank look.
MR. BAZ: No, I wasn't able to pull the OED, the grant application, for this. I'm sure whatever you
fund, they'll be able to figure out what to do. So whatever the body's comfortable with.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And the other half of that, Mr. Chair, is that they...we had 80,000 in
the Budget for them last year, and they didn't need it so they passed on it. So I'm thinking...
CHAIR WHITE: How about a motion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I move to restore Line 737.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second. Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. To...
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Eighty.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To the...
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: To the 80,000, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Motion by Mr. Couch and second by Ms. Cochran to restore the $20,000
amount on Line 737. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor, say, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Motion carries. Six "ayes"; one "no", Mr. Victorino.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello, and
Guzman.
NOES: Councilmember Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: And moving on to International Economic Development Program. Chair feels very
strongly about this one, that the $250,000 should not be allotted to this program. And if I need to
provide significant details, I'm ready to do so. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, my only concern is the thought of having a push for
economic development from those two countries is very important. But since there isn't, at least
I haven't seen, a plan of action, I can support your comments and your suggestion here; but I
would like to see the -- 224 -
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CHAIR WHITE: The Chair...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Department come up with a plan of action and then...and a budget
amendment when time comes. Because we do need to go to those areas with economic
development. And with somebody who can speak the language fluently and knows about the
economy over here, too, so depending on how that works. But a plan of action, first, would be
really nice.
CHAIR WHITE: The Chair would support a budget amendment if the Department would provide
significant detail that we were not provided initially.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Agreed.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I concur.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I hear what Mr. Couch is saying and, you know, I know both
sides of this story.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, too, would like to see some emphasis on, you know, bringing in this
International Economic Development and particularly in the Asian countries. If we put this
money in here, would it be identified for...to go to MVB for them to contract or would this be a
contract with OED or what is our plan?
CHAIR WHITE: Well I don't have any plan to use this.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We have no plan at all.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the Chair's concern is that this was basically set up initially as a -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --golden parachute. And I have no way I can support this particular measure. So if
there's a motion that somebody wants to make, I'll consider...I mean we can put it to a vote and
see where it goes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to change the amount in Line 754 from negative
2500 [sic] to 75,000...I'm sorry, 175,000. So that leaves...the Council number will be 75,000.
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CHAIR WHITE: Right. I don't hear a second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Sorry, I'm not following.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The amount in 754 would be 17500 [sic] and the amount in Line 755
would be 75,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Wait, are you saying the reduction would be 175-?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The reduction would be 175-.
CHAIR WHITE: And the remaining amount would be 75-?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In what line?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So you're saying you wanna appropriate only 75,000 for this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay, make sense. Alright, I can second that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a motion by Mr. Couch and a second by Ms. Baisa to authorize
$75,000 for the International Economic Development Program. Further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, this gives enough to get a plan going and start doing a little
bit here and there. It's not enough to fund a whole what you're concerned about. I forgot what
you said. So that's my two seconds' worth. Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. My concern is that it would give 'em enough to fund it for a while, while they
come back for a budget amendment. So the Chair won't be supporting it. But any further
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I have a question. So you're saying, Councilmember Couch is
saying, leave 75,000 in -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --OED to do what, because they've had this...this is not a new
program. Is this a new program?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Any further discussion? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just to answer Ms. Crivello's question. It's a new program that has
begun. And so the 75,000 would allow it to continue, but we're looking for a plan, and that
would give them time to come back with a plan. And maybe a budget amendment if we had a
good plan.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. 'Cause what I heard from the OED Director was 175,000
was supposed to go into the Maui Visitors Bureau and 75,000 is a pot that just kinda sits there.
And so I have a hard time supporting this until they can...whatever figures that come out. I
think -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --OED has the ability to come up with a plan without adding more
funds into it.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, the Chair's concern is that this program was started with no review of options.
It was simply an opportunity provided to an individual -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh.
CHAIR WHITE: --without checking with HTA Asia, with HTA or with any other partners in the travel
industry or economic development industry. So that's why the Chair has a major problem with
this. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, call the question.
CHAIR WHITE: All those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Couch, it sounded like you were the only "aye".
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I was an "aye".
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Measure passes...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Fails.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Fails.
CHAIR WHITE: Measure fails, excuse me. It's getting late.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: The vote was five "noes", two "ayes", Members Couch and Baisa.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Baisa and Couch.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Cochran, Crivello, Guzman, and
Victorino.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ka Ipu Kukui.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Whoa. Are we then in consensus that we're just gonna delete the
whole program?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's gone.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's gone.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's gone.
CHAIR WHITE: And as I said, you know, the Chair believes the same thing you do. And I would be
willing to hear a budget amendment.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Ka Ipu Kukui, Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Well, let me make my pitch. Very happy to see the amount of
15,000 in the Budget for Ka Ipu Kukui. I was hoping that we might be able to add some money
to this this year, because I would so like to see us be able to bring a fellow from Lanai and
Molokai so that they would have the opportunity. And because that involves bringing travel,
they have to come monthly, I think it would take $10,000 for us to do that. And if we can't do
ten, can we do five this year at least Molokai or Lanai, let's choose somebody.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But somebody from off island.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I concur, and I will make the motion to add 10,000 to the
fellowship leadership for a total of 25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Victorino and seconded by Mr. Couch to add $10,000
to the Ka Ipu Kukui Fellows Leadership program. Any further discussion? Seeing none, all
those in favor, please signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no". Measure passes, seven, zero.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, Crivello,
Guzman, and Victorino.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
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ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION: APPROVE.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next is Lanai Economic Development and Cultural Programs, DC and GB.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I'm speaking from on behalf of the Member from Lanai. In
his proposal, he had asked and I think he discussed it on the floor a little bit -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, he did.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that it goes to...add an additional 50,000 so that with a proviso that
50,000 shall be allocated for the Community Development Corporation Lanai Changes. So
that's my motion unless there's consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Second.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Is that consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. If you can provide Staff with a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It's what's in Mr. Hokama's.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, 50 additional.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's what . . . (laughter). . . good evening . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, moving on. Maui Economic Development Board; that's DC, MV and MW.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Chair, this is the one I'd like the 21,000 reinstated or restored
so for a total of 441,000, that's my motion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: We have a motion by Mr. Victorino and a second by Mr. Couch -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: To restore Line 774.
CHAIR WHITE: --yeah. Discussion? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we just ready for the vote.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're ready.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Call it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Ready for the vote.
CHAIR WHITE: Well I was gonna, in discussion, I was gonna say that my preference would be to
increase this a little bit, because my intention is not to support the Tech Innovation [sic], and I
think MEDB has shown their capacity to use our money wisely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Chair, what would you like to put in? Just tell me and I'll
withdraw my motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Well, the Chair's feeling is it should go up to either 5- or 520-.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Alright, we'll move to go up to 520-, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a motion by Mr. Victorino and a second by Mr. Couch to increase
Maui Economic Development Board to 520-.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I think we have to withdraw the first motion.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I did already.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You did?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: He did.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I withdraw the motion.
CHAIR WHITE: Oh, recess. . . .(gavel). . .

RECESS:

9:21 p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:23 p.m.

CHAIR WHITE: . . . (gavel). . . I will go to Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I withdraw my motion, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And I think it's important for you to disclose your...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yeah, 'cause I'm a Board Member.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I forgot all about it. Sorry . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR WHITE: It's too late in the...it's too late.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's like I was really thinking about it.
CHAIR WHITE: So the motion has been withdrawn, and the second has been withdrawn. Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'll be happy to make that motion to put this up to 520,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Whoa...
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Wow, I think it's consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, let's just call that a consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, just remember when we get down to Tech Innovation [sic] that -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's gone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: It's gone.
CHAIR WHITE: --there's not much left.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Gone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Gone.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Gone.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Next one is a revisit on Line 791 on Page 24, DC, Small Business Promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I think I discussed this before. This was
the town parties, I was gonna increase for, you know, and I talked with OED on this. I was
gonna increase 10,000: 5,000 for Makawao and 5,000 for South Maui. The other portion is,
there's 10,000 that goes to Lahaina Town Action Committee, and they get a lot of other money
for stuff for promotions like that, so they use that pot as well. So that's why they only said,
10,000 over there. And then Wailuku gets their money from HTA, so that's why I was wanting
to ask to increase for the two places that don't get extra.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, but we're not proviso-ing the money, are we?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes. It would be a proviso as well. So I wanted to increase this 75- to
85- with a proviso that 25,000 goes to South Maui and 25,000 goes to Makawao. So that's the
motion. Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: I don't sense there's a...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's fine.
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CHAIR WHITE: My feeling is you might get a consensus to increase it to 100,000 without a proviso.
Let OED balance it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I'm fine with that.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That, I would go with, so long as it's not proviso'd to any district.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So that's 100,000 now?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: And by not putting a proviso, that money's available for Molokai, Lanai City -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Anybody.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Sure, okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --and wherever else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Tech Industry Development.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Leave that zero...
CHAIR WHITE: Consensus to zero that out.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
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CHAIR WHITE: University of Hawaii Maui College, Nursing and Dental.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No. Yeah, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, we had consensus on the other one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, we had consensus on the other one, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We had consensus, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, we had consensus. The other was out.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, that's pau already. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Yes?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I would like to restore that 123,550 to bring it up to 250- as
requested.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Second.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think that's consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I'm not a board member, so I can...hoo, Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair's only hesitation is that I reduced it to 200- simply because they got
a hundred and twenty -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No reduced it...twenty-six.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You reduced...
CHAIR WHITE: --hundred and twenty-six this year, and their doors are still open. But if the will of the
body is...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, we're giving it away like Christmas here.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So how we going pay for all this?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's why, we don't know, yet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It's not Christmas...
CHAIR WHITE: I think we better. . .we better head home before the sleigh leaves.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think we're just like -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Grinch.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --being all generous.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The Grinch comes tomorrow.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, Film Industry Promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: At the 50-?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The 50COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Wait. No.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think there was some discussion on that one.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. There were...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I'm sorry, where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Where are we?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: 819.
CHAIR WHITE: It sounds like Member Crivello -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: 819.
CHAIR WHITE: --and White are fine with it the way it is, but -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, I'm good with your call.
CHAIR WHITE: --would anyone like to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The one...819.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Let's go over that again. I'm sorry, we got lost, sir. Chair, we were
laughing.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The Film Industry Promotion.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: ... (inaudible). . . distracted.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair's feeling is that we have a new film studio. They will probably be
adding money to the pot -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: --for this...relatively the same purposes. So the Chair's fine with his recommendation
to leave the 70,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I concur with you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I concur with you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
- 237 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

May 2, 2013

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's your motion?
CHAIR WHITE: Motion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: What did we move?
CHAIR WHITE: No, there's no motion.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The motion is to 50,000, right?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I concur with the Chair.
CHAIR WHITE: I was asking if somebody wanted to make one. I wasn't making one.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. I move that we go with the Chair's request of 50,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I second.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go with.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: In other words, the reduction of 70...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Keep the Chair's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So you're keeping the Chair's reduction of 70-?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Correct.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: And Mr. Victorino made the motion and Ms. Crivello seconded. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, I'm not in support of that reduction.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Me, neither.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Call for the question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay, all those in favor, signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: All those opposed?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The motion fails. So...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: What's the count?
CHAIR WHITE: Well it's four, three.

VOTE:

AYES: Chair White and Councilmembers Cochran, Crivello, and Victorino.
NOES: Councilmembers Baisa, Couch, and Guzman.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.

MOTION FAILED.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well, I didn't hear. I'm sorry, I heard Ms. Baisa and . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR WHITE: Actually, you know -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I said "no".
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --we don't... Staff, we don't really need a motion to leave it the way it is, that's the
Chair's recommendation. So if somebody else wants to change it --
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: --I'll need a motion to change it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, I move to change the net appropriation from 50,000 to
75,000.
CHAIR WHITE: Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Motion by Mr. Couch and second by Mr. Guzman to change the net
appropriation from 50,000 to 75,000. Discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, the reason I wanted to bump it up a little bit is because you
have to get relationships as well. And this new studio, I mean it's a place for people to come.
And I'm not sure how much they've got for advertising. We're not advertising them, we're
advertising Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, that's all.
CHAIR WHITE: Chair can support at that level. Do we have consensus?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yes.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We are on Page 25, Line 847, Energy Audit Program.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Gone.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Gone.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gone.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, Mr. Victorino had a question.
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CHAIR WHITE: No, we had a revisit from Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, 'cause -CHAIR WHITE: I think the.. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the consensus was to, you know, I understand that; but what I
was gonna propose is to put 100,000 in there. And, this way, at least allow them to get it started,
to see, you know, of all these great results that they were referring to that they could get. You
know, give them an opportunity to start, you know. So that's why I was gonna put 100,000 in
there, and that was my proposal to put 100,000 back in, so keep the reduction of 200,000 and
give Mr. McLeod an opportunity to prove that what he wants to do will have great benefit,
especially to -CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Can you...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --understand the less fortunate.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. This is the motion section -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, 100,000.
CHAIR WHITE: --not the deliberation. So your motion is to...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: My motion is to put 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Second.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. It's been moved by Mr. Victorino and seconded by Mr. Couch to -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I already did my dissertation, that's enough.
CHAIR WHITE: --to restore $100,000... or well...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, that's fine.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, restore $100,000 to the net appropriation for the Energy Audit Program.
Discussion? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I really appreciate our Energy personnel, and the work that they do;
however, you know, there are quite a bit of other agencies or entities that provide, you know, for
instance, on Molokai, you've got the Hawaii Energy Initiative that basically does the same thing
that comes to people's home. There's another entity that does somewhat like...the Blue Planet is
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another one. There are entities out there that receive funding from the State or the
electric...from the Hawaiian Electric or Maui Electric that we pay some surcharges for us to
have that kind of service by other entities. So, you know, for the Audit in particular, I don't see
that as a necessity. But for other means where the Energy people wanna do something, then I
think we can offer some monies for that.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Any more discussion? Ms. Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Chair, while I, you know, I understand we're trying to save money and
we're careful and all of these options. Like I said, I've seen the result of energy audits, and if the
money is gonna be allocated only to help low-income households so that they understand their
energy needs and maybe will change their habits and, you know, and do better, then I can
support that. But I didn't particularly think the business part of it was necessary.
CHAIR WHITE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'm open to a friendly amendment. Ask the maker of the motion for a
friendly amendment to proviso that it's only for low-income...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I won't change it till I hear Mr. Guzman.
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. You know, I realize this is part of my Committee,
and I do wanna show my support for the Department of...I mean Office of Economic
Development. I believe that the program was basically, what my understanding was, to provide
a pilot program to eventually show creditors that this type of business would work. And they
would have a, I guess, a connection or relationship with the University to bring in their students
to work it once it was developed. And so I realize it was 15 businesses and 100 households. So
I'm in support of Mr. Victorino's motion of 100,000 and basically having them have the monies
to develop some type of a plan and minimize it, maybe three businesses and five...no, fifty
households, something like that. It doesn't have to be as big as they're proposing right off the
bat. I think what they need is basically a pilot program so that they can show creditors that it
does work. So that's my two cents.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Other discussion, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Question.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. The Chair still doesn't support this. I think it's clear that there are many other
programs...or there're people that are in this business already. Hawaii Energy is on Maui as
well. And so, to me, this seems like more of a make-work and job opportunity. So I'm unable to
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support it. But if there's no other discussion, we'll call for the vote. All those in favor, please
signify by saying, "aye".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.
CHAIR WHITE: Those opposed, say, "no".
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. That was...let's do a roll call.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Stacy Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Elle Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Gladys Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Don Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Member Michael Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MR. KANESHINA: Chair White?
CHAIR WHITE: No.
MR. KANESHINA: Two, five, motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES: Councilmembers Guzman and Victorino.
NOES: Chair White and Councilmembers Baisa, Cochran, Couch, and Crivello.
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ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: None.
EXC.: Vice-Chair Hokama and Councilmember Carroll.
MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So the reduction of 300,000 stands. Okay. Grants and disbursements for...oh,
this is the Aquaculture/Marine Resources. EC and DC trucking again. Which one of you wants
to take it up?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Go ahead, Elle.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I feel there's a need for additional, I guess, funds for this. It looks
like no deletion, right, Chair? You're not...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
CHAIR WHITE: No, we didn't recommend a deletion. I think this is a...this, as I recall, is a fee to an
individual. So whether he's in Hana or Kihei or West Maui or Molokai, this covers...I believe
this is a stipend to him. Mr. Baz, do you have any further information or clear recollection?
MR. BAZ: No, Mr. Chair, I don't. I'm sorry.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, I think the reason why my initials are there, it is for a person
in particular; and I just felt that, perhaps, with more funding, I don't know, more time out on the,
you know, out on the road to get to West Maui and other areas and just to get more information
and awareness out there and assistance to people to build the aquaculture.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, I would recommend...because I think this is just the funding for the person, I
would recommend that you follow up with OED and that individual and see what he can do for
West Maui. And 'cause I would be hesitant to proviso an amount just for West Maui -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Uh-huh.
CHAIR WHITE: --out of that size a grant.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
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CHAIR WHITE: So I think if you can cover that with him. And then...and if they...if he needs more
money, I'm sure that between the environmental grants and other programs that are already
available in OED, we might be able to secure some additional funding that way.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: If that's okay with you?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, that sits well with me. I don't know if DC had something
to...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well if we're...that's fine with me as well, but are we gonna do the
3 percent that everybody else got?
CHAIR WHITE: I'm open to that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. So consensus?
CHAIR WHITE: I think we recommended that last night.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Plus three.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Add 3 percent?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Twelve hundred dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That's good.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yay. Mr. Chair? I know you're going down to 873, but there's a...the
proviso on 857, I think was miscommunicated. The Pump Don't Dump program was what the
65- was for. I wanted to change it to the South Maui Volunteers and there was a...I handed
the -CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --the thing to the Staff, my proposal, and I think I got it here. I can
give 'em the exact language again, if they'd like.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I think we had consensus on that last night, so...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just wanna make sure that the...
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, just...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'll make sure it gets fixed.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. We have a revisit from Ms. Cochran on the grant to Maui Visitors Bureau.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, I'll stick with your call, Chair, on this.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So we'll provide the 3 percent increase that we had last night. So, basically, it
restores it to the -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Original.
CHAIR WHITE: --original amount of 3,605,000. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Consensus.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. This is related to the earlier motion with the move between...moving the
Ocean Safety Officers back. So -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So this stays then, yeah?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Moot.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Pardon?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: It was already moved, right?
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CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so this is okay the way it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Then -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Same with 900?
CHAIR WHITE: --same with 900.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR WHITE: So that stands. And just, you know, let's just finish that one off and go to Page 55.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Fifty-five.
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Page 55.
CHAIR WHITE: Page 55, we have on Line 1842, that stands as...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, it has to stand, yeah?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah. And then Page 60, we have another change. At the bottom, Line 2029 -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: --it's the corresponding move, so that stands. And with that, Members, I think we
should call it a night.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We're almost done.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're almost...
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CHAIR WHITE: I'm gonna leave this as a Staff call.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, yeah. Okay, Staff.
CHAIR WHITE: You guys wanna knock off for the night and pick up in the morning?
MR. KANESHINA: Okay.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. I think I wanna thank you all for making very good progress tonight. And we
will see you at 9 o'clock tomorrow morning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Where are we gonna start, Mr. Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: What page we on?
CHAIR WHITE: We'll start up where we just left off. I believe we were just starting the Parks.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Parks? Page 27?
CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, Page 27. Yeah, I haven't adjourned, yet. Okay. So, Members, you all squared
away?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
CHAIR WHITE: 9 o'clock tomorrow morning?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But the only thing is, I think we're on Page 29, yeah, 30? We just did
27, yeah?
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Kaneshina?
MR. KANESHINA: Yes, Member Couch is correct, because we took care of the Parks items when we
voted on the Fire thing. I think we're on Page 30 in the middle, about Department of Police.
Thank you.
CHAIR WHITE: Correct.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS. (excused: GRH and RC)
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ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
CHAIR WHITE: Okay. So tomorrow we will start on Page 30. So, with that, unless there are other
questions, we are adjourned. . . (gavel)..

ADJOURN: 9:43 p.m.
APPROVED:

MIKE WHITE. Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:130502:ry
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